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RCALA QU120

Vicar for Clergy Database
Clergy Assignment Record (Detailed)

Mr Michael S. Nocita

11237 Jellico Ave.
Granada Hills, CA 91344

Current Primary Assignment

Birth Date 5/4/1950 Age; 62
Birth Place San Jose, California, USA Deanery: 22
Diaconate Ordination ' |
Priesthood Ordination 6/10/1977

Diocese Name Archdiocese of Los Angeles

Date of Incardination

Religious Community

Ritual Ascription Latin

Ministry Status To Lay State

Canon State Diocesan Priest Incard Process ]

Begin Pension Date

Home phone (818) 363-3193

Work phone © 310-515-0533, ex 672.
Seminary . St. John's Serminary, Camarillo
Ethnicity ‘American (USA)

Fingerprint Verification and Safeguard Training

Date Background Check
Virtus Training Date

Assignment History

Assignment

Returned To Lay State, Rescript from the Congregation for the Doctrine of
the Faith, Prot. No. 656/2004,

Inactive Leave

St. Timothy Catholic Church, Los Angeles Associate Pastor (Parochial
Vicar), Active Service

Bishop Alemany High School, Mission Hills Principal, Active Service
Queen of Angels Seminary, Mission Hills Resident, Resident

Paraclete High School; Lancaster Principal, Active Service

Sacred Heart Catholic Church, Lancaster Resident, Resident

American Martyrs Catholic Church, Manhattan Beach Resident, Resident

Beginning Date Completion Date

5/8/2006

3/25/1991
7/1/1989

7/1/1987
7/1/1987
7/1/1984
7/1/1984
5/23/1983

5/7/2006
3/24/1991

6/30/1989
6/30/1989
6/30/1987

6/30/1987

6/30/1984



Maria Regina Catholic Church, Gardena Resident, Resident

Bishop Montgomery High School, Torrance Education-Teacher/Faculty,
Active Service

St, Bruno Catholic Church, Whittier Resident, Resident

St. Paul High School, Santa Fe Springs Education-Teacher/Faculty, Active
Service '

Mary Star of the Sea Cathalic Church, San Pedro Associate Pastor
(Parochial Vicar), Active Service

RCALA 007121

7/1/1982
7/1/1982

7/9/1980
7/9/1980

6/17/1977

6/30/1984
6/30/1984

6/30/1982
6/30/1982

7/8/1980




CONIIMINTIAL
MEMORANDUM
DATE : April 19, 1988
FROM: Monsignor Curry
TO: Archhishop Mahony
RE: Fatﬁér Michael Nocita
Fathey REDACTED spoke to a Detective, REDACTED . of

the Sheriff's Department about a report that had been made to
the police by a therapist concerning Mike Nocita.

A 23-year old woman named REDACTED told her therapist
she had fallen in love with Mike while he was assigned to
REDACTED . in 1980-1982, and that he had

been intimate with her, mostly in his car. She does not claim
there was intercourse involved.

The Detective mentioned that the statute of limitations had

run out, and that the police would not pursue the matter. The
young woman does unot wish to cooperate in any way with the
police and is very upset that the therapist reported the matter.
However, it appears that she may still be very much in contact
with Mike, and she claims to be very confused by his periodic
promises to leave and marry her. She has told Mike about the
matter being reported. He met REPACTED 5t a3 meeting this morning
and told him the police would be making a report. He claims to
have hugged the girl, but says he did nothing else.
REDACTED was principal during the period in question and knows
Mike was very friendly with this girl. The Detective is going
for oral surgery and will come to see FEPASTED and give him a
report, probably early next week.

REDACTED gj gtey (REDACTED , and I met this afternoon and
decided we should probably wait for a_ggigggg~fsggrt before
taking any action, ——

(;) Jmeti T
e
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TO:
FROM
RE:

LA

RCALA 007123

MEMORANDUM

December 11, 1930

Archbishop Mahony
Monsignor Thomas Curry
Michael Nocita

Yesterday REPACTED  gpoke to me at the Priests' Council about a man
who had complained to him about Mike's behavior and particularly his
intimacy with women. I asked"™*™ to have the man call me, and he did
so last night. He did not give me his name and said he was somewhat
constrained in that he was protecting people who did not want to be
known. He is a high school counselor.

His main concern is that he asserts Mike has been involved with women
since before his ordination and that this involvement has continued.

He went on about Mike's extravagant life style, Mike's belief that he is
a ladies' man and that women find him irresistible. I found the man a
bit obsessed about Mike, but could not say that he was unreasonable in
any way or that he had any obvious problem that would cause him to
make these allegations.

I checked back with REDACTED . > and he vouches for the honesty of
this man. "™ himself says he knows a family, in REDACTED » I
think, whose daughter refused to have Mike perform her wedding
because he had made advances to her and her sister. Apparently, her
father, who is an influential man and a friend of Mike's, wanted him to
perform the wedding. "™ claims there are rumors of drunkenness
and sex on the beach surrounding Mike and that REDACTED went to
Cardinal Manning to ask him not to ordain Mike because of his
involvement with women. Certainly his ordination was delayed.

I am concerned about and uncomfortable with all of this and explained
to both the man who called and toREDACTED how limited my action
could be on this basis. Were it not for a larger context, I would not
act on this at all. However, there is Mike's admitted very recent
involvement with a young girl and, as the attached memo states, he was
reported for as being involved with a minor girl, so there is cause for
some alarm at this point. Given the possibility of three separate
incidents, there is a good possibility that mike may be obsessed with
having relationships with young women about eighteen.

My recommendation is that the matter be pursued further before a
decison is made about Mike's going to work in Vocations, and I would
like to discuss the mater with you. —

;‘//4 31972 J2- /f’-7,9
%” dfe"”" ‘ o
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December 21, 1990

Rev. Michael Nocita
St. Timothy Church
10425 West Pico Blvd.
Los Angeles, CA 90064

Dear Father Nocita:

Thank you for coming to see me today and for your gracious
and open response to my comments and concerns.

As I explained to you, before Archbishop Mahony could app01nt
you to the Vocations Department he would need definite-
assurances that some of the problems in your life are being
taken care of. These problems have specifically to do with
your relationship with young women, and I mentioned to you the
Archdiocese’'s knowledge of a police report and REDACTED

REDACTED

I alseo mentioned to you a persistent rumor and concern about
your continued involvement with young women, and told you
that I was unable to give you any specifics on that matter.

The Archdiocese asks that you see Dr. REDACTED

for an examination and continuing therapy if that is
recommended, " As I explained, we do expect that Dr, "™ will
send the Archbishop a report, but that you will be aware of
the contents of the report and consent to it, and we certainly
do not expect any violation of the doctor-patient privilege.

I thank you again for your cooperation in this matter, and you
have my very best wishes for your future.

Sincerely yours in Christ,

(Rev. Msgr.) Thomas J. Curry
Vicar for Clergy

cc: Dr. REDACTED

Rev. Timothy Dyer
Archbishop Mahony

31970
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Office of 1531 Los Angeles
Archdlocese of Los Angeles Vicat for Clergy West Ninth California
(213)251-3284 Street 90015-1194

December 21, 1990

REDACTED

Dear Dr. REDACTED

I spoke to Father Michael Nocita today and asked him to see you,
and he will do so soon. Father Nocita is forty years old and
was ordained in 1977. Archbishop Mahony is planning to appoint
him to a position in the Vocations Department, and since this
is a very sensitive appointment, he wishes to have assurances
regarding some incidents in Father Nocita's life.

The first incident involves a police report regarding Father
Nocita's involvement with a young girl while he was teaching
high school. REDACTED

REDACTED
REDACTED

In addition, there have been persistent rumors and concerns
about Father Nocita's behavior, his involvement with young
women, an extravagant lifestyle, and the belief that some clergy
asked that he not be ordained because of this problem. I do not
have facts on these matters, but Father's ordination was delayed.

The Archdiocese would like to have an evaluation of Father
Nocita. He has mentioned to me that he also was evaluated by
the Hacker Clinic while he was in the Seminary, and while I
do not have that report, I can request it from the Seminary
if that would be useful.

If I can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to
call. My number at home is REDACTED

With thanks for your help, I remain

Sincerely yours in Christ,

{Rev. Msgr.) Thomas J. Curry
Vicar for Clerqgy

31971
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Office of 153t LosAngeles
Archdiocese of Los Angeles Vicar for Clergy West Ninth California
(213) 251-3284 Street 90015-1194
March 18, 1991
Rev., Mi cita T
V. Michael Nocita fé; . REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED

Dear Mike:

I read the aiticle in the La Canada paper indicating
that you have taken a position with the Youth House.

I would like to see you as soon as possible.

If you will please call me as quickly as you can, I would
very much appreciate it. If I am not in when you call,
please speak to REDACTED and she will give you an appointment.
It is urgent that I see you, Mike, and if you cannot come
in during daytime hours, 1 will arrange to meet you at
some other time.

Sincerely yours.in Christ,
#

~
e

(Rev.) Timothy J. Dyer
Vicar for Clergy

REDACTED

31966
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MEMORANDUM
DATE: March 20, 1991 CONTIDENTT £ r
FROM: Father Timothy Dyer
TO: Archbishop Mahony
RE: Rev. Michael Nocita

I did get in contact with Michael Nocita and he is coming
in to see me this Saturday at 9 A.M.

REDACTED

&M ﬂ% Y
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MEMORANDUM

March 23, 1991

TO: -Archbishop Mahony / '
'FROM: Father Timothf{ Dyer
RE: Michael Nocita

I met with Mike today and spoke to him first of our concern for him
personally and our desire to support him. I stressed that it was a
significant loss to the Archdiocese and that we had every hope that he
might return to active ministry. He referred to his situation a couple of
times as a "leave of absence,” but the entire conversation made clear
that there is very little likelihood of a return and that he would like to
seek laicization so that he would be free to marry.

I then showed him the attached memo and gave him a copy -- asking
that his employer send us a letter to that effect. He promised that
would be done. I told him of our concern -- given his file -- over his
taking a job with youth. He clarified that "youth” meant children under
the age of eight, i.e. that the Center was for primary and preschool-
age children. At any rate I asked that his employer send us a letter to
correct the public record.

I assured him of your personal concern in his regard and, in that
context, renewed the offer to go to Dr. REDACTED . He declined,
saying he was already seeing someone of his own choosing. He said that
he felt no anger toward the Church and that he would greatly miss
presiding at the Eucharist. Says he has reached a point where he
cannot see living in a rectory situation and feel fulfilled. He has an
apartment and is living alone and says that he asks nothing of the
Archdiocese at this time.

I urged that he stay in touch with us.

Vz?/m«@" ﬂzgyww,

+ Rk
3-A5- g/
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LA CANADA YOUTH HOUSE — COL_JUNITY CENTER

Programs of

REDACTED

Instruction and Recreation for All Ages

March 25,1991

Reverend Timothy Dyer
Vicar for Clergy

1531 West Ninth Street
Los Angeles, Ca. 90015

Dear Father Dyer,

This is to inform you that Mike Nocita
has notified me that the article in
the La Canada Valley Sun dated February
28, 1991, which article stated that,
"The Church was open abcut this

(meaning Mike's present position),

I left in good standing,” is incorrect.
It is my understanding that Mike's
application for this position and
his acceptance of this position was
done without any knowledge by proper
authority within the Archdiocese of

Los Angeles.

Sincerely,

REDACTED

President
Board of Directors

31958

4469 Chevy Chase Drive ¢ La Canada = California 91011 ¢ 790:4353 e 790-0492
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MEMORANDUM
DATE: March 29, 1991
FROM: ___REDACTEDRE DACTED
To: __ REDACTEDDACTED - Director, TCTEP
RE: ° __ Rev. Michael Nocita

Last week we had a call from REDACTED , Young Adult Ministries, who
was trying to contact Father Nocita because he is scheduled to be
a participant in the Youth Congress at the Pasadena Center

April 19-21. She said he had the material he needs, but has not
responded to her attempts to reach him. :

Father Dyer wanted me to let you know that due to his present
status, Mithael Noc¢ita cannot give’ the:-talk or be listed as
Father Mike Nocita, and that he presumes Mike doesn't plan to
show up anyway. ‘

Don't hesitate to call me if you need clarification.

.t . [l

31958
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REDACTED

California, San .@osé

Mary Star of Sea, San Pedro - Associate 06/17/77
St. Paul High school, Santa Fe Springs - Faculty 07/09/80
fst. Bruno, Whittier - Residence 07/09/80
Bishop Montgomery High School, Torrance - Faculty 07/01/82
Maria Regina, Gardena - Residence 07/01/82
American Martyrs. M ch - Resid

31941
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' BASIC INFORMATION FOR PAX CASES

Case Number: IA 0006/98

Name of Petitioner: Michael S. Nocita

Residence Address: REDACTED

City:

Mailing Address:

(if different)

City:

Home Phone: REDACTED Work Phone: ( )
Pager: ( ) E-mail:

Date of Initial Contact:

Present status: 3 No Prospect O Fiancée O Married 1 Divorced

NOTES

1975 Jan, Disp 987,1 & 984,1 for Ordination to Deaconate

1976 Apr, called for Ordination to priesthood, but it is deferred. Indications of serious
dissatisfaction on part of faculty and Rector. Mike is Deacon at Mary Star until
Ordination

1977 June 11, >77 Ordained to priesthood

1978 Apr,F® ™™ dies

1980 To St. Paul Hi as teacheer

1982 To Bp Montgomery Hi

1983 Assoc to American Martyrs

1984 Principal at Paraclete Hi, also police chaplain, inquires about military chaplaincy

1987 Principal at Alemany Hi

1988 request return to parish life, Assoc at St. Tim’s, police report of intimacy with young
woman at St. Paul in (80-82) -

1989 REDACTED - dies,

1990 Unhappy at St. Tim’s, seeks military again (dating 20 yr old at St. Tim’s is reported) In
Dec rumors surface about his relationships with young women. He is asked to get a
psychological evaluation, refuses.

1991 March, goes In Active. Seeks civil job with supposed support of Archdiocese. Made to
recant that,

No decree found removing faculties

31940
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DECREE

As Episcopal Vicar for the Clergy duly appointed by the Archbishop of Los Angeles in
California, acting in the name and at the direction of His Eminence Cardinal Roger Mahony,
I hereby decree the revocation of all Archdiocesan faculties formerly entrusted to

REVEREND MICHAEL S. NOCITA

This revocation is made in recognition of the fact that Reverend Michael S. Nocita has left the
active priestly ministry and no longer holds an ecclesiastical office or other Archdiocesan
assignment. Therefore, the purpose for which the faculties were originaily entrusted has
ceased (canon 142).

In accord with the canon 50, in a letter dated March 26, 1996, Father Michael S. Nocita was
informed of the Cardinal's intention to revoke the priestly faculties previously entrusted to
him. Inasmuch as there has been no objection raised to this action, I formally issue this decree
and direct that it be communicated to Reverend Michael S. Nocita.

Given this 23th day of October in the Year of Our Lord 2000 at the Curia of the Archdiocese
of Los Angeles in California.

ARCHDIOCESAN SEAL

M /‘Z—% e

Reverend Monsignor Richard Loomis
Episcopal Vicar for the Clergy

31942
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RCALA 007135

CONFIDENTIAL
TELEPHONE CONVERSATION WITHREDACTED on April 26,
2002 at 9:35 a.m. byREDACTED . Pastoral Response Team, Diocese of Sacramento; ™™
REDACTED ’s phone no. iSREDACTED ; her address is REDACTED
REDACTED
REDACTED called our hotline on April 25, 2002 at 2:31 p.m. Ireturned her call on

April 26". The following are the important points made during that telephone conversation.

REDACTED ismmyears old; when she was fifteen years old, she attended e
REDAC I ED in Santa Fe Springs, CA

During her sophomore year, a new priest came to the school - Fr. Michael Nocita who
was approximately 30 years old at the time

From 1981-1983, she had a relationship with Father Nocita; this relationship continued
for a little while after she finished high school

Father Nocita used to kiss the girls on the check and hug them; he told her he did this so
that no one would find out about their relationship

She was a shy person and Father Nocita came up to after Mass at the school (she went to
Mass at lunch time withREDACTED ) and asked her, “Did you pray for me?”; he
called herREPACTED and she told that was not her name; he then asked, “Oh, what’s your
name?” and she told him; he asked her if she would light the candles for him before Mass
everyday; he also gave her a huge hug everyday; at the time, she did not have a good
family life

Father Nocita was young, handsome and popular; after two months of hugs, he kissed her
on the lips; she stood there frozen and he asked her, “Well, aren’t you going to kiss me
back?”; she kissed him on the cheek and ran away; she told her brother and her friend and
they didn’t believe her - she then started doubting herself

Father Nocita wrote poetry to her and walked her to classes; he got her out of Spanish and
Music classes so they could be together; they had a relationship; he said they were going
to get married; she told him that she didn’t feel good about it and it was making her sick;
he said, “How dare you? Jesus gave us the love - you’re spitting in His face.”

There was a lot of fondling; he took her to the rectory; he touched her breasts; they never
had sexual intercourse; they kissed and “made out™; once he pushed her head down to his
genitals, she kissed him there and stopped; he wanted her to touch his genitals

31947

XIl 000015



RCALA 007136

There was a lot of kissing, groping, fondling; sometimes they were dressed, sometimes
undressed; he liked her to take her clothes off and lay with him; they both had their
underwear on except she took off her bra; he would lay on top of her; on one occasion,
Father Nocita tried to have sex with her - maybe he could show her

The relationship ended when she went away to college inREDACTED : she wrote him a
letter and told him that she wanted to move on and wished him well; he then called her
(by then he was at Lancaster High School) crying and said, “No, you can’t do this. Please
let me see you.”; she saw him - they hugged and talked; he was probably seeing other
girls at the same time

REDACTED started feeling suicidal when she 20, 21, 22 years old; she told
Father Nocita that she wanted to see a counselor: he said che chanld talk to his good
friend, Father REDACTED who was theREDACTED for the Diocese at
that time; Father Nocita told her that Father R=PACTEP cqupseled people

She saw Father"EPACTED and told him everything and said that she was worried that it
was molestation; FatherREPACTED gaid. “Oh now, this is a once in a lifetime thing. He

(Father Nocita) loves you.””; he assured her that there were no other girls

Father Nocita came to see her after this counseling session and asked her what she
thought; he reassured her that he loved her and that they would be together

She had a good friend from high school who had become a counselor; her friend referred
her to another counselor in the same building by the name of REPACTED, who was a molest
victim herself;REDACTED X _ was imtially protective of Father Nocita, but the
counselor was pushing her for the priest’s name because it needed to be reported to the
police; told her she needed to report it; she said no;REDACTEDSfiled a police report; |
REDACTED called Father Nocita to warn him,; he said she didn’t have to talk to the
police and 10 say that the counselor misunderstood and that she was in Jove with him (i.e.

don’t bring his feelings into it)

Later, Father Nocita and FatherREDACTED | REDACTED were at
a function together; Father > C'0" approached Father Nocita and asked him about the
police report involvingREDACTED ; Father Nocita said it was just a

misunderstanding; Father "¥P"°™P (who knew REDACTEDvery well) said “You mean to tell
me you think she’s lying.” and walked away from Father Nocita; Father Nocita told her
that Father"®PA°™0 was rude to him

Some of her friends told her that Father Nocita had kissed them while they were at the
school; Father Nocita named other priest who had girlfriends, FatherREDACTED  (ghe

knows this priest knows about their relationship), FatherREDACTED and others;
there may be other girls who were involved with these priests; she has since had some

31948
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RCALA 007137

counseling (sawREDACTED from May 1996 to 2000, in Sacramento), but would
like to start again if assistance can be provided.

I again to spoke to REDACTED ] on May 21, 2002. She told me that she was mostly
interested in programs - assistance with counseling. Itold her that I had called Mser Cox of the
Archdiocese of Los Angeles and left a message. She said these priests believed in having
girlfriends. She recently heard a rumor from a friend from high school that Father Nocita had
married a student from another school who was five years younger than REDACTED

1 spoke to her again on May 23, 2002 and told her about my telephone conversation with Msgr.
Cox. 1said that both priests are out of ministry and that in fact, Father Nocita had left the
priesthood and got married. I explained to her that I would be sending information about our
initial phone conversation to Msgr. Cox. She would be hearing from SistertREDACTED
regarding pastoral counseling and eventually from Msgr. Cox. She said she didn’t want to be
counseled by another FatherREDACTED.type. 1 told her that she probably could have a Catholic or
non-Catholic lay counselor. Finally, I said I would be sending her a confirming letter about the
referral to the Archdiocese of Los Angeles very soon. She thanked me for our assistance.

31949
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REDACTED
From: REDACTED
Sent: Fridav. Aoril 26. 2002 2:33 PM
'(!;o: REDACTED
¢:
Subject: Fr.”=™"""™ from SacramentoREDACTED
Importance: High

Called for Msgr. Cox and would like to speak to him about Fr.Michael Nocita and Fr. REDACTED

31950
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DIOCESE OF SACRAMENTO

2110 Broadway ¢ Sacramento, California 95818-2541 = 916/733-0225 ¢ Fax 916/733-0224

OFFICE OF
CANONICAL AFFAIRS

May 23, 2002

Rev. Msgr. Craig A. Cox, J.C.D.
Vicar for Clergy

Archdiocese of Los Angeles
3424 Wilshire Blvd.

Los Angeles, CA 90010-2241

Dear Msgr. Cox:

This letter confirms our telephone conversation of yesterday regarding Father Michael Nocita.
Enclosed is a summary of my telephone conversations withREDACTED

who lives in the Diocese of Sacramento. As we discussed, I told her that I had spoken with you
yesterday and that she should expect to hear from SisterREDACTED __ regarding pastoral
counseling and eventually she would hear from you directly.

If you should have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me. I appreciate your
assistance in this matter. You and your staff are in my prayers as we face this crisis together.
May God bless you in your work. Thank you.

Sincerely,
REDACTED

Pastoral Response Team
Diocese of Sacramento

RECFRIVED
MAY 2 8 2002

BY: .

e asm—————

31946
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TO: File

FROM: Monsignor Craig A. Cox
RE: Michael Nocita

DATE: 3 June'2002

I spoke with Michael Nocita on the phone today and summarized for him the essence of the
claims made by REDACTED . Thad indicated to him that I expected no
response. All Michael said is that he was “very surprised” to hear of this complaint.

He promised to stay in touch if he hears anything.

31943
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COPY

Office of 3424 Los Angeles
Archdiocese of Los Angeles Vicar for Clergy Wiishire Calitornia
(213) 637-7284 Boulevard 90010-2241
June 3, 2002

REDACTED

DearREDACTED

Let me begin by thanking you for contactingREDACTED at the Diocese of Sacramento to pass
on the information you imparted to her. Let me begin by offering my sincere apology for the
suffering you endured. It is abominable for any priest to betray his calling and mistreat any
person under his pastoral care. Pleasc know that you are in prayers; may the Holy Spirit bring
you healing and peace.

I have asked that “*®REDACTED o,y REDACTED to get in touch
with you to offer pastoral assistance to aid your inner healing.

1 also wanted to inform you that Michael Nocita has been out of active service since 1991. He is
suspended from any sort of priestly ministry.

Again, I thank you for coming forward. 1know that I pray that May God bless you.

Sincerely yours,

~ y A
// ,// ? ;'/ L. s
A e
MWEaig A. Cox, 1.C.JB.
Vicaf forCl
igaf f3 ergy
REDACTEIREDACTED
REDACTED

31944
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RECFIVED
NOV 2 6 2002
St. L_a\vrence Martqr Daris‘w
" (310) 540-0328 BY:

1900 SOUTH PROSPECT AVE., REDONDO BEACH, CA 90277-6003

November 253, 2002

Rev. Msgr. Craig A. Cox, J.C.D.
Vicar for Clergy

3424 Wilshire Bivd.

Los Angeles, Ca. 90010-2241

Dear Msgr. Cox:

RE: REDACTED

I have just read the attached Journal from the above named
REDACTED it has taken me some time to dlgest the
contents and the story Is not pleasant.

I have known*"""TED  gor more than ten years but until | read
the attached, | had never been exposed to the real problems that
have occurred In her life as a result of her association with
(Father) Mike Noclta while he "was teaching at Bishop
Montgomery High School. It is an experience that has left a
beautiful young lady a physical and mental wreck.

- This story of her life is directed to you at my encouragement and
support. The Incldents accounted In this experlience occurred in
a Catholic High School and certainly not unnoticed by the
principal and others in authority at the time. The most of these
people are still enjoying employment and the support of our
Church but REPACTED  gn the contrary is suffering as a result of
some negligence by many of these people. -

XIii 000022
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REDACTED i not adopting an adversarial approach by any means,

but rather coming to the church for some simple love and
concern and help in getting her life back together. With the
permiasion of =PACTED | have discussed her situation with one of
my attorney friends who does agree that it may be possible to
‘build up a case of negligence against BMHS.

REDACTED  Ig In need of some top-notch counseling and likewise
some support to allow her to live rather frugally but sufficient to
prepare her for a successful career. This young lady has much
talent, is well educated and I've always considered her as the
perfect teacher for the lower grades children In any of our
schools. | personally know the principal where she was a
teacher for one year, and she considered her to be a marvelous
teacher.

The attached is a very detailed but well written journal. It has
taken a long time to put together, but hopefully you will be able
to direct it to the proper person who will be able to take on the
responsibility of giving it the attention it deserves. 1 will be very
pleased to do all I can to help in this matter. '

With personal regards,

REDACTED

Sincerply
REDACTED

REDACTED  REDACTED
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Archdiocesan Ofﬁoé for the Redress of Sexual Abuse Cases
To Whom it May Concern, November 5, 2002

Hello to you all. My name isREDACTED » and | am writing to you to report
a "sexual abuse” situation that was perpetrated agalnst me by Archdiocesan school
. personnel, over a period of four years, when | was a minor attending Bishop Montgomery
High School.

The enclosed pages detail the abuse and attempt to express why it was so
damaging and what it has cost me. This year | experienced a life-threatening, complete
collapse over it which | have not overcome; my life has been in a state of “911 — code
blue" for almost a year now and I need your help. As this could be costly to you, | have
included two letters from medical professionals who have been treating me, which
substantiate my claim of abuse and which clearly link my current physical, emotional,
financial and functional collapse to the abuse by Archdiocesan personnel.

Additional verification, in various forms, can be provided if necessary.

| am writing to you hoping to be healed. The wound in me is so overpowering
not only because it was traumatic, but because | was never "loved through it." That is to
say, to be really healed of this and lose the coping mechanism of "dissociation,” which
keeps me from being whole and therefore keeps me from being healthy, vital and
successful, | need to re-experience the pain AND be loved in the midst of it. Youcan'
help do this by hearing what | have to say, by meeting my physical needs during this
crisis, and by reviewing the actions and words of "my priest" and stating what the Church
says today about that relationship and how it was handled.

| am writing to ask you for the necessary financial support to help me heal
and re-build my life as this past abuse by Archdiocesan personnel and the Hierarchy has
ruined my life and physical health to the point that my life has beeén at stake, my mental
health attacked, my credit ruined and savings gone, my car on the verge of coliapse, my
natural, God-given ability to function taken away and | have been reduced to poverty-—
now barely getting by on Food Stamps of $135.00/month and Welfare payments of
$221.00/ month. Additionally | am unable to pay my rent (even though it is a modest
amount for a small studio apartment); my car registration is six months late, | have an
unpaid traffic ticket and have been unable to file my taxes (these latter three, if
unresolved, carry serious legal consequences.) | am only able to work here and there at
$8.00 to $10.00/ hour since my mind is occup»ed with this abuse and my body so easily
fatigued. In this state | am not worth much in the job market. To meet my needs | take
the little income | do have and buy furniture and collectibles at garage sales which | then
sell to a vintage furniture store at a small profit. | am continually "broke."

| feel bold to ask you for the financial support needed as |'ve done everything |

- could to cope with this abuse and build a decent adult life for myself. only to fail repeatedly

and find this year that the burden is too heavy for me and I don't have the strength. My
back is up against the wall. | have been completely incapacitated. in the early months of
this year | was so ill over it, that | could not eat— barely subsisting on 1500 calories of food
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per week, week after week for months, and for three dark days could not eat at all or even
'drink water, | lay at home, alone, (after having reached out to key ministers in my Catholic
parish who did not help me as | needed) forcing myself to drink down even a tablespoon
of water per day. as otherwise | thought | might die—my body was literally shutting down.
Though | am in my early thirties, | felt 85 years old and broken. My joints quit working and
| was wracked with pain.

| feel bol r th ount of mo to bring me back to th
documented, high Igvgl of muglgnmg and achievement 1hg i devg]gnﬂ and have
enjoyed during my life, in those years when | was not experiencing or re-experiencing
(through Post-Traumat:c Stress Syndrome and Major Depression) thls abuse by my priest
and the staff of BMHS, and from the Archdlocesan Hnerarchy itself. ls no; just 1_‘Qr me to
nstt h - holic Ch 8s

ially, | feel bold to ask, as Qur Church, i merely an organizati bj
lar and "u ved" nation---but is the body of Christ and the
ambassador of Jesus and of the Love to which He has called us; and even provided an
abundance of Grace so that we would be able to love perfectly, as He loves.

He is sympathetic to our weakness, but always calls us to holiness and repentance,
which includes making amends where we have wronged someone, and seeking
reconciliation. It stands to reason that He especially asks this of His Church officials and
- Hierarchy. And he even calls us when we are wronged to "go (to our brother) and tell him
his fault....if he listens to you, you have won your brother” (Matthew 18:15), which | am
doing by coming to you now.

I don't know what the legal statutes hold you, the Archdiocese to, regarding the
abuse | suffered. | don't know what the legal "Statute of Limitations"” is, but | do know that
| was emotionally unable to come to you before, that | won't make it without substantial
help, and that God holds this Church and the specific persons involved accountable for
the wrong actions they did to me. God's Statute of Limitations is our earthly lifetime and
for the Los Angeles Catholic Archdiocese, that means that God still holds you accountable
for what was done to me.

I don't mean to sound accusatory or condescending; | am a sinner saved by Christ
and am called to repentance in areas of my life too. I'm just speaking to you as a sister in
Christ and a broken sister at that. | pray that Christ works through you to heal me, and us
all.

Sincerelv. ’ - -
REDACTED
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Cost to My life and Health
It’s difficult to express the cost, but I will try. And my attempt is still incomplete.

This abusive scenario took a highly functioning young person with a long record
of demonstrated high intelligence, self-discipline and top honors across a broad range of
subjects, to a dismal drop in ability and the verge of a nervous breakdown. I only averted
it by “dissociating” my Junior year. That meant that I shut it out of my mind by
concentrated effort. Sadly, doing so also shut down much of my intelligence and my
ability to bond deeply with others. The energy required to block out emotional trauma is
so great that the body becomes fatigued and tasks that were simple now take a
tremendous amount of energy to accomplish. This effort to “forget the past” resulted ina
Major Depressive Episode which has literally crippled me ever since.

Major Depression attacks the immune system, leaving you constantly weak and
sick. Tt takes away restful sleep as the mind is always trying to wake up the trauma so
you can be. whole-again. Your adrensl glands become exhausted and your orgens. begin.
to weaken. . It shuts down healthy relating with other people so you lose the vital contact
necessary for health and happiness.

In time it takes away your ability to. function.. Taxes, laundry, and keeping the. car
clean are a struggle. Eaming a decent income becomes impossible. In the past seven
" years I've earned only $6000.--/year. And these years have taken as much effort as

Graduate School with nothing to show for it. I have been unable to build even a mediocre .

adult life.

Left untreated Major Depression can result in total isolation, suicidal desires and
constant thoughts of death, Left untreated, it can bring you to death. This happened to
me this year. Ihad reached out to people before but never got the sympathy and
understanding I needed to process and heal. I was terrified of looking at the pain again
and was too broke to go to counseling.

With severe depression, the bones ache, they feel like they are crying out and your
body shuts down. That’s what I experienced this year. I cannot begin to express the
pain. It was beyond overwhelming; I was beyond comfort. I was in acute emotional and
physical pain, 24-7, for months---no respite whatsoever. No sleep and for a Iong time no
food. "My body Titerally could not eat.

“Simuiltaneously, T was experiencing the “woken trauma” from age 16 over Fr.
Nocita. The pain was over his “mixed messages™ where he would romanticalty advance
and then tell me that our relationship was platonic. This was not only corifusing, it was
traumatic because I wanted our souls to be pure and felt we were facing mortal sin; I
was also afraid for our hearts. School Administrators also sent conflicting data,
alternately intinmating romance and then aéting like everything was on the level and later
-punishing me for showing my-anger.
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Also traumatic were the thoughts that he had singled me out because I was cute
and successful, and in an unconscious way being unsuccessful has protected that part of
me that felt targeted for being so impressive that I caught his attention. He used to tell
me things that indicated that he chose me becaunse I was so accomplished, bright, pretty
efc... It’s something like Pavlovian dog conditioning where if a stimulus is linked
frequently enough with pain the dog will associate that stimulus with pain in later years.
He has been conditioned to avoid the stimulus that when approached brought him pain.

Likewise, when I fma]ly dared to be successful again and “let go” of my Fr. -
Nocita trauma late in 2001, the success “stimulus” which attracted him to me in the first
place signaled the repressed pain inside me and the trauma broke out, crippling me.to
within an inch of my life.

. So, you see, [ must overcome this trauma somehow or resign myself to being a
serious underachiever. This is what I have seen with painful clarity this year. And Iam
not able to do it on my own. Attempting to do so only gave me two glorious weeks of
wholeness and then led me to being hospitalizable.

1 have discussed this in greater detail in the Narrative section of this report. 1

have also attempted to give you a fuller picture of the cost of this from age 16 on, of the’

times in my young adult life when I rose above it to success again, but only for a few
years. As I grew older it became harder and harder to suppress. I guess, as it began to
take more energy the drain became too much to handle.

I don’t expect you to comprehend it all, but I felt I should try to express this in my

report to the Archdiocese.

- It’s probably worth noting that my other siblings, all younger, have achieved great

to exemplary success as professionals. In other words, my failure does not reflect a
pattern throughout my family.

Instead, I stand out in stark contrast, which is surprising to them because I was
always their “golden child.”
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“In a Nutshell”
(Abuswe Scenario and Sources of Ev1dent1ary Support)

I was romantically led on by a Catholic priest for four years when I was between
the ages of 14 and 17, and I fell for it,

»

His romantic advances began when I was a 14 year old freshman at "=>*°"*"
REDACTED High School. Fr. Michael Nocita involved me in substantial
physical and romantic affection that incited my feelings in ways that were over my head
and that drew me in a provocative way, causing me to fall in Iove and eventually feel
strong sexual desire for him, to my continual torment. -

This romantic involvement took place in person for one year. After he was
abruptly transferred, we continued our relationship through letters and phone calls
through May of my Junior year, after which I broke contact with him to keep from losing
my mind and purity. He contacted me Christmas and May of my Senior year.

Much of Fr. Nocita’s romantic actions took place in full view of the staff. They
were complicit. No one intervened to keep me safe that year, and by the end of that year
. the groundwork for serious damage had already been laid. Fr. Nocita told me that his
romantic words and actions were normal and loving, and it was suggested that if our full
relationship was laid “on the table” that he would lose the priesthood he loved. I '
protected him. Therefore my parents did not have the full picture, and as I was their first
teenager, merely thought that I was suffering from infatuation in the first degree. My
mother had threatened to “get him out of the priesthood” if something was “going on,”
and Fr, Nocita had plead his case with me in class and out for a full year. I chose him,
believing he was expressing the higher truth and did not disclose to my mother and father
‘even though this induced the most painful separation from them.

Therefore, I lost the necessary guidance and support every child needs. Every
place that was supposed to be safe for me was not. My parents were no longer safe, the
school staff were not safe, my priest was not safe, even the Cardinal was not safe. All the
people that normally nurture and protect a child were suddenly unsafe—not one lent me
the support and psychological safety I needed. This is what makes the psychological
impact so catastrophic. Alone and isolated, developmentally frozen, 1took a nose dive in
every area of my life, unable to succeed and grow. ‘

. Sources of evidentiary support of this abuse include: BMHS Staff members who
observed us—notablyREDACTED  and REDACTED - . others available, Mike
Nocita’s own memory and testimony, students from my 1* period class, students who
told me something was wrong, students whom I confided in during those years,
including my own sister, and whose responses I recorded in my High School journals,
the journals I kept, detailing what Fr. Nocita and staff'said and did, and later adult
journals where I wrote memories that surfaced (pages total 50-100+). These journals
clearly show the abuse and its effect on my well-being. .

Additionally Parish and Archdiocesan records should show that Fr. Nocita was
reprimanded for his conduct with teenage girls and women. The Tom Schneider TV
video tape will show Tom asking Fr. Nocita about relationships with teenage girls, and
some person or persons asked him, to ask Fr. Nocita, based on things they observed.
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INAPPROPRIATE VERBAL BEHAVIOR---- in class

Fr. Nocita publicly, in class, advocated physical affection, and presented it as an
unmitigated “thing to be valued” without providing a clear structure for propriety or
boundaries. This was a running theme for him. He said things like:

- “A man needs 5-8 hugs per day to be healthy,” and then he looked my way and said “even
“aman who's not married.”

“Snoopy said ‘people need 5-8 hugs per day.” (yes, the Peanuts character)

Fr. Nocita said “People who don’t hug people aren’t loving. A couple weeks ago | had just
finished saying mass with Fr."™*“"*" and we were near the front of the church and Fr.
REDACTE reached to hug this woman and she pulled away. He tried to hug her and she said
‘no, | was really hurt by a man and I'm not comfortable hugging.’ Fr.REPACTED said ‘Well
that's in the past, let me give you a hug,” and then the woman got angry. Fr. Nocita said,
“Something was really wrong with that woman; that's just not loving.”

| remember thinking, “Fr. Nocita must know best. | need to make sure I'm loving so | need
to hug if someone asks.” So later when he started asking for hugs, 1 thought back to his
story, and hugged him, even though | felt uncomfortable. 1 also thought, “Poor Fr. Nocita,
he needs 5-8 a day and where will he get them? 1 guess | need to give him a hug—it'll
help him.” This is honestly what went through my mind. And then, because God has
designed women to become emotionally attached to a man through physical affection,
after a year of this | was romantically, emotionally bonded to Fr. Nocitall!

Notably, Fr. Nocita never prompted me to hug anybody else, nor did he prompt the boys
to hug him, nor the boys and girls to hug each other. He-was the one who wanted hugs.

Fr. Nocita also said thihgs, in class, that caused me to see him not as my teacher or
even my priest, but to see him as a man with sexual/romantic desires. He said
things like:

In response to a boy who called out and said “Fr. Nocita you have chalk on your butt.” Fr.
Nocita said “Some girl must have had chalk on her hands.” | remember trying to
understand what that meant and then feeling totally-scandalized and ashamed when |
realized what he meant.

He said “Studies show that men think of sex once every 8 seconds.” | was really nervous
hearing this and thought, “so he thinks of sex, and every 8 secondsl!”

He said his dad was a realiy good husband, very affectionate with his wife. He said that
his mom would be doing dishes and his dad would come up and pat her on the butt and
how this was a good thing. Then later that day | was standing at the office counter with
him and he picked a box of Kleenex off the counter and patted my butt with it, smiled, and
set it back on the counter. Well if you were me what would you have thought? | thought
he was imagining/ hoping we could somehow be husband and wife.
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INAPPROPRIATE VERBAL BEHAVIOR --- one-on-one

He said | would be his g_irlfriénd

He repeatedly said he Qvould marry me if things v.vere different.

He said “If | was your boyfriend | would pick you up for a date in a Porshe”

He said my uniform skirt would be cute a little shorter and that it would still be modest.

He would whisper things in my ear, especially when other girls were around and say
things like: REDPACTED cute, but you have more depth.” “You are the cutest girl.” “You are
the smartest girl” "You are my favorite” etc.. etc..

My Sophomore year when we had not seen each other for over 5 months

We saw each other and | got up to hug him (this was the only time [ ever initiated a hug
with him) He hesitated and said quickly and urgently, “Not here!"

"We can't hug here. | need to get some things from my old office in the first building. Let's
hug somewhere eise. You can walk with me there. When we got into the first building we
walked towards the old office and through a door. | saw my mother driving her car. | said
"Oh there's my mom she'll be glad to see you. Come and say ‘hi"." "No, he said "let's go

.another way." He found a place we could hug where there was least chance of being
seen by my mother or anyone eise. We hugged for a long time.

" Then he walked me back to my books, looked'longingly at me and said "You have such a

cute girlish figure." (1 was wearing running shorts, he'd only seen me in my uniform skirt
before. | was too naive to even realize that those shorts would've been a tum on,
espec!aliy for a man who was attracted to me. | remember feeling embarrassed that 1 -

. wasn't in a nica dress.)

Things said to me over the phone when we lived far apart:

"l was in PV the other night after visiting some friends and on my way home as | was
driving down the winding roads | missed you so much | wanted to drive off a cliffl"

"My arms are aching to hold you so much | feel like they're going to fall off."

"I'll tell you, | was really dlsappomted that the one day | thought | was gomg tosee you |
couldn't.”

He said "How's your sex life?"
"Every now and then some wild, loose woman throws her body at me."

He asked me if | was dating anyone and then said "if there was a guy | would be jealous.”
"Well, if any guy ever touches you, I'll cut his hands off."
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INAPPROPRIATE VERBAL BEHAVIOR --continued---

Another time | remember he said "When | see you I'm going to give you a big smooch...
right on the lips!”

"Well, the Pope wrote me a letter and he said REDACTED s not a hopeless case
and he said she is pulcherima (pretty) and | said 'Boy you're right. Boy, if { were sixteen
and eligiblel When | see you | think six hours should be enough time for a hug.”

When | see you there'll have to be some passionate smooches. | have a picture of myself
in my desk drawer, would you like me to send it to you?"

If 1 had & picture of you | would put it on my desk and giris would come in and say 'who is
that?' and | would say ‘none of your business.™

"Well it was so sweet of you to call" he said. “I'll have to write you a little note or
something. So are we still in love?!"

"Why do you have to be in testing when | come to see you?!"
and "My arms are aching, | need to hug you." |

and "Oh, | want to kiss you right now s0 much, it would be the Iongest long-distance kiss
in history."

"Well, I'll put (my picture) in the mail today, I've got to do that. Just today | was talking
about you. This girl came up and she gave me a hug, and she said 'can | be your
girifriend?' and | said "No" and she says 'Why not?' and | said "because | already have a
girifriend.” and she says 'Who?' and | said "None of your business, you don't know her”
and she says 'What's her name?’ and | said 'REDACTED and she lives in
Torrance." _

"No one could hold a candle to you." he said "I'd just show them your picture and they'd
be jealous.” He said that he was going to have to see me, but that he wouldn't have a
chance until May and that he would most likely come on a Friday.

After | had broken off contact with him he called my house and he said | haven't received
any letters from you. " "I've been busy." | said. I'd sure like to get a letter from you he
said. Sllence 1 didn't know what to say to him

Then he said, "It's so beautiful out here tonight in the desert. The stars are so beautiful. |

want to get in my car and drive out to your house at 85 miles/hour and pick you up and
drive back at 85 miles per hour and hold you under the stars.” :
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INAPPROPRIATE VERBAL BEHAVIOR—in class—cont.

Fr. Nocita talked frequently about how if he were not a priest he would be married. He
told us what kind of car he would drive and how he would be affectionate with his wife. He
talked about fun things he would do with his children. He talked about a movie star he

- thought was so attractive—Rachel Ward—ironically star of “The Thorn Birds.”

This caused me to see him more as a man with sexual/romantic desires. None of my -
other male teachers in High School talked about wanting to be married.

It was the girl’s fault...

Once in class, some of the kids challenged him about the purity of the Church,
because they had recently heard about a church in Wilmington where several parish
‘priests had sex with a 16 year old girl. This was especially shocking for us at age 14. Fr.
Nocita shook his head and said, “Oh!! There are giris like that. They want to be close to a
priest. They hang out around the altar. We call them “altar girls.” (this was before we
‘had actual altar giris.) -

The boys got upset and said something like “Fr.’ Nomta that's not right. 1t was the
priests’ fault!” - But Fr. Nocita had laid blame on the 16 year old instead of on these .
grown men.

Fr. Nocita talked about being a teenage boy with desire.

. He said there was a lipstick the girls used to wear called “kiss me pink” that he
loved. He said he and his buddies,when they saw an ugly girl,would call her a “bagger”
meaning she needed a bag over her head. Once he said, “Do you know what a two
bagger is? That's a girl who is so ugly that you need two bags, one for her head and one
for your head in case her bag falls off.” Then he laughed and laughed. | thought this was
really wrong.

He often referred to girls as “chicks” which | now see was demeaning. | think he
‘must have had some deep wound from a teenage girl back when he was a young man,
" because once he said, “If | loved a girl and she became a “dirt bag chick® (meaning
sexually immoral) | would never take her back.
- He also said, “If a girl loved me and left me, | wouldn't go crawling after her like a
pathetic little puppy dog.”

Limits had already been placed

He said that the parishioners at his parish thought he was having sex with women
he counseled and that this upset him. He said, "What do they think? 'Do they think I'd
have the energy | have if | was up at night having sex with women?” | wasn’t sure what
he meant but guessed that he was saying 1) that he was pure and 2) that sex took a lot of
energy and | wondered why that would be and thought I'd better not think about it.
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_INAPPROPRIATE VERBAL BEHAVIOR—in class—cont.

He also said that it was very hurtful being a priest when people would insinuate sexual
misconduct. He said that once his friend Fr.R=>°"=>had a woman show up the rectory door
with three young children, claiming that she and Fr.**>*™° were lovers and that the

children needed taking care of. He said this was a lie and very hurtful to Fr,X=>4°T®°

Fr. Nocita was our school counselor. Students and adults would meet one-on-one with
him and talk about the pain in their life. He got angry once in class and said to us, “It's not
right that when I'm counseling a teenage girl | need to keep the office door open. Here's a
girl and she'’s crying her heart out, and the door has to be open!l What about her privacy?
And | have to keep the door open because people are suspicious.

Defending our relationship in class:

‘As the year went on the kids in my first period started to fidget at the attention Fr. Nocita
gave me. He said that it was “ok” for a teacher to have a favorite student. He said that
people could be friends regardless of their age differences. He said Michael Jackson had
a friend who was only five years old.

Conclusions | made from all this that influenced my actions:

What | took in from all this was that he was a very loving man, affectionate and able
to get close to people and that other people who weren't like him accused him of
misconduct and that he was innocent and that this wasn't fair to him. So later when he
was close to me in ways that seemed romantic | remembered things he had said and
didn’t want him to be hurt by these “uncaring, unenlightened people.”

He also talked about how he had felt called to be a priest from a young age, about
how he had begged the cardinal to ordain him and he talked about how he loved being a
priest. When he celebrated the mass he was so sincere. Watching him at the
consecration convinced me Christ was truly present. Fr. Nocita seemed to be in love with
God and so grateful to be a priest.

I really respected his feelings and the priesthood and throughout our relationship
did my best to maintain our friendship without threatening his priesthood. Fr. Nocita often
tatked about how women and men could “just be friends.” He told me he was my friend
and that we would be friends forever. But in time we were walking such a fine line that |
was afraid for both of us.
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INAPPROPRIATE PHYSICAL CONTACT:

Within my first week of meeting Fr. Nocita, the first week of high school, when | was
14, he blew in my hair.

And his uninvited physical antact ipcmased after that in this way:

Fr. Nocita asked me to hug him and stood with outstretched arms and waited about
20 seconds until | nervously hugged him. (This was the first time I hugged him, and
took place in the classroom as | was on my way to my desk. it was before class started
and | had to walk past him to get to my desk.)

Fr. Nocita ran his fingers through my hair (He stopped me in the doorway as | was
entering the classroom, ran his fingers through my hair saying he loved how it looked
“wind-blown”, said that he had had a ‘REDACTED" once and | would be.his new REDACTED )

" He frequently held my hand for five minutes at a stretch. He would interlace his
fingers with mine, relax and hold my full hand, and sometimes stroke the Inside of
my palm with his fingers.

He frequently kissed me on the cheek with a lingering kiss. (I remember the feel of
his lips on my face, the feel of his face, whether smooth or with a five o’clock shadow. |
knew the scent of his aftershave.)

He pressed his face against mine cheek to cheek and lingered.

Fr. Nocita held my hand for 5 minutes every day as | walked down the hall, kissed
me on the cheek, would sing “Fairy tales can come true, it can happen to you, if
you're young at heart.” At the end of our walk he would give me a big hug.
Sometimes he sang bits of contemporary love songs, instead of this “young at heart” song
This was after first period as he and | left the room, and | walked to my second period. .
(This went on from February till June) These were not attentions that he commonly
shared with the other girls.

Frequent and uninvited daily hand-holding, hugging, kissing on the cheek, and
pressing his face against mine. THESE WERE NOT ATTENTIONS THAT HE
COMMONLY SHARED WITH OTHER GIRLS. 1 WAS PARTICULARLY SINGLED OUT.
He frequently whispered in my ear, flattering and endearing comments.

Fr. Nocita played with my hands and with my hair

Fr. Nocita would pop up all over campus and at various times and give me affection.

Repeatedly asked me to hit him in the stomach (and laughed when [ said that wasn’t
appropriate) Fr. Nocita asked me to feel his biceps, and then flexed his arm.
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INAPPROPRIATE PHYSICAL CONTACT —continued—

Fr. Nocita hung out after school aimost every day, where | was waiting for my mom,
put his priest collar in his pocket, touched me & talked to me romantically.

Fr. Nocita took me where he could hug me alone, without being seen by anyone and
when he saw my mom looking for me, took me somewhere else to hug me alone.

While hugging him, [ let go, and Fr. Nocita pulled me back to him and held my head
to his chest (and when | sighed he laughed a laugh that made me uncomfortable.)

He came up behind me, leaned against me and laid his face in my halr for a minute.

He held me often in an embrace that was much more than a hug & gave me cards -
on Valentine's Day an gave me frequent prolonged hugs.

When we were alone together, after confession (in the gym), Fr. Nocita put his arm
around my waist and drew me close to him and walked at a snail's pace while
holding me close for about 10 minutes, then let go so people wouldn't see us
holding as we walked out into the light. (He said, “We don’t have to walk so fast it's
nice just to hold.” Then he walked so slowly as he held me that we were barely moving at
all, his body was close against me and he quit talking and was totally silent. His black
shoes moved so slow over the gym floor. | felt suddenly creepy as there was a
“heaviness” to him. | fidgeted and then he picked up the pace and started talking again.
When | asked why he was letting go (as we entered the schoolyard, he said “T| hey
wouldn’t understand ")

Fr. Nocita put his arm around my waist and bumped my hip with his hip, and did
this after school in the empty hallway, bumping me in a zig-zag pattern all the way
down the long hall.

Towards the end of the year, Fr. Nocita often hugged me two times a day.
SPECIAL NOTE: When did all this take place?

Fr. Nocita taught my first period class. From there we walked holding hands as |
went to my second period class. At lunch time | attended daily mass where he was
the celebrant. We'd visit afterwards. During my fifth period class (right after lunch)
He'd stop in the doorway of my classroom and look at me for a minute and wave—
after a while my fifth period teacher started closing the door, and then Fr. Nocita
would stop by and look at me through the small glass window in the door. Once |
spotted him he would wave or make some funny faces and then leave. Then it was
off to sixth period and then to wait in front of school, where, yes, Fr. Nocita was
“hanging out,” and a lot of our time together and romantic affection was there in full
view of the office staff.
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v BMHS STAFF RELATED WORDS AND ACTIONS
REDACTED .
Fr. KEDAU | EU and "EPACTED during my

. fresnman year, aimost cany saw Mike come walking down the hall with me. We
‘would stop and talk with them. Often, in their presence, he would hug me and
kiss me on the cheek. | wondered if all this was ‘ok” and | looked to them and
they were always smiling.

REDACTED™™ had the room next to Fr. Nocita's and while he was flirting with me,
in the hall before class, she was often watchmg She smiled and sometimes she

- looked upset as she watched; her smile began to look very thin and troubled.

REDACTED oftan saw Mike and | visiting during lunch and after school, where much
of his romantlc affection took place.

After Fr. Nocita was transferred, “*"*°"P would tell me if she had just seen Fr.
Nocita. Throughout the years she would ask if | had heard from him and if | was
‘writing to him.

REDACTED witnessed my behavioral, emotional nose dive and looked very

concerned. She eventually called Fr. Nocita and asked him tc come see me.

) She never openly addressed me re: my relationship with Fr. Nocita. In later

' years, whenever she has seenREDACTED says that REDACTED
asks “How's your sister REPACTED? with a tone of questioning concern.

Fr.REDACTED ~ EDACTED _ thought Fr. Nocita and | looked cute together.

Early Sophomore year | was feeling really lonely for Fr. Nocita. |-was walking
down the congested haliway and Fr.REDACTED  turned and stopped right in
front of me. He was just inches away and he was big like Fr. Nocita. He looked
at me with a twinkle in his eye, and said, in a teasingly scandalous tone, “Do you
miss him?”

| felt nervous and ashamed and didn't like the suggestion so | said, “Who do you
mean?” (knowing he meant Fr. Nocita)

“You know who | mean.” he said, I_ooking at me directly.
| was quiet.

“Mike.” He said (meaning Fr. Nocita.) He seemed to think this was funny, and |
thought it was very serious and heart-breaking.

Ancther time he said, as he was passing me in the hall, “Does he sing to you?”
Does who sing to me? | asked.

“Mike? Does he sing “I'll take you home again REDACTED”
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BMHS STAFF RELATED WORDS AND ACTIONS cont.

Being Irish, | knew the song, and it's a love ballad, where the man is singing to
his love REDACTED and one of the lines is “| love you as | loved you when you
were sweet sixteen.”

“No”° | said, feeling embarrassed.
“Well he should.” said Fr.REDACTED  and he winked and walked off.
Unusual Emotional Desperation witnessed (and unaddressed) by BMHS staff.

Early Sophomore year, after not seeing him for 4 mbnths, | saw his car
and ran around campus to the teacher lounge and asked out of breath and in a
desperate tone if he was there. CoachR=PACTED cautiously said “No.”

I then ran up the hill to the Franciscan's home and showed up winded and
semi-desperate asking if he was there. Brother ™" answered the door and
seemed to think it strange on my part. And it was. But for a school that had
been in a hum, over Fr. Nocita and | just months before, resulting in an abrupt,
early transfer of Fr. Nocita, our V|ce principal, this should have been a red flag
that | needed help.

Junior year retreat—in a sharing time, | broke down sobbing and crying
and told the two teachers in my group that | was broken hearted over a
relationship with man whom | had met at Bishop, who was a teacher. | said that |
couldn’'t share this with people and it was eating me up. | said that he moved to
the desert and | couldn't see him. | said that | loved him and he had loved me
and | didn't know what to do. | was shaking and sobbing so badly | couldn’t see
their faces through my tears just a blear of faint candle light in the darkness.
They asked for his name and | was too afraid to tell them because | thought that
Fr. Nocita could lose everything he loved, his high school administration career
and even his priesthood. Later they would pass me in the halls, but never
approached me, and no help came to me in retumn for “this cry for help.” Those
two teachers should’ve taken action, sought out teachers who could get through -
to me or knew my background. |was a minor talking about a romantic
relationship with an aduit man whom | had met at Bishop and who was actively
employed as a teacher of other minors.

More adult actions/ inactions and words are in my narratlve account and
additional are available if needed.

Basically, no one openly addressed the situation or held Fr. Nocita accountable
in way that would have returned intimacy between me and my parents and would
have given me the truth and necessary resolution. | was not given counseling.

I was left alone in this highly abusive, heart-breaking situation and when |
became angry and “bent” over it was punished and insulted for having a “bad
attitude.”
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Narrative Account of Abuse and Aftermath to Present Day

This is detail. More is available. Hopefully this narrative will give you
what you need to see why this situation was so devastating. Hopefully
some good will come from sharing.

CATHOLIC SEEDS THAT MADE ME MORE VULNERABLE

There were some seeds sown early in my Catholic life that made mé vulnerable to Fr. Nocita and to

his particular needs and psychological problems from his first approach and that left me with no life raft on
ichto le aboard once lation with hi untenable.

Ideas were planted through Catholic education and catechism—ideas like the following: Educators
told us that the Catholic faith was the one, true faith and that the rest of the world without the Church, was
“going to hell in a hand basket” so to speak. And among Catholics, priests and nuns were better than the
rest of us, the highest calling was to the religious life and they had made the ultimate sacrifice; the clergy
were holier and knew better than the rest of us. | saw adult Catholics dote on the priests and nuris and
almost fall in worship over the cardinal. The cardinal was just below the Pope and he was the Vicar of Christ
on earth. Talk about powertl Married life was something for the lesser souls among us. The clergy were
the generals and we weta the privates. Almost every saint presented to us was a priest or nun or someons
who lived that way.

We were told that every person in our life was sent by God. For me that worked out to God sending
me Fr. Nocita and then just toying with my heart.

Priests represented Jesus Christ. 'Our catechism book even showed illustrations of a priest
administering the sacraments, with the face of Christ super imposed over the priest's face. |took it on faith
that Jesus was “in each priest.” This was the kind of reverence | had for Fr. Nocita. At times | even feit
Christ’s presence through him. It was this maybe more than any other thing, that made this trauma too
much for my body and psyche. If | and my family had not believed this way, being exploited by him would
have been an isolated event of being hurt by “just some guy,” but in actuality it was a betrayal of the highest
magnitude imaginable — to a young, cradle Catholic.

It was betrayal by the best group of people in the world and by God Himself. if they didn't love me
and weren’t safe where in the world could | go?

There was a general consensus that we didn't have enough priests and that made our existing
priests rarities and even more esteemed. It was as if they were more important than the rest of us. (in the
case of Fr. Nocita and myself, and any other girls he “loved” in this way, it meant that he was such a
“valuable player” to the adult Catholic staff and Cardinal that they were willing to sacrifice us on the altar of
his priesthood.)

For me as a young Catholic, all these ideas and issues set up a dangerous inequality with Fr. Nocita
and all Archdiocesan personnel, from the start. Not to mention the inequality that already exists between
adults and children. | was no match for Fr. Nocita and corruption within the Church that had been my home
for my whole life.

- Another thing that made me vulnerable was that my parents didn't know that Catholic teachers ---
and | include much of the adult staff at BMHS during the years | attended, could be so bad. Could have
such a "devil may care" attitude towards students who were not their own children, could consistently

- manifest such appalling passivity or at the very least, unpardonable ignorance of the basic needs and make-

up of the young populace they were working with!
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If my parents had witnessed the "affection” Fr. Nocita lavished on me, encouraged and asked me
for, they would have whisked me out of that school within a matter of weeks. But they didn't see it because
they weren't there. They were working at a job and home respectively and paying sacrificially for me to
attend a "good catholic high School" while, unbeknownst to them, everything they had invested in me for
years for my own benefit was dally, monthly, yearly stripped away until the girl whom they knew and raised
was ruined and a stranger to them—and now, in her isolation and self-loathing, vulnerable to the "riff-raff* of
the world, as she never would otherwise have been.

They TRUSTED in the school and in their church, as so many parents do, and sent me there to be
educated in a safe, enlightened environment.. They did not send me to fall in love with a priest or to be a
temporary balm for his frustrated celibagy. | have to say that most of Fr. Nocita's affection for me was public
and so "lover-like” that | began to get looks from students and teachers alike. And the Freshman boys in my
class even thought he was out of line with me, which says something.

Important Background
To understand the impact of this abusive situation, to appreciate what | lost as a result, you will need
a "snap shot" of who | was as | entered Bishop Montgomery, who | was when | met Fr. Nocita. To
appreciate the domino effect of this abuse and how it hurt my parents, and cut me off from the support of my
loving family, to their continual sorow and my extreme detriment, you will need the following background:
Family Closeness and Love of “The Faith”
I was a cradle Catholic, born to devout Catholics. | was the oldest of #**°™ children,

RED

| was theREDACTED o my parents. . and™=“™ and theREDACTED __ to her parents. Thev
were thrilled to have me. | was bor REDACTED

REDACTED

REDACTED

REDACTED
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Because of this there was a special bond with each of them, that 1 aiways felt and that nourished '
me. The experience, | think had seared their hearts and when | looked |nto their ayes, | could ses they had
a special fondness for me.

. | was close to sach of them and to my brothers and sisters, but | had a special closeness with my
father which | think every young girl needs in her development as a woman. A close, appropriate
relationship witha father gives a young woman inner strength and security and protects her later from “bad
men," promiscuity and pre-marriage pregnancy. ‘Ihere are a number of studies which show this to be true.
And this is relevant to my story,

My dad would come home from work and we'd hear the front door open and he'd call out in an
excited voice "I'm home! Kids where are you? And where's my darling wife? "He did this every night. |
remember how we would run from all comers of the house to the front door and he'd set down his lunch pail
and get down on one knee and open his arms wide and we would all rush into his arms and he would hug
us, and we'd all faugh with delight.

We ate dinner as a family. My dad would sit on the couch and read to us every night. We'd take
tums sitting on his lap. One night he told us that he had been thinking that we should pray together as a
family, that God would want him fo do this to be a good father. He and my mom chose some prayers we
could learmn. And after that we would kneel every night as a family to pray. My dad would offer his intentions
first, then my mom would, then me and on down tha line. They said that "the family that prayed together,
stayed together." After we were all in bed, he would turn the light off and sing us songs, until we began to fall
aslesp. Some of our favontes were "Blow the man down" and "The Streets of Laredo." He did this every
night too.

My dad would tatk with me about our Catholic faith and about how precious it was. He spent time
with me in the garage, making wood projects. These were times of bonding with my dad.

When | was in the first grade all kids at my school were invited to make a special hat with a parent's
help for an Easter parade. | remember going to the garage with Dad and looking at our "raw materials.”
He had some smooth poster board. | had some Easter wrapping paper with bunnies dressed up fike Beatrix
Potter characters. He had some green spray paint. In the end we created a "Mad Hatter" shaped hat, like
the hat the mad hatter wore in Alice in Wonderiand. My dad took measurements and carefully sized the hat
to fit my head. He painted the hat green and then “wall papered” the upright part of it with the bunny
wrapping paper. The bunnies looked like they were walking around the hat in their own "Easter parade." |
was delighted at the significance. Then Dad, in a last burst of inspiration, made a bird's nest on the top of
my hat and we placed some plastic Easter eggs in it. (What a special dad, | always thanked God for him.) |
believe my mother added a pink bow that came down under my chin and tied—just in case there was wind.

| remember the moming of the school parads, | was up early to talk to him, and we put my hat ina
special box, and he told me he'd be thinking about me while he was at work. That day | was so nervous at
RE'?: a CTEf;)oI assembly seaing all the classes out and all the big kids. And then our cmpresswe principal, Mr.
called for the first grade and | donned my big hat and walked proudly around in a circle with my class
as they played the song "Easter Parade." | pretended that | was an elegant lady dressed like one of the lady
bunnies on my hat. Then the song ended and Mr.****°™" announced me the winner and | remember that |
got to choose a grand prize of either a big Cracker Jacks box or a giant Three Musksteers’ bar. But the real
reward that day was the deep love and security | felt inside from the wonderful love of my father. As | grew
there were many, many such moments as these with my dad and we had a strong, mutual affection and
respect for each other, that fed us both. | felt safe out in the world because of my dad and mom's love.

One day | was watching a TV show, Gentle Ben, where the young boy-star of the show-- saw some
men doing somsthing bad in the woods where he liked to play. They grabbed him and told him that if he told
his Dad about this, that they would hurt his dad. | was scared!! What could the boy do? He needed to talk
to his Dad, because something wrong was going on, and because he was scared—but he couldn't because
his dad would be hurt. The boy kept the secret and it was so sad to see how he couldn'’t look his dad in the
eye anymore and how when his loving dad said "Son, what's bothering you?"' he wanted to tell him but
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couldn't and instead lied and said "Nothing." Then he wasn't eating like he should and he wanted to spend
time away from his dad because the rift was too painful,

Oh! | was in turmoil watching this, because the dad and boy were always so close in other episodes
and this was horriblell! | wondered, "what could [ do if some bad men did this to me?? What would happen
to my dad and 17" Luckily, before the show ended, the dad found out, the bad men were captured and the
litthe boy and his dad were close again. And the dad told him.gently "Son, you can always tell me when
something is wrong because I'm your dad and a problem that's too big for you is not too big for me."

| talked with my dad about the episode | had just seen and he gave me a similar assurance. And |
remember hugging him and feeling emoctional and being so relieved because being separated from the love
of my dad was more than | could bear to imagine.

Sadly, this would happen to me and my dad through Fr. Nocita, but | have never experienced a
happy ending with my father as the boy and his dad did in that TV show.

And while the boy suffered this for a week, | and my dad suffered this during all of my high school
years, day after day after long day, where the weight of my relationship with Fr. Nocita reduced the
closeness between my dad and | to a paper- thin shadow. And the alienation continued on into my aduit life,
where even now closeness between my dad and | is something we grasp for but never experience as we
once did. For we are only loved to the degree that we are known. And since | had to keep my relationship
with Fr. Nocita secret, for reasons which may become clear to you, my dad no longer knew me, so our
closeness couldn't go deep down as it had all the years before | met Fr. Nocita. And even now my dad
cannot fathom the depths in me or accept the appalling sin against he and | by the Church he stili admires
and loves. Recently, he has toid me that he wonders if he was a fallure as a father; he's about 75 now and
he says he doasn't think he'll be around much fonger; and sometimes | know he still loves me as deeply, but
thinks that | just don't have the heart [ used to. And truly, | don't have the heart | used to. The abuse |
incurred at Bishop Montgomery was so extreme that it shut my heart down.

Folks, this is just ONE of the overwhelming, pathetic consequences of the abuse and negligence of
Fr. Nocita, BMHS personnel and the Archdiocesan hierarchy. WHAT WAS DONE TO ME IS SERIOUS!
And | write this with tears.

My parents warked hard for their children. They sacrificed for me. My Dad would be up at 4:30 am
and out the door by 6:00 am. He left before it was light and got home when it was dark. He spent the
evenings with us and our mother. -And on weekends he took us to the park and to Sunday mass which was
the highlight of his week. He later began working Saturdays to pay our Catholic school tuition-- and my
parents put us in Catholic school, though it was a financial stretch, after | begged them to let me go to
Catholic school.

My dad did carpentry work for the school and Church. He built and hung beautiful doors for Nativity
school in Torrance, that were used for twenty years until they replaced them with steel, security doors. He
built an altar for the nuns and their convent. He built a portable altar for the St. James Redondo Beach
School when my younger siblings attended. | remember with what great care he made the altars, with
different wood, specially chosen for its beautiful grains. | watched as he worked carefully mixing the stains
and choosing harmonious tones for the altars. | watched as he put the smooth finish on and I've attended a
mass at each altar that he built. He put his heart into it and considered it a great honor and { was proud of
him. We were a Catholic family and the Catholic Church was our "safe” home.
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Who | was before Abuse--- Success upon success, focus, peace and achievement

At age four | remember wanting to receive the Eucharist and taking a deep interest in my faith which
| developed throughout grade schoal to the point, that upon entrance into Bishop Montgomery, my test
scores placed me in the 89th percentile regardmg knowledge of the Faith. | loved being Catholsc and | had -
strived from an earty age to be holy.

At age six, when | was in the first grade | remember getting my first report card and it was then that |
found out that | had something called "B's" and that some kids were doing better than me and getting "A's"
and | determined then, since | did love leaming, that | would make sure | got A's. | was on honor roli every
year through 8th grade and graduated Magna Cum Laude. 1 would usually get A's in everything except
math. | remember being an extremely serious student and having a sound work ethic. | was a very high
achiever,

1 was on the honor roll each year with straight A's or occasionally one B. | developed my talents
and won top honors in diverse subjects throughout my childhood, beginning at age 7 through age 14. 1am
not telling you this to “toot my own horn,” but to impress upon you seriousness of the abuse done by my
priest and Archdiocesan employees and to give you and myself a picture of what it will mean for me to be
restored to my God given level of functioning.

At age 6 | entered a city wide art contest and won one of two spots for children enrolled in my public
school. At age 8 1 entered a city-wide coloring contest sponsared by Century 21, won first place in my age
group and a cash prize. Century 21 invited all first prize winners from neighboring cities to an art “show
down™ at Del Amo Mail. There | was seatad at a table with 8 other first prize winners. They gave us each a
box of crayons and a deadline. My family, AuntREDACTEDgand Granna and Papa sat in the audience area.
The pressure was on, | sized up my competition, chose my strategy and won Grand Prize for my age group.
The prize was a gift baok of restaurant “meals out” for my whole family to five or six different restaurants.

My family was thrilled and my little brothers and sisters looked up to me with reverence. My dad loved
bratwurst and | felt so good being able to treat my family, that day, to a meal at a German restaurant.

In my grade school years | won Halloween costume contests a number of times for costumes | had
created myself. | won first place in numerous reading contests within my class and through city wide
reading contests. In a school wide bike rodec put on by the Torrance Police | won first place for girls beating
three years worth of uppsr classmen, and over 150.girls. In fifth grade | won first place for my class in the
REDACTED and Grand Prize for the School.

In the standardized yearly grade schoo! multi-subject tests (I think these were called CTBS tests) |
consistently scored i in the high 90's with some high 80'scores. if | remember correctly my overall average
placed me in the 94" percentile. (! had lower scores in math, maybe mid 70 to 80's)

In sixth grade, on the reading portion of the CTBS test—I remember my mother gasping as she read
the score— | scored at a twelfth grade reading level. That's right, in sixth grade t was reading at the same
level as a high school senior.

| frequently won subject awards for various subjects each year, and often won the religion award for
knowledge of the faith. | studied books on the faith beyond my age level and learned, | even tried to leam
Latin from an old missaiette when { was only eleven years old.

I was excited about the future and had a very high motivation level. 1 focused with laser intensity
on getting excellent grades so | could get a full scholarship to college, and on discovering what specific
talents | wanted to develop regarding a vocation. | was determined to do something important. The priests
had said that Christ would ask an account of us and that as kids we were to look at school as our job and
work “as unto the Lord.* | did this, My dad said once to me, privately, that Christ said “From he to whom
much has been given, much is expected,” and then my dad would say that | had been given a lot more and
that 1 shouldn’t compare my accomplishments with others, but keep Christ's words in mind.
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My parents taught us to be self disciplined and this was a true gift to me.

Aside from school, | was a motivated young person. wrote plays for my family and taught the kids
their parts. | made birthday cards and presents for family members in the weeks before their birthdays.
During summer when | wasn'’t doing chores | would read book by book, almost every book on our numerous
bookshelves. | also developed artistically, composing ambitious drawings.

. Socially | chose “good” kids as my companions and | stayed away from the "bad” boys. My mom
always asked us how school had besn when we climbed into the van and | always shared. This kept things
healthy for us. Also the few times that a “bad” boy accosted me or tried to accost me [ went right to my
teachers and parents. | was not vuinerable to these boys, | wasn't drawn to them as some girls were.

When | was twelve we moved to a new house that was better for our big family. | remember my
mom said | could have my own bedroom and she let me chose which one. This was so exciting. | chosea
room that had a little red leaf plum tree outside the window. It was a very sweet, unusual, little tree and |
placed my study desk by the window where 1 couid see the tree.

It seemed that, while I did work hard, almost everything | touched tumed to gold.

MEETING Fr. Nocita, Freshman Year

My mom went to a consignment shop and bought seven pretty blouses for me to wear with my
uniform skirt. She bought shoes for me and this was such a treat to buy nice leather shoes for high school
instead of tennis shoes, | had neat pretty handwriting and was trim, feminine and happy being a girl. My
grandma and aunt took my sister and | to Broadways at Christmas time and this was a treat.

The first year at Bishop Montgomery, the year Fr. Nocita was my teacher, | had straight A's except
for math. In class | was all attention. | remembar going home after school, doing chores for two hours, and
then studying until 9:00 p.m. at night. 1 remember getting up in the moming, an hour early to study. |
continually set very high goals for myself, worked hard and achieved them.

| remember being somewhat shy and yet growing well socially. 1 felt comfortable befriending
students and teachers alike. | had a sense that | was special and that people in authority were trustworthy
and really cared for me. At night after the little kids were asleep, my dad and | would sometimes sit up and
talk about “the faith®, Jesus, and about our own thoughts and hopes.

I met Fr. Nocita on the first day of my freshman year. He was my first period Latin teacher. |
remember that, in the first few days, Fr. Nocita seemed a bit nervous with the class; some of the boys were
outright rude, calling out in the middle of class.

| looked at him with respect and admiration whenever the boys were rude and | remember seeing
Fr. Nocita look at me after a while, | would do this whenever a student was rude, and something seemed to
register in him. | remember a look in his eyes that warmed my heart and gave me a feeling of connection
with him.

' 1 did not have a crush on him at that point but | was beginning to admire him. | remember feeling
impressed that he had chosen fo dedicate his life to God,

I remember walking down the hall to my class one moming and feeling something in my hair, | kept
walking and brushed it back. | felt it again, and brushed in back. Then again, and | was irritated. The halls
were tight, | was nervous being new to high school. | turned around and found Fr. Nocita right behind me
looking straight ahead and trying to hide a smile. 1 gave him a look which he did not retum, and resumed
walking then 1 felt my hair and turned quick and caught him blowing on my hair. Oh he laughed and | didn't
know what to make of it and that made him laugh even more.
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| felt awkward and unsure of his attention.

As the weeks continued, the rapport | felt with him in class continued to grow. He was the best
feacher | had ever encountered. He spent a lot of time talking about things other than Latin. The kids loved
it he would field tough questions about God, suffering, family life, teen concems etc.. Often he would share
. anecdotes from his own life, from his own youth. '

Often when he was waxing philosophical, theological | would jump in to the discussion— | loved
these times and he and | would go back and forth sharing ideas. | did not have a crush on him at this point
but | was beginning to admire him. { remember feeling impressed that he had chosen to dedicate his life to
God. .

it was Halloween, freshman year, and | was dressed in a pale, pink dress with a soft pink jacket that
was an Audrey Hepbum style. | was at my locker in the third building at the end of the day. It was crowded
.with students and suddenly there was Fr. Nocita at my locker saying “Hi. He said | iooked "very, very cute.”
1 felt kind of nervous— seeing him outside of the classroom. After all he was a grown man and | felt small
next to him. And | felt in awe of him too. He talked to me for & while and some of the boys with lockers
adjacent to mine seemed to tense up a bit. Then off he went a couple doors down to the activities office to
see Ms. REDACTED, then director.

| remember that day so clearly. | loved what | was leaming in high school— it was so much more
stimulating than grade school. | felt like a young woman that day and that was an exciting feeling. |was so
excited about life, even though | was afraid of all the impending changes and work of adolescence and high
school. | remember the feel of fall in the air, the scent of October. 1 finished packing up my bag and walked
out of the building and began the long walk to the front of the school where | would meset my mother.

There were eucalyptus trees lining the walk. Their leaves were scattered on the broad walkway.
They were curved and soft pink beneath my feet. The way was little used which 1 liked, the other ways were
always so choked with people and | liked this quiet path that closed my day at school. As | walked | would
wrap up the day in my mind, and choose a study plan for that evening. Then | would think about the help my
mom would need from me with the children she baby-sat, and with my own REDACTED all
younger.

This day as | began my walk, Fr. Nocita suddenly appeared beside me smiling and in step with me.
| felt nervous. We talked as we walked and it was kind of nerve wracking and kind of fun. | had never had a
teacher coms up and get to know me like this. He offered to carry my books and half-way down the walk he
looked around a bit and then ! felt his hand in mine.

Wow. It felt warm and strong, my own, small and hesitant, and | felt something stirring inside me.
“Should | hold his hand?" | thought, “Is this appropriate? It must be or he wouldn't do it.” It was so exciting
and I'd never held hands with a boy or man before. Jt wasn't on any list of sins | knew about so | just
blushed and held his hand as we walked.

He leaned close to me "if | waé 17" he said, “1 would be your bayfriend.”

Wow.

1 felt like the world was spinning.. *You would be my boyfriend? “ | thought. “You've thought about
this? You must really like me.” And | had wondered if guys would find me attractive. “I must be attractive, |
am becoming a woman! And you, of all men, so great, so high above me, so holy, you would choose
me??? But wait!-you are a priest! What does this mean?

It sank in, and a little voice said "This is not as things should be."

But another voice said "Well, you can't ba a couple obviously, but isn't it a privilege o be so
esteemed and after all there’s no sin in thinking highly of each other."
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We kept walking and holding hands

" would be your boyfriend” Fr. Nocita continued and t would want so much to be near you that |
would camp out at night on your front lawn."

: “Oh my gosh” I thought. | could just picture myself, pulling the curtains aside and sesing him on my
front lawn sitting in front of his tent.

And your mother would look out the window, and say "What's that bay doing out there? | thought
he wantedto be a priest!"

His face was closer to mine and he smiled wide and locked straight into my eyes, and | slowed and
looked into his and | thought, “Well, | really like you. I've never thought of you in this way. Are you saying
- you would have denied being a priest if only you and | had baen teenagers together, before you took your
vows? My gosh. | must be very spacial. What are your intentions towards me?

At Christmas | made him cookies and he seemed so deeply touched. It was after Christmas break
that he first asked for a hug, and it was that first hug that really let him in through the tiniest crack, into my
heart. Being held so frequently in his arms really bonded me to Fr. Michasl. | was an adolescent not a little
child, and | began to have stirrings of deep womanly love for him, of the strong type, only engendered by
close affection with a man. (it had such impact on me that | wouldn't slow dance even one dance with my
junior prom date, two years later.)

Fr, Nocita began to sink deep into my heart. | began to feel sympathy for him, being unable to
marry. | began to wonder about his intentions towards me. And | became more vulnerable to him,

He talked about marriage in class. He talked about how he would be married if he wasn't a priest.
He told us what car he'd drive if he wasn't a priest. About how he'd parent his kids if he was married. He
“frequently said he would marry me —-to my future spouse and then he began to forget my future spouse and
say instead that he would marry me *“if things were different.” Towards the end of the year | began to feel |
was always appearing before him in a white dress. His eyes would light up and he would praise my purity
and tell me | was good, efc

One boy, “*™°™® told me to "watch out for him" and when I laughed, not yet perceiving any danger,
he looked grave and said sharply, "I mean it. He's into you." [took nots of what he sald and felt uneasy.

Towards the end of my Freshman year, the affection Fr. Nocita showed me really caught my
attention. | was still able to study, but | had a certain uneasiness regarding what was going on, that hovered
quietly in my mind even when | was engaged in activity. |loved and admired Fr. Nocita. And [ didn't know
what it meant to be in love, but | thought maybe he was falling in love with me and that he must know
something that | didn't. | thought that maybe priests were going o be able to get married and that when 1
was old enough he would want to date me. The good aspect of love which he gave me filled me up on the
inside, | felt thet | biossomed under his love like a flower beneath sunshine and gentle rain. | felt like he
brought out the best in me and | loved him dearly. [f only he had refrained from what was inappropriate!

- | thought that he was probably going to bring this up soon because it was obvious to me that
something beyond a normal teacher-student relationship was developing between us. | trusted him and
thought that we would probably be getting married after [ was eighteen. You sse, Fr. Nocita seemed so
good and pure to me that it didn’t dawn on me that he would ever do anything wrong to me. So when |

sensed romance afoot and applied his year long teaching on how intimacy was not subject to age difference,

{ thought that he wanted to marry me. 1 thought that this was a very unusual situation, but that since he
initiated the relationship he must have a good plan for us. After all he represented Jesus Christ, and at
every mass prayed, "wash me of my iniquities.” So he was on the level with me, right?

Such were my thaughts.
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The last week of mv freshman year, after a year of romantic attention from Fr. Nocita, a freshman
girf whom | liked REDACTED | signed my yearbook. | didn’t see her note where the other kids had written
and was curious. | searched and searched to find what she wrote. Finally 1 found her note in the back
pages of my yearbook. There was a halif page picture of the interior of American Martyr's Church—her
parish and where Fr. Nocita was in residence. The photo showed the aisle leading up to the altar with the
big crucifix rising up towards heaven. The photo was sepia and grainy and there in the aisle at the base of
the altar in the sepia haze she had written, "DearREPACTED | Don't get it on too hot with Fr. Nocita. C'mon ['ve
seen you two guys together, REDACTED " [ remember belng surprised, and strangely affirmed by her
words, but nervous.

In May of my freshman year, when | came into the front office to give a birthday card to Fr. Nocita,
some of the office ladies actually sneered at me and looked at me like | was a littie whore, even refusing to
take my card and-exchanging looks and rolling their eyes. | felt shame when they looked at me this way,
even though | didn't think | had done anything wrong. And yet would any one of them have allowed Michael
to romance their daughter, all year, at age 147?71 No, of course not, because she would have been
their daughter. Why didn’t they look out for me?

By the end of freshman year | was emotionally very bonded to Fr. Nocita and | considered him to-be
my best friend. | felt joved, cherished and safe,

| was shocked to hear one week before school was over that he was being transferred either to
Rome or two hours away in the desert. Within a week he was gone.

| remember he almost cried as he told about his meeting with the cardinal, he laid his face in my
hair, the kids mocked him, he tried to assure ms, he seemed like he was using valiant effort to “hold it all
together.” He told me that, no matter what, we would always be friends.

Two days before school was out he took me into his office and told me that he didn't have romantic
feslings for me and that he was sure | didn't have any for him, because | was “mature.” | felt stunned and
sick. What did he mean? It didn’t make any sanse, but | believed him since he was a priest and decided I'd
better try to live up to his expectation. This lie, on his part, was fike throwing a Jit torch into a bam ﬁ;ll of
loose hay and then telling the hay that “he knew it wouldn’t bum up because it wasn't supposed to.” Nice
try, Fr. Nocita, but a year too late. | nesded the truth—from everybody, open acknowiedgement Yet even

‘the Cardinal seemed to sponsor this “under the rug” dysfunction.

Fr. Nocita had pursued my heart and affection like a man interested in a woman for romantic love,
then he got nervous and lied about it , and left me with this storm inside and no way to get it out. He was my
superior. Everybody loved him. He was on radio and TV, for God's saks instructing us &ll, even all the
adults-above me were spiritually under his care. He represented Jesus Christ himself, who was | to
- challenge him on something so confusing? How could | think clearly with his repeated double messages,
both verbal and non-verbal?

We are made to run on truth and love. We just don't make it without these. How is it that the adults
involved didn't just “face the facts® and openly come clean with me?

On the last day of school, Fr. Nocita said he would write to me, he looked choked up and said he'd

come to see me in about eight weeks. When | climbed into my mom’s van that day | had a sick feeling
inside about the emotions between Fr. Nocita and myselif,
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Sophomore Year -- impact

After he left | missed him so much that | was in tremendous emotional pain. Within weeks | realized
that going to my parents wasn’t removing the pain. |was in such horrible pain | started carrying the rosary in
my pocket wherever | went. [ prayed it covertly just to make it through the day. After several months apart, |
missed Fr. Nocita so much that | actually felt a pain in my chest. What was going on inside my heart? Why
did it hurt so bad? When would | see him? What was to become of “us?”

Fr. Nocita had promised to see me within eight or ten weeks and he sent ms letters. After a couple
weeks of intense pain and confusion over this, | began to watch my calendar for this visit. | needed to talk to
him about what was really going on. But he always delayad his coming and gave me more mixad
messages, for two years, until | finally gave up.

Almost every where | went on campus was a place Fr. Nocita had held me or held my hand or said
something endearing—Bishop Montgomery was full of memories of him.

The first semester of my Sophomore year | was in such pain and | was so confused that | remember
having a hard time concentrating in classes. In particular | remember baing in Mr. REDACTED | atin class and
ﬁndmg him looking at me and finding that | had just been stanng at a blank wall.

| had been a good student all my life, and now it was requiring tremendous energy to focus. |
managed to maintain my grades that year, but emotionally | began to slip. The reactions of Fr. Nocita and
the staff at Bishop left me totally bewildered. ‘| was constantly torn between an idea that this was a normal
relationship and the idea that something odd was going on. This was a very heavy weight for me not only
for my own heart but for my soul and his soul.

When | talked with Fr. Nocita on the phone, | hurt for him when he said things like, "l was in PV the
other night after visiting some friends and | missed you so much | wanted to drive off a cliffl" and "My arms
are aching to hold you so much}l feel like they're going to fall off.”

| thought that he was my sweet friend and a good man struggling with feslings for me. | prayed
frequently that God would find a way for us to be close again in a pure way, and it seemed wrong to me for
us to get so close and then just CUT A RELATIONSHIP OFF—to me that was exploitation and Jesus was all
about loving people not using them. | thought the cardinal had sinned against love.

By the start of Sophomore year | was no longer openly sharing with my mother out of desire to
protect Fr. Nocita. In my Junior year, Fr. Nocita’s comments on the phone contained a ot of sexual
innuendo that made me nervous. He continued to say over the phone and in his letters that he was coming
to visit me. He'd say “definitely this month” or "definitely before Christmas,” “I'll see you this May,” “maybe
summer?” etc... Meanwhile my feelings for him were still strong and | loved him and missed him as much as
I loved my mom, dad and grandparents. | continued to feel grief over missing him and bewilderment as to
what was going on. | believed that he had been transferred because the Cardinal felt that the relationship
was inappropriate. .

I lost closeness with my dad and peers at Bishop—how could { share something se scandalous with
them. I reached out in ways to staff and was given the brush off. | had to hold it all inside.

How could |, at my age of 14-17- such a tumultuous and tender developmental time manage this
relationship with a man in his thirties? With a man who was also a pries{? First love is so overwhelming for
many of us, by its very nature, add to this a man who was my teacher, in his thirties, my priest, vice-
principal, then principal, speaking on TV and radio, add to this the fact that | was a cradle Cathclic who at
the time believed everything I'd been taught within our faith.
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If he had come to see me &fter | realized what a pickle | was in | think | would have confronted him,
but slender time on the phone wasn't enough for such honest disclosure. | needed to see him in person for
such potentially devastating disclosure. | was worried about his feehngs, which seemed so strong and about
my own fragile heart. | thought we must talk in person. | used to imagine what it would be fike to sit down
together and have the heartbreaking discussion where wa admitted we were in love and in an |mpossmle
circumstance. Then, sometimes when he seemed to be in love with me, | was afraid to tell him | was in love
with him because | didn’t want to lure him from the priesthood. 1 felt the only appropriate way for us to be
together would be for him to either realize, independent of me, that he was in the wrong vocation and get an
“honorary discharge” (and | didn't know that this was even possible) or for priests to be allowed to marry.
Otherwise, | was afraid for his soul and didn’t want to hurt God by tempting Fr. Nocita. The whole situation
was impossible, especially at age16;

Sometimes I thought 'What if | Jot him know | like him and he leaves the priesthood and then |
realize that he's not for me? He would be crushed! | thought it would be wise for me to grow and get to
know other men before making such a choice. When | first thought about telling him | was in love with him, |
realized that if he was drawn (o me he might leave the priesthood and marry me, but that he might end up
years later in a job he didn't like, that he might miss being a priest and feel guilty, that we might come to
resent each other. | was determined to do the loving thing, but it was difficult for me to figure out what that
was. If [ really loved him, and 1 did, | would do what was best for him. My fondest thought was that priests
would be allowed to marry, and that we would marry and help the poor and teach about Jesus together. -
This is the truth. | had fallen in love with a priest and a woman who loves her man wants him to be the man
he is called to be and supports him, with her whole self in that endeavor. This is what was on my heart and
mind.

As | struggled over the horrible pain of being away from someone | loved, | began to realize that
none of the teachers were helping me over this, that they had let me get close to him, knowing how hard first
love could be, and that someone had alerted the Chancery Office and that he was just moved, and that
nobody gave a damn about the pain | was in, and that they didn’t care about the inappropriate relationship
that developed in front of them. That all they cared about was saving face — even the Cardinal himself.

This was an overwhelming shock to me as a young Catholic. Since this was an odd situation | kept
it inside and | began to get really isolated. ' 1 couldn't get close to the other kids because my experience was
so out of the park. | couldn't be truly close to anyone except for myREDACTED . llost closeness
with my parents, grandparents and aunt. |began to feel really different from my brothers and sisters.

The nommal activities of high school seemed so juvenile compared to the emotional trauma and
weighty moral dilemma | was in, that | couldn't really feel a part of things even when | did participate.

) 1 was alone in overwhelming pain inflictad on me daily by the faith that from my infancy was boldly
asserting it was the only true faith, the only way to God and that to leave it was everlasting damnation.

| was under this insane torture for three years, at the school, at home, or with my friends (99% of
them catholic) and Sundays at mass, and in prayer time—for with God this was always before me and | was
struggling to love Fr. Nocita without sinning. | couldn’t stop missing him. | couldn’t stop being in love with
him. | couldn’t address it openly with him because he didn’t come to see ma and on the phone he seemed
to duck the subject just when I'd have a little courage to test the waters, then more romantic innuendo and

seemingly genuine deep pain at being away from me. Oh how did | survive?

My extendedRECACTED family consisted of ten families with about™  kids a piece who were all
Catholic. We had giant potiucks throughout the year and these were a blast. It was a nurturing family. My
Grandma REPACTED had May crownings with rosaries for all and bonnets for the giris. She went to daily mass
and visited the sick. In time | was alienated even from myREDACTED family because of this situation
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JUNIOR YEAR

| began to ask friends what they thought about this. Some girls | knew said he was exploiting me
and this was just to much to bear. Yet their logic made sense. | bagan to bounce between the thought that
he loved me and was struggling and the thought that he was character flawed and toying with me; in the end
this proved too much for me. | was beginning to believe both statements, because there was evidence in
support of each and | thought § was going to lose my mind. | was desperate to talk to him in person as |
thought this was the only way to straighten this out. | thought I'd have to be with him to really know the truth.

At Christmas during my period | experienced horrible pain, [ mean horrible pain which I'd not
experienced in the two years prior. This pain | mention to you because my long health journey sesms to
point to this pain being a result of being emoctionally negated during this experience. This is pain, followed
month in and month out ever since for about 16 years. (Two women friends of mine, both mothers, who
witnessed me in pain and whom | described it to, said it reminded them of the pain they felt in labor.)

And by the end of my Junior year | got to the point where nobody knew me anymore, nobody
understood. | was waking up at night with bad dreams about this. | would try to study and just end up
‘dazed. Some friends thought Fr. Notita was toying with me, some thought he loved me, By the end of
Junior year | was in'an almost constant state of emotional agony over the mixed messages | had received
from Fr. Nocita and the staff. ‘ , '

My grades were slipping. And when it came time to take the very important AP test and SAT test |
had a tremendously hard time focusing and got scores that were far lower than they should have been for
someone of my aptitude and track record. it should have beon apparent that | was going downhill given my
grades the way | was looking off and lonely and out into space not as social. And there was a marked
change in my appearance. | had always taken a lot of pride in my appearance and | was beginning to have
a disheveled look,
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The following is a sampla phone conversation with Fr. Nocita, from this time, from actual journal
enfries. :

Mon. Jan 26

The first thing he said after we greeted each other was
“I'l tell you, | was really disappointed that the one day | thought | was going to see you | couldn't."

I said "What day?" and he says "the 23rd "(cf Dec.)
"Oh yes," | said "you went shopping."

"Well on the 24th | always hear confessions all day and since | always wait till the last minute to do my
Christmas shopping the 23rd was the only day | had to get gifts..."

"My mother does her shopping late too," | said "so do I. But what difference does it make as long as you get
it done? Well" | said "l was really bummed that | didn't get to see you; | miss you so much.”

Then he said "How's your sex life?"

(1 shut down, | thought he was kidding and answered back in a joking way.) | said "My sex life? Boring.
How's your sex life?"

“Boring. Every now and then some wild, loose woman throws her body at me."

1 said "l know how it is; same thing happens to me, except it's guys, but | just say ‘sorry this is not
appropriate.”

"Yes," he said "we have our principles. If there was a guy | would be jealous.”

“Well, if there was some other girl, | would be jealous.”

We laughed.
"Well, if any guy ever touches you, Il cut his hands off’ '
Then | said "Were you talking about me when you said ‘hopeless case?’

REDACTED,

*You? No. It‘sREDmf‘ (a student at his high school) Yes, isa hobeless case and he will be passing on
from Paraclete HS. But you are not a hopeless case. Do you know how I know that you are not a hopeless
case? . .

"No'"

"Well, the Pope wrote me a letter and he said REDACTED is not a hopeless case and he said she is
pulcherima (pretty) and | said 'Boy you're right. ooy, i1 were sixieen and eligible! When | see you | think
six hours should be enough time for a hug." '

| said "Six hours? (why would he hold me for six hours? | was innocent and didn't know why we would hug
for six hours—so | just passed it off and said)

*! think that would be sufficient."

"Yes" he said “and there'll have to be some passionate smooches. | have a picture of myself in my desk
drawer, would you like me to send it to you?”
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"Yes" he said "and there'll have to be some passionate smooches. | have a picture of myself in my desk
drawer, would you like me to send it to you?"

"Yes!" | said "Sure, that would be great. Do you want a picture of me? 1 could send one to you."

"Great, | would put it on rhy desk and girls would come in and say 'who ig that?' and | would say 'none of
your businegs.™

The operator came on the line and required more money to keep the line open. | felt the intrusion on our
conversation and said "r'd call you from home but.that would be totally..."” | stopped as ! felt really emotional
about the whole situation and embarrassed about stating that my parents would not approve.
"I know" he said, "it would get you into trouble and it would be totally scandalous.”

“"Yeah," | said slowly.

"Well it was so sweet of you to call" he said. "I'l have to write you a little note or something. So are we still
in love?!" : . ‘

*Of coursel" | said..

April 10, 1986

The first thing he said when | called him was, "Why do you have to be in testing when | come to see you?!"
and "My armms are aching, | need to hug you." |

and "Oh, | want to kiss you right now 80 much, it would be the longest, long-distance kiss in history.” {1
thought | would melt in his amms and was glad he was a hundred miles away)

I didn't understand the full statement so 1 said, "You'd just be really quiet for a while, huh?"

He laughed! I thought he was sweet-ittie did | know that this conversation was really not endearing but
rather was inappropriately seductive for someone my age)

He also said "Did | ever send you that picture of me?"

And | said "no." ‘ '

And he said, "Well, Il put it in the mail today, f've got to do that. Just today | was talking about you. This girl
came up and she gave me a hug, and she said 'can | be your girlfriend? and I said "No" and she says Why-

not? and 1 said "because | already have a girlfriend." and she says 'Who?' and | said "None of your

buglizre)%scsf Evézu don't know her" and she says 'What's her name? and I said'REDACTED and she lives
in !

I asked him if he still wanted a picture of me.
"No one could hold a candle to you." he said "I'd just show them your picture and they'd be jealous.”

" He said that he was going to have to see me, but that he wouldn't have a chance until May and that he
would most likely come on a Friday.

Angcther time | remember he said 'When | see you I'm going to give you a big smooch."

“You are?" | said.
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"Yes, right on the lips!"

My friend ““""“"*° was nervous about me. He said flatly one day, “Fr. Nocita wants to have sex with
you.” )

I said “Oh "**“™™ no he doesn't, he's pure.”

REDACTED agked me about things Fr. Nocita had said on the phone and | saud *wall he did say he
wanted to kiss me but he must be joking.”

When 1 told™*>*"* ) exactly what Fr. Nocita had said“>*°"™ was very nervous. He said, ‘REDACTED
you are a pure girl. What if he comes by school to see you and takes you down to the beach and kisses you
on the lips? What would you do?”

[ told"=>*“*"| didn’t want to think about it.

*You need to think about it* he said. “He's & man and he said he wants to kiss you, now what would you
do?”

| realized that | would kiss him back, bacauss by now | had a strong desire to Kiss Fr. Nocita. |
began to feel sexual desire for Fr. Nocita after he began to talk about kissing me.

Note, | was not a "run-around” girl. My parents wouldn’t even let me date till | was 18. They said
that at a younger age | would be too vuinerable. And they didn'’t et me watch “the thom birds” though | :
snuck in part of a re<run during the year hoping it would shed light on my relationship with Fr. Nocita. | was
so sheltered that my mom and dad wouid have not allowed me to watch anything on television that would
have stirred my heart mind or body in a way that was beyond my age and that was not pure.

| also had my own personal relationship with God that was pure, my devotional life was pure and |
spent hours in prayer over this praying for a happy ending—praying | could quit being in fove or that priests
could marry.

At the end of Junior year | was at my wits end over this. Based on some things Fr. Nocita said | feit
like he was toying with me and that | couldn't trust him and thet if he came and kissed me that | wouldn't
have the strength to say “no” and by this time at age sixteen | was beginning to have sexual desire and my
desire was for him, the man | had loved sacrificially il these years. This was very scary for me because |
really wanted to be pure and he didn’t show any signs of leaving the priesthood, there had been no papal
announcement saying priests could marry.

Fr. Noclta's Television Appearance

One night in May of 1986, just a week or so after this eonversaﬁon, | was in the living room cleaning
with my mom and sister REDACTED

The 1REDACTED show was on and Fr. Nocita was a guest on the show. My mom was
vacuuming and | asked her to please turn the vacuum off so | could hear Fr. Nocita speak. She grumbled
and kept vacuuming, but then acquiesced and turned it off. My sister and confidante REDACTED vas in the
room too.

| turned my face away from my mother's so she wouldn't see the blush of happiness and longing on
it as | saw the man | loved and missed, in living color on TV.

REJACIED

was asking him questions about faith, moralvty and Catholicism. But then he asked a question
that seemed "odd."
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He said, "Fr. Nocita do you have relationships with teenage giris?"

| was surprised he would ask this. 1 thought well, this is a perfect opportunity for Fr. Nocita to

explain to everyone what hs had explained to me, about how he could have a closs, loving, edifying

relationship with a teenage girl. | thought here is my cynical mother, she will hear his explanation of how a

man and a teenage woman can be friends; maybe she'll be ok with our relationship. 1 thought he would say

"Yes, | am friends with many of my students, some of whom are teenage girls. Age is not a barrier in true

friendship.” And based on our recent conversations | thought he might even say my name and say "hi" on

TV1 1 fully believed he might say "In fact, | have one dear teenage girl who is my friend and her name is
REDACTED °

. But he didn't say anything like this at all.. Instead, he hesitated and cleared his throat and said in a
shaking voice, "My women friends are all...older."

- Hearing him, my mom grumbled at me from behind the vacuum as the TV interview ended. She
switched the vacuum on and REPACTED gnd | exchanged shocked looks. 1 choked back the deluge of feelings
that were nsmg up in me like vomit.

| could hardly believe what | had just heard and seen. How did this fit with what he toid me on the
phone? Why would he lie on TV about something which he felt so passionate about? Wasn't this the
perfact opportunity for him to share with adults what he had told us in class, what he had toid me for years?

_ Shortly after this the feeling of betrayal hit me so hard | wanted to go to bed and never wake up
again. :

I felt | could not trust him, that he had indeed toyed with me and didn't really love me, and that [ was
still vuinerable to his charms and must somehow master my feelings and extricate myself. If he could tell me
he wanted to kiss me on the lips and then lie about me on national television | was in big trouble!

Based on some things Fr. Nocita said | felt like he was toying with me and that | couldr’t trust him
and that if he came and kissad me that | wouldn't have the strength to say "no” and by this time at age
sixteen | was beginning to have sexual desire and my desire was for him, the man | had loved sacnﬁcually all
these years. This was very scary for me becauss 1 really wanted to be pure and he didn’t show any signs of
leaving the priesthood, there had been no papal announcement saying priests could marry.

1 made the agonizing decision to cut him out of my life without good-bye, without an explanation
because | was afraid he might still be able to persuade me to stay in relationship with him.

I didn't respond to his letters and | didn't call him anymore. | didn't talk about him. gradualty |
stopped thinking about him after tremendous effort (the process of dissociation was now complets)

Senior Year

I tried to remain open to God. But | was moving away from him. | heard the song “Blasphemous
Rumors” in the Junior department at Broadway one day It started with little children singing in pure voices in
a church and then led to stories of pain and then the lines “| don't want to start any blasphemous rumors but
| think that God's got a sick sense of humor and when | die | expect to find him laughing...”

I thought “this is what has happened to me.* When { returned to school in the Fall | was so
vulnerable. [ was in AP English and the two lady teachers who taught this and whom | respected brought
our classes together to see a piay called "Medea." They really built it up. But when they showed it to us |
was in shock. The protagonist, a woman, Medea, was angry at her man. She had been exploited by him
and no one supported her. To gst even she murdered her children one by one, they seemed to be between
the ages of 2 and 8. It was so sick. Then in a closing scene she ranted about the power of woman. My two
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lady teachers said to our mostly female class that she was a suffragist for womens' rights and that she was
heroic. -

What?! | said, “That's wrong for her to murder her kids.” My teacher replied “She had to do it to get
their attention, women were treatsd like chattle back then. Men did not care about them!]® Well, 80 much
for “good, catholic education.” Hearing this probably made Jesus throw up. Anyway, my point to you is, as
children we have to sit in class and listen to our teachers. This evil outlook was poured into me day after
day, after | had been seriously abused and | tried $0 hard to not become angry but | lost the fight and
became a very angry, pathetic feminist. -

| also blamed myself for my relationship with Fr. Nocita, qamed twenty—ﬁve pouiiis and was angry
all the time. | would come home and go straight to my room mstead of vlsmng with my siblings.

At Christmastime, 6 months after the REDACTED 1y interview | was at home in the evening and
the phone rang. My Dad said "It's for you. It's some priest.” | thought maybe it was my parish priest.

But it was Fr. Nocita. At first | was confused, then some feelings started to come back and |
remembered him. He said I haven't received any letters from you. "

“I've been busy." | said.
*I'd sure like to get a letter from you™ he said. Silence. | didn't know what to say to him.

Then he said, "it's so beautiful out here tonight in the desert. The stars are so beautiful, | wantto
get in my car and drive out to your house at 85 milesfhour and pick you up and drive back et 85 miles per
hour and hold you under the stars.” :

| thought briefly about a long drive with him out to the desert on a quiet night and about being in his
arms again and looking up at the beautiful stars, together. [ almost caved in, Feelings I'd worked so hard to
suppress started to lift their heads. | wanted to believe him. | wanted to believe that he really did love me,
that there was some way for us o have a pure relationship and get married and have a holy love and be
friends forever.

Yet he hadn't addressed how we could have a holy love. He was still a priest. And he was openly
fliting. | wanted to be friends with him again to tatk and exchange letters but then | remembered the agony
of knowing him in a taboo relationship, and about how he denied me on national television, about how |
couldn't trust him and would still be sexually vulnerable and if he wasn't pure, oh God, what would happen if
I was with him?

All these thoughts raced through my fnind as he waited for a response.
*Those must be nice stars” | said.
He was quiet and we said good-bye.

| dismissed the conversation from my awareness, and closed the door once more on my memory
and love of him.

By the close of my senior year | was an emotional wreck. | had no respect for authority left. A
number of teachers felt offended by my attitude and disregard for dress code. 1 didn't respect them because
they had not respected me, they had let me be devoured by pain and left me dying by the side of the road
for three years and | had to just take the abuse and obey them and there was no safe place left for me to
go. | had no way to process my pain. | had no reason to feel special or valuable anymore for aven God
himself had abandoned me and exploited me. And what could fellow students do to help? We were all in
subjection to the adults in our lives. | was completely alienated from my family. No one knew me anymore.
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One night, while talking with my dad, | burst out crying. | was crying so heavily | was afraid. He was
shocked and said “What's wrong?” | ran to my room and locked the door and laid on my bed and sobbed.
He knocked at the door and begged me to open up, finally | let him in. “What's wrong he said in desperate
tones, REDACTED | we've always been-able to talk, tell me what's wrong.” 1 couldn’t tell him. All | knew was
that there was thls pain in me. .

One night around this time 1 felt so exploited, my innocence taken from me that | went out in the
yard to the little plum tree | loved and tore a branch off it and whipped the tree until there were welts on it
and | was exhausted, crying and slipping to the ground, sitting in the dust. | had never hurt a living thmg
before and | felt horrible but | think | was trying to express what 1 felt had been done to me.

| gave up on my Catholic faith and told God to leave me alone. The only way l had to deal with the
pain and shame was to eat when | was upset and listen to angry rock music. At least the writers of those
songs would admit that abuse happens and that often nobody cares that it's happened to you.

By the end of Senior year | thought that Fr. Nocita had maybe done something wrong but | was
fuzzy about what that was. | blamed myself for the pain I'd experienced and lhought I had just been a
stupid, infatuated, obsessive girl )

Unfortunately what | did was in psychological terms called ‘disassociation’ and it did serious
psychological damage by shutting off a part of who | was. | really went down hill after this. | quit going to
daily Mass and told God to get out of my life because | felt God had iet me be exploited. | no ionger
respacted teachers since they no longer respected me. | could not trust them. My grades began to slide. |
quit taking good care of myseif and had more of a grunge appearance. |felt very abused, and | had a lot of
anger. And since it wasn't possible to direct it at the aduits who had been so reckless with me because |
was under age and in submission to them, the anger had to go somewhere and | began to hate mysalf.

| began to have numerous dress code violations and referrals that should have been a red flag to
the teachers who had known me for years. It's very unusual to have such attitude and action from such a
good student. :

| remember going home and just getting ice cream and going in my room and locking the door and
eating to stop the pain. | quit playing sports. | quit extra curricular activities and I gained 30 pounds which
was a lot for someone of my frame.

. lremember often while | was walking instead of looking up and around at people, | would just lock at
the ground. My choice in friends changed almost over night to other students who had felt abusad in some
way. My handwriting changed radically. 1 remember feeling angry all the time and also terribly wuinerable.

It was as if | had no protection from aggressive peopla anymore. It didn't feel like | was worth anything
anymore. | became very confused about who | was. | felt truncated and split. Where, before all this |
would've gone to mv teachers or parents if something was wrong, | was cut off from them.REDACTED

REDACTED | didn’t telt anybody. A boy one of my friends was dating pulled-
e ui uie wase 1| wae waii iy w s, yanked me outside and put my hand on his penis. When | fried to
get away he laughed. When ! finally got away and got into my class with Mr. REDPACTED | didn't tell him nor my
parents either. Why not? Because | didn't matter anymore.

Several Bishop teachers noticed the change in me and were concerned. Among them,REDACTED
REDACTED gndREDACTED  fronically, "*°*“™*" asked Mike Nocita to visit me. But what | really nesded was
for somebody in the know to honestly address my Nocita experience with me.

I should have had a competent psychologist and this should have been addressed during my
Freshman year or at the very least at the end of my Freshman year.

Instead of serious, timely intervention in the form of top counseling and open, honest dialogue | was

told by the asinine girl's dean that there was something wrong with me and that | had an sttitude problem. |
was required to come to campus on Saturdays and pick up trash as punishment for the lack of respect for
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authority | was showing, yet to have shown a high ievel of respect for people who had let me be emotionally
exploited and had let my heart be tomn out and left me bleading by the side of the road to die would have
been to lie to myself and be even more massed up. In the last waeks of my senior year they sent me to talk
to Ms. REPACTED (who was a career counselor—not a licensed counselor or psychologist) who commented to
me that teachers were noticing that | was acting in ways unusual for me and offensive to them. She wanted
“to know if there was something wrong at home or if there was something else bothering me. 1 thought about
opening up to her but her manner was condescending. She even raised her voice and said with flashing
eyes "If you told me that you didn't respect a (particular) teacher " would slap your face.”

~ Just weeks before graduation, one aftemoon on a hot sticky day, | got a note to come to the
office—the front office. Shoot. | had a sinking feeling (women's intuition) that Fr. Nocita was waiting. |
ignored the summons. We were all on our way to a pep rally and | did not want to see Fr. Nocita.

I tossed the summons and walked with my friends to the Gym. It was noisy and packed inside. The
bleachers were full. | chose a place against the wall to sit with friends and hopad no one from the office
would come looking for me. Ten minutes passed and all was well. Then | spotted & front office secretary
entering the gym. She stopped inside the doorway and quietly looked up and down the bleachers row by
row. | assumed a blank expression and tried to look invisible. She iooked for five minutes and didn't see
me' .

She traversed to the other side of the gym and then she spotted me. She gestured and | gestured
back “no thanks.” She was adamant though, so | followed her out into the light.

“You were sent a summons to come to the office” she said “Did you receive it?”
“| didn't want to come” | said
“Well you need to come” she said.

What could 1 do? | had to obey her or be thrown out before gradustion—even thought | feit Fr.
Nocita was at the other end and that | might fall into his spell again after so much struggle to get out.

Are you beginning to see how this was abusive to me?

It was a long walk to the front office. -As we neared the first building, | began to tighten up inside.
Seeking safety | said “1 have to go the bathroom.*

She looked worn. “Ok and then you'll come to the office.”

“Yes then I'll come.” | said. Inside the bathroom | stared into the mirror dazed and tried to “freshen
up” using the tap water as a rinse and trying to smooth my hair with my fingers. | hadn't shaved my legs. I'd
gained 30 pounds. 1 felt embarrassed about how | locked.

She came back into the restroom and found me staring at the mirror “You need to come” she said,
and with a wink "there’s someone special to see you.” -

Well she walked off and when | came out and rejoined the main haliway there was silence all
around—no students or teachers visible, except me and ...yes, Fr. Nocita.

He heid his arms out to hug me and looked grave. . | stopped before him offering no smile and no
hug. He kept his arms out as he had before. He stood like that for a minute. Finally | stepped up against
him and let him hug me, | put my arms around him limply and he waited a while for a response and then let
go and led me into a private office. ‘

v Oh God, | felt like | was fighting to keep so much down. | don't have the time or energy to detail our
conversation but basically he wanted to know why | had stopped writing, he wanted me to write again, he
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wanted to be friends, he swore that he had not been in love with me. 1 felt | could not trust him so |
remained closed and distant—though a part of me wanted to crawl into his arms and cry like a baby. When |
said no —that | had been in love with him and could not be friends he tried over and over to reach me, to
persuade me to know him again. Finally he came close and said “This pope is a dud. He's not going to let
priests marry. | think priests should be able to marry.* He wamed me about pltfalls in young adult life and
urged me to come back to the faith.

I was cold and sarcastic. My poor, confused “priest-love-friend”— what a saga. And for me, |
everything and every relationship | valued most blown to pieces before | was even eighteen.

He got up and headed to the door. “I'm looking forward to getting letters again from you™ he said.
“I'm not going to write.” | said.

As he closed the door he popped his head through the crack and looked me full in the eyes, “‘I'm
looking forward to your next letter.” Then he closed the door.

A week later, on my eighteenth birthday, | got a delivery of long stem red roses—right to class.
They were from my mom—you know my mom who was unaware of my romance with Fr. Nocita. Attached
was a sweet note saying that she loved me and was proud of me, and that she wanted me to receive my
first roses and chocolate from someone who really loved me, so that | wouldn'’t be too vulnerable to the first
guy who showed me attention. How thoughtful and how ironic. She had no awareness that | had already
been emotionally trounced and was in a state where | was vulnerable to sexual predators, due to the nature
of the abuse at BMHS.

She didn't know that inside | was full of seif loathing instead of love and healthy self-worth.

| crawled out of Bishop barely alive, bitter, truncated and extremely vulnerable. There were only
sardonic smiles from me on my graduation. Graduation only signified the end of a hideous long term
abusive situation. | didn't have scholarships substantial enough to cover the costs of a decent collegs. |
hadn't the energy or sense of worth to really pursue additional scholarships and the partial scholarships |
received were not enough. My GPA was 3.75 and my SAT scores hadn't been enough to get me a full ride.

Aftermath—Adult Functional and Physical Degeneration

| graduated in the top 3% of my class of 400, and was accepted with partial scholarships to some
great universities but with a lack of funding all there was for me was a junior college. In the course of that
year | was repeatedly sexually assaulted —not rape— by a guy | met and remember thinking — this is all I'm,
worth. | remember laoking at him one night and wanting to get away and feeling like a deer wounded and
bleeding, standing before a wolf — and I couldn't get away. | didn't have the emotional or psychological
strength to get away. Some years later | came across research that shows that not all women are
vuinerable to sexual predators that predatory men "smell blood in the water” so to speak. | would not have
been vuinerable to him if | had not been abused for three years by the church and aduits who were there to
educate and protect me. The message that | internalized from such abuse—that | was disposable and
therefore worthless— was too strong for me to overcomse, given the authority and potency of “the Church®. |
was away from God, so that didn't help me, and when this guy would be pressuring me and 'd say no he
wouldn't listen and | could feel inside me that | had to bend to his will. These times w1th him were not
mutually consensual.

| was so vuinerable in fact that | neaded serious counseling to find a way to be safe around men. 1

was terrified for a year that | might have AIDS, | barely escaped rape and was suicidal. Thank God | met
some evangelical Christians and had a non+catholic altemative for coming to Christ.

Coming to Christ and Able to Achieve Again
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After | came to Christ | iet my anger go and eventually began to regain focus and good school
performance but never like I'd had prior to age 16. There was a purposefulness and motivation and self
worth that just weren't there. Despite this, | had a good attitude and worked hard and in the following years
good things came my way as a result.

I felt a taste of the success and self I'd known before. | was a Scholar Athlete, placed in tt the semv—
finals my first year on swim team, built up a strong body, had a poem published, represented
scholarly regional and national oonferences was an RA, was asked by a top professor to be his research
. assistant, and was accepted into a top internship program. 1worked hard at part time jobs with weighty
responsibilities, teaching and worklng as assistant director and saved up thousands of dolfars. | was frugal,
paid my taxes by January 15™ and paid all my major expenses quarterly. | began to save for property of my
own, and began iearning about investment apportunities.

Socially, | felt comfortable with people and was able to go to mass without being moody. | was
active as a competitive athlete during these years and enjoyed being strong. 1 trained-with men in running
and weights as | was beyond my girl friends in both of thess. | placed in races, could leg press 400 pounds
and curl 25 pounds. | swam about 20 miles per week and couid outrun aimost everybody § knew, including
many of my male friends. | trained life guards and taught hundreds of people to swim. | never sat on
cauches.because they falt “too soft.” | remember those years of success of packed days and achievement,
of activity and walking up at 5:30 am alert and rested.

My sights were set on becoming a professional. But in my last year of college as | was preparing
for a masters’ degree, | was going through my photos and came across a picture of Fr. Nocita. Suddenly |
felt the most searing emotional pain and began to sob. | cried for about 40 minutes and felt bewildered . |
took hold of myseif and thought | just need to shut this out, there's no peint thinking about it. | shut it out but
soon after | began to wake up at night with sharp excruciating pain in my ears (years later this was
diagnosed as TMJ) This pain would wake me at night suddenly. If | slept on my left side I'd wake up with it
in my left ear. If | tumed on my right side it would eventually go away but then I'd wake up with agonizing
pain in my right ear. This would continuie throughout the night. 1 began to be sleep deprived and my grades
ware affected. By Christmas my motivation was dropping seriously and | noticed | was losing my sense of
value and was feeling a little uncomfortable with people. | went to the campus doctor several times and he
said my ears were in perfect health. It would come and go and [ accepted it as a cross. Then | noticed |
had nasal drip that wouldn't go away. 1 was told | was fine in periodic physicals.

My grades dropped really low. |thought | was lazy and tried to get a hold of myself. lostinterest in
a caroer, nothing seemed to matter to me. A top professor at the school asked me to be his summer
research assistant and | was so flattered but when summer came it was as if "the air had been let out of my
tires" | had lost much of my motivation/ ability to function and | totally let him down. Again | thought | was
character flawed. | didn’t know it was from my unresolved high school trauma.

But, in the next two years | struggled a lot at the jobs | had. | felt this pain in me, this disdain for
organizations surfacing that { tried to handle but it really made it hard for me to “get on board at work" {
often found myself daydreaming or wanting time alone. This didn't make sense to me as | wasn't
experiencing anything traumatic and was meeting my financial needs and saving money. | was young and -
In good physical shape. | couldn't figure it out. | began having troubls functioning well at work which was
surprising to me as for years I'd been happy in my jobs and didn't have a problem getting along with people—
in fact I'd often been a favorite with my bosses because of my strong work ethic, and good way with people.
Shortly after this | noticed that | was getting sick a lot even when no one around me had the flu or colds. I'd
have what | now know are common physical symptoms of clinical depression. | began to miss days at work
for these times and for my painful periods. My motivation was dipping extremely low and | was de-
motivated with clients. {t was taking too much effort to continue at a job that only months before had been
fun and manageable.

Well | couldn't continue like this. | decided that though { enjoyed the field | was in that | must not be

in the best one for me so | saved my money and quit my job. | planned to write and pursue that and | was
excited. Ministry was also calling to me. | taught Conﬁrmatlon classes, attended daily mass, became a
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Eucharistic Minister to the Sick, and was a Bereavement Minister for my Church. 1 ran two local races with
400-1000 participants each andwon™  place for women in each one and first place in my age group. |
dressed well and feit good about myseif and enjoyed the holidays, baking and making gifts.

| felt nervous but motivated. | began writing and looking for writing jobs and was really perking up. |
met a man who was respectful and kind. We dated for two months and | was fee!ing pretty good, but then
one night | realized | was falling in fove with him. We were standing at his car in front of his parents house
and suddenly I beaan to remember my feelings for Fr. Nocita. - | tried to put Fr. Nocita out of my mind but as

| got closer to™"“*" and began to fall in love with him, more feelings from my high school days began to
surface. )

Memories of Archdlocesan Personnel Abuse‘begin
Seven Years of poverty and incapacitating illness

One day | had a long talk with™™™"“™ and the flood gates opened. Within a couple days | was
experiencing full blown post traumatic stress syndrome over my relationship with Mike Nocita. | was unable
{o think clearly enough to write anything professuonal | had heavy inexplicable feelings of low self-worth. |
didn't feel worthy of getting a decent job. noticed darkness under my eyes which 'd never had
before. | would wake up at night with bad dreams about Mike Nocita. | began to suddenly have feelings I'd

had at 16,17,18.

I was consumed with emotional pain and many days could not get out of bed till noon. The people |
. was working for lost respect for me as | was no longer reliable. | would burst out sobbing or in anger while
driving or alone and | began fo feel really isolated around people. | should have had the care of a good
psychologist then but | thought this was just an issue of my being unable to forgive. 1 thought | was lazy, or
in the wrong work. The pain | felt at night in my jaw became a nightly ordeal. | was never rested. The nasal
drip became congestion that never really went away, yet | didn't show full blown allergy symptoms, My
cramps became so bad that | was bedridden for one to two days monthly. 1was tired all the time. | even
had to quit my part time work as a swim instructor because my immune system was so low that | was
continually infected from the pool.

My checkmg account dropped from $6000.00 to $14.00. | was no longer able to save money or
earn enough.

1 began to lose muscle and within 1 year of remembering my high school experience | fost my
beauty. |dropped from a cute, healthy 1271bs to 110ibs. 1lost so much muscle that | could see and feel all
the ribs in my chest and back. 'Despite my knowledge and success as a fitness trainer and athlete | was
unable to gain weight or regain my prettiness. | had heavy feelings of self-loathing that would not go away.
1 was constantly fatigued and got work as a waitress so | could rest during the day. Also | wanted work
where | could be reliable so I'd be able to eventually have good job recommendations again, and with
walting tables if | was feeling really tired there were many people who'd pick up my shift.

| was so ill after a year of this that | looked totally different in pictures, | looked years older. My body
was getting so small that I'd need an hour at ROSS just to find two or three shirts that didn't look huge on
me. As an athlete I'd been trim but my chest and shoulders put me in a top that was size 10 but now even a
4 was too big. | had to wear petite smalls to avoid looking "clownish." That's a radical drop in size. In bikini
tops where a year before | had looked gorgeous now | locked pale and emaciated. My appetite was low, but
I wanted to eat. | couldn't digest food. | went to doctors who said | had no ear problem. | had no allergy
problem. They couldn't find anything overtly wrong with me. [ thought maybe I' d contracted some sort of
giardia but the experienced mountain doctor | went to said | didn't show the signs of this. My teeth, which
had always been healthy~! only had five fillings before | remembered Fr. Nocita, began to turn grayin -
spots. Three fillings leaked and 10 new cavities popped up.

| was continually working to save up a little money to go to doctors and be told | was "ok" and that
maybe something emotional was making me sick. If only I'd have gone to a top psychologist then | could've
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been diagnosed for what | was suffering from-—severe clinical depression and post-traumatic stress disorder.
| didn't have energy to workout out anymore. It was then that | began to read all the books [ could find on
health and food allergies—thinking maybe this was the problem.

' | also began to do serious soul searching to remove any emotional stress and "straighten mysalf
out" by reading books on personal growth. All this time | was not expariencing any significant trauma —
excapt for my overwhelming anger and confusion about my Fr. Nocita episode. | began to think that this
was making me sick and one day | put all my journals away. 1 put pictures from that time period away and i
shut it out of my mind.

‘Within weeks of shutting out the memory of Fr. Nocita 1 was able to digest food agaln after a year of
almost constant, serious indigestion.

Several weeks later, | retumed to CA but | felt strangely vulnerable at my parish. The pastor asked
me why | had been gone so long and | broke down crying. A couple weeks later | wrote him a letter telling
him 1 was sorry that | was gone so long and that | felt strange at church and had pulled away from people
due to serious pain over my past romantic relationship with a priest. | thought he would be shocked and
would probably ask me to come in and offer to help me. Instead | got a letter from him saying that the best
thing to do was "forget aebout it" and that it would probably happen to. me again at Ieast two times with other
priests. | was in total shock. | had thought that maybe in him I'd have someone who would help me and be
upset that at 14 my trust was betrayed to the point that | was severely compromised emotionally as an adult
and unable to attend mass without pain.

. After getting this letter | did try to "forget about it.” | decided that all remembering it had done was
render me ill and take away my youthful beauty. But sadly at the same time | felt deeply that no one really
cared about the trauma I'd been through and further that no one knew me at all. None of my catholic friends
had experienced enything like this with a priest or from the staff at their high school. Many had fond
memories. For a year | worked part time as | stowly put on a couple pounds and gained a little strength
back.

| took a job as an REDACTED This was my first full time job in three years. 1 was

. excited to be "back in business” 1 was excited to be making a difference. | was thrilled to have decent
health insurance. Yet to my surprise, even though | had worked full time in REDACTED
before, | became desperatsly ill with the workioad. | was constantly sick. | lost my voice repeatedly. My
throat was so damaged from iliness that | lost my singing voice and never regained it. My body hurt all over

REDACTED | was unable to sleep at night. My jaws were so bad that | couldn't sleep on either side and
when | laid face down or face up | would wake up with pins and needles all up and down one leg or another
from my hip down. On the way to work in the morning I had to slap my face as | drove to stay awake. |
finished the year out because | was under contract and because | loved myREDACTED and wanted
them to have stability. 1 went to ear specialists who said | was ok. Finally | went to a top guy who
disoovered that the "ear pain" was really jaw pain, and he said it was due to “"emotional stress.”

Well, since the medical doctors were saying | was basically ok | began to look towards better
nutrition and personal arowth books to root out anv emotional stress. | was so ill hy the end of myREDACTED
year that REDACTED At REDACTED

REDACTED 3 mother actually came to talk to me and said her son was afraid that | was going to die and that
some of his little friends had said so too.

At year's end | had saved up $2500. and | did not take another R=P"°TEP assignment; 1 felt it would
kill me! For six months 1 lived at a friend’s house so | could live off my savings and tried to eat right and
exercise but still | didn't gain the weight | needed and:| was always tired. Finally 1 got a part-time jobina
field | liked but to my dismay there were many days when | barely had the mental and physical energy to
work in a satisfactory way. Even walking up one flight of steps winded me — and | had once been a runner
who placed in races!! It took every ounce of energy to work. On my off days | would try to eat right and rest.
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Welll wasn 't earning enough money this way, so | looked around for a work option where | could
work part-time and earn more. | found a great opportunity as aREDACTED There were no minimum
work days required and there were many psople on staff. it was great for me as it was $25/hr in stead of
$8./r. it was inREDACTEDind allowed me to continue building my resume as | got stronger. | decided that |
may always need such flexible work given the ill health I'd now experienced for 5 years, yet | was constantly
striving to get well and would save my money for doctor /nutritionist visits and for various health
supplements. | looked forward to being able to work full time again. | was working 34 days per week and
was beginning to catch up on bills when | began to lose the strength in my speaking voice. Within 5 months
my voice needed a 5 day rest after 3 days of teaching, then a rest after 1 day of teaching. | took two weeks
off. my throat felt fine. then | went in one day and my throat began to throb after just 4 hours. |1ook ten
days off to rest it, taught another day and the same thing happened. | felt like a strong hand was squeezing
my throat tightly. My throat was red and raw inside each time though | had no cold or fiu or bad health
habits. | moved home with my parents because | was not earning enough to keep a home of my own.

That winter | began to experience horrible emotional pain, but it was weird because it wasn't
connected to any particular situation or person. And it was heavy, so heavy that | begen to have suicidal
thoughts. | was standing outside REDACTED pfter mass and was walking towards my car and | wanted to
kesp going and walk straight into traffic. | was really scared by such thoughts and thought I'd better get a
*change of scene”, fast.

A friend who saw me struggling offered to let me live with her for 3 months for $100/month rent. |
gladly accepted, but the heavy pain stayed with me and | felt sick all the time and was exhausted. |<=P"°™="
only 10 days a month—it was all my throat would handle.

I was deeply embarrassediobe  and so ridiculous. Where was my career? What about the
property and home [ had planned for? Why could | bond with friends and then just leave? Why didn't 1
*snap out of it?” Why hadn’t | filed my taxes? Why couldn't people count on me anymore? Why could | only
afford clothes from the Goodwill? Why was | broke? Why was | so weak and out of shape when | had been
* such an athlete?
Why didn't | visit my grandparents, when we had once been so close?

t needed health insurance but couldn’t work full fime and wasn’t earning enough to pay for it on my
own. [ thought | must be seriously character flawed and began reading books by Christian psychologists in
addition to prayer and confession. In January | attended a seminar and heard about clinical depression.
The psychologist presenter said that there was an lliness that looked like laziness but was not. He said
people really sick with this literally could not get out of bed until 12:00 noon. | wondered if this could be me.
Later | read in his bock that the *"JUST FORGET ABOUT IT” approach to emotional pain can induce such
severe clinical depression that the person neads to be hospitalized. He wrote about how it takes
tremendous energy to function and that the motivation to live can be taken away through unprocessed
traumatic feelings and sorrow.

Was it possible that | wasn't a character—flawed flake making years of bad decisions but that | had
lost my health and motivation through “forgetting” some trauma or grief? As | began to ponder this I noticed
that | was feeling irritated at mass—! didn't know why. Maybe | should re-think my Chiristian life, | thought—
review it for my seif from the ground up.

Someone, who saw me continually sick, loaned me a video about health by REDACTED
M.D. She shared her scientific findings and case studies regarding women with serious physical pain and
illness who were not cured by medicine but were cured by addressing serious emotional issues. | was
watching the tape hoping to find a cure for my painful periods and weak throat. Dr.REDACTED, gaid that
emotional negation especially in the teenage years can wreak havoc on a young woman’s physical health
years later. BINGO — at that moment | thought about BMHS and | felt angry and started to cry at the same
moment—i had felt completely negated back then.

Later that week | was going through the What Color Is Your Parachute book to choose a new line of
work because | realized that since | couldn't talk | couldn't teach. Inside was an exercise to find fulfilling
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work. The method was to chart your life over the years in certain key areas to discern in high points your
natural gifts and interests. it was after plotting out my life that | noticed a sharp drop and change from age 15
on. . ‘

i bagan to pray deeply about this and considered what | had read about how just "forgetting the
past” can lead to serious depression. What was going on with me at age fifteen? — Fr. Nocita. 1 didn't want
to look at it but | was desperate o be wel! and have a normal fife again. So | journaled about my angry
feelings and | chose to forgive completely. |1 went to a healing mass and when the priest laid his hands on
me | prayed from the core of my being for Fr. Nocita and wished for him every good thing a man could want.
When | opened my eyes my anger was gone.

However | was still ill. | was still too ill to work enough to get my own piéice and for 3 months | was
quasi-homsless never knowmg where | would stay next, keeping my clothes ahd things in my car, sleeping
on couches, on floors, and in situations where | felt in danger all through the night. Sometimes | house-sat
and was always sad to leave and just pack everything up into my car.

Finally in July 2001 | found a great place and moved in. Within weeks | found REDACTED _ vork |
could do that gave my throat a break. It was only $10/hr but it was a start. | put up goals as | used fo doin
the days when | was so successful. [ worked part-time and within 6 weeks was up to 32 hours per week, |
was exhausted though and would need to nap on the days | didn't work. | continued to read books on
emotional healing as | had no money for a psychologist. Why was | still sick?

A taste of Paradise---healthy and whole again

Suddenly one day in prayer [ felt led by the Holy Spirit to look at my Fr. Nocita experience. | prayed
and took out Fr. Nocita's photo. | thanked God that the anger I'd felt for him was gone. | remembered the
good things about high school and about him and decided o keep these fresh in my mind.

| remember | was standing by a window looking outside at the time. Suddenly the sunshine outside
seemed twice as bright! | felt a physical change in my body. it felt like every cell of my body was filling with
energy. !felt healing move from the center of my chest through my whole bady! 1felt like a great weight
was lifted from my heart and mind.

| drove towards church and was alert and full of energy. When | saw my boyfriend | folt twice as
much love for him! Within the next two weeks | suddenly was able to sleep, and pain began to leave my
body. 1had energy all day! 1 felt naturally interested in other peoples’ well-being, instead of having to work
atit

Within two weeks | couldn't feel my ribs anymore. My face filled out and | looked years younger and
pretty. |was motivated and hopeful and was suddenly interested in my old hobbies. | thought “Never again
will | shut out this part of my life. I'l just let it go and realize that I've got the rest of my life ahead of me.” |
was truly amazed at the physical health that was suddenly back. [ felt "ok” at church again and began to
reach out to parishioners. | didn't feel like they had to understand my "Catholic frauma" | had just let go.

At age 14, entering BMHS, | felt like a freight train. Years of discipline and focus had allowed me to
develop talents that God gave me. Love had given me the security and temerity to succeed. | felt like a
heavy freight train moving fast. Obstacles didn't stop me. Now [ had all that back. |felt like, back then my
train must have derailed and all these years | was just a ione person trying to move heavy loads without a
train, but now | was back. - Everything felt like it had before. My mind felt sharp and bright. | began to see
the Latin roots in words and | was able to concentrate. | thought Yipee I'll be able to leamn languages as I've
wanted to. |felt whole and like | could choose a career that fit.

After 8 years of physical iliness and no motivation and feeling isolated around people | was well! i
was prettyl 1 was able to gain weight! 1 had hope! | would be able to work full-time and pull out of poverty!
I'd be able to marry and have children! I'd be able to run and swim and skate again. I'd be able to be
comfortably Catholic.
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But It didn’t last...
To my total dismay, this renaissance did not last.

Instead, one Sunday at mass, the priest was consecrating and | felt the most plercing pain like a
lance through my chest. That night | woke up suddenly and “saw” Fr. Nocita’s face, Suddaenly [ felt this
download of feelings, memories and thoughts. | began to sob and shake without willing it. It felt like my
head was a baseball and it was being slammed back and forth by two basebell bats. On the one side were
all the romantic attentions of Fr. Nocita, on the other his platonic assertions and those of other aduits in my
life at that time. | sobbed and shook so heavily that the bed shook beneath me. | was alone and felt like |
was drowning in the ocean. .

. The next day | tried to shake it off and go on with life.. But in the next eight days | could not eat. I'd
eat a litte food and it would drop like a stone in my stomach and sit there undigested. 1 had to have soda
with little bites of food to get anything down, and my teeth began to ache and hurt though they had been fine
before.

Qver the course of several weeks | would wake up in the night crying and at Sunday mass | would
be happy focusing on the mass and then—POW—almost burst out sobbing in loud cries about Fr. Nocita.

Not a Conscious Process

This was not a conscious process. It was waking up inside me until | couldn’t get away day or night.
My body began to ache and hurt badly and sporadically all over in many different ways. By December,
when | was at mass with my boyfriend, he laid three fingers very gently on my shoulder and a shudder of
pain went through my whole body down to my feet. At the Christmas tree lot on PCH | had a thought again
about walking into traffic. | was enguifed in pain and prayed for Christ to save me. By early Januavy, | was

- unable to work at all, even my hands quit working. The followmg is a record from the time to give you an

idea of what went on:

Note: This is a quick and rough statement dictated byREDACTED and typed by=™“"™ late on Thursday night
(January 17, 2002.) Itis notintended to have perfect grammar or flow, but merely to simply convey some
general circumstances.

REDACTED ig in a severe life crigls. There are five main areas of concem:

1. Emotiopal. Fesling crazy, contlicting emotions, | experience frequent overwhelming grief that wells

upin the midst of work, church attendance, and conversation with others. This is grief and confusion which |
cannot seem to tum off. It comes out whether I'm thinking about that past episode of my life or not.

2. Physical. Extreme loss of appetite, often only one smali meal per day. Interrupted sleep either
through physical body pain in various joints, back or neck, or just wake up upsst in the middle of the night.

Frequent bouts of extreme TMJ pain — sudden onset. Joints seem to be shutting down on me.
Hips, knees, ankles, shoulders, wrists. Three times in the past three and a half weeks I've had to suddenly
stop walking due to right hip joint suddenly in pain and not responding. Back and neck have frozen up
requiring me to leave work for a day to two days, and has kept me up many nights with the same. For four
weeks severely incapacitated use of left shoulder and eventually left wrist which rendered me unable to
draw or write except briefly. Body feels very weak. Loosing strength to lift objects such as water containers,
telephone.
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Exiremely painful periods since age sixdeen and a half. Some relief if | can maintain a specific diet
with magnesium and "Optivite” mulfi-vitamin supplementation. I'm having a lot of trouble doing this these
past four months due to loss of income, loss of appetite, and therefore inadequate diet and extremaly
reduced supplementatlon

. Six years ago went through extreme emotional crisis that lasted sighteen months. During this

period | lost most of my muscle strength which | had built up and during this time 1 first experienced many of
the debilitating symptoms which | listed above. Over the years | have been gradually pulling out of this poor
heaith, but with the reawakening of this emotional trauma, all these symptoms are back in full force and | am
in even worse shape then back then.

Prior to this August, 2001 | had been gaining weight and feeling better overall with very liftle joint
pain, very littie TMJ pain and was enjoying good sound slesp until I'woke up one night in August with a
* horribly potent remembrance of my high school days. Since that time I've been experiencing physical
shutdown on a daily and sometimes nightly basis.

During the past five months | have not been getting good sleep. Out of the last 150 nights I've only
had about thirty nights of sound restful sieep. Often Since the night when | woke up in August I've noticed a
loss in physical beauty, a change in my skin tone, and frequently deep circles sometimes reddish under my
eyes. Many comments from women | know who on seeing me look shocked and worried and ask what's
wrong, or “you laok so tired", “are you okay" things like that.

3. Einancial. 1 haven't been doing that well in this area for the past six years, but in the past five
months, this has reached a crisis level. | barely have anough money for food and rent and frequently eat
with friends since | don't have enough money for groceries. | probably have averaged an income of $800
per month by doing temporary work here and there. I've had financial assistance from family and friends in
the form of small monetary gifts and loans to make up the deficit.

4, Functional. Between the lack of sleep and the ever-present emotional pain I'm not doing well in the
work environment. I'm moody, forgetful and now I'm having a hard time doing simple tasks such as telling
time, remembering what month it is, etc. I've never had an auto accident in my eight years of driving and in
the past five weeks I've had five ciose calls on the road. Also twice I've been crossing the street and
suddenly noticed a car heading right towards me. This has occurred in the Riviera Village which |
am quite familiar with and both times | feel that | neglected unknowingly to look at all lanes before
crossing the stroet.

5. . Relational. I'm noticing that | am withdrawing from family and friends. 'm trying not to do this, but |
am just feeling so embarrassed in not being able to say, "Oh I'm fine. I'm good.” Normally | have a healthy
interest in others and enjoy spending time with them.

itis very clear to me that | am in over my'- head and that I'm not going to make it without very good
professional care in several areas and without the financial and emotional support of friends.
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In Summary

In Januarv my bovfriend paid for a visit with a psvcholoaist. REDACTED

REDACTED

I won't go into detail about January through today, but have aliuded to it earlier in this report. I've
caome a long way but I'm not out of the woods yet. i

I'm still quite malnoun'shed and easily fatigued. | haven't been able to do decent exercise and my
muscles are so weak that my feet and legs are often in pain from the imbalance that exists from my earfier
birth defect and surgery. In all the years of my competitive sports | was ok but now the shoes | wear cause
pain up into my ankles, and | don't have the means to get the shoes,. physical thierapy and orthotics | need.

My painful periods may have recently been cured by a healer who connected pain in that area with
suppressed emotional pain from my Fr. Nocita episode. After years of trying traditional medicine and special
diets etc.. maybe this was it all along? | don’t know, but if it was, what a shamel

_ Thank you for reading my story. | hope you will give me the help | need. | hope that sharing with
you so personally will help other people and our church and maybe even our priests, 1really have done
everything | could on my own and with God and friends to overcome this; coming to you is a cry for help.

| just want to be back ta the high level of functioning I've enpyed in my life. The way | have been

: hvnng hasn't been “living” at all. | want to be healthy and young again.
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Hello.

I am writing this on behalf of my wife’s friend and mine,REDACTED T have met
and spoken withREDACTED on a number of occasions in social situations with my wife
over the course of several years. Ihave always found her to be a bright and engaging
person, although I'suspected quite fragile. As I have seen her life unravel over the last
year, as her personal struggles have increasingly become a concern for my wife and
myself, and as the details of the things which have burdened her still young life

become clearer to us, I am moved to make an appeal to all that is good and Christlike
in anyone who is involved with REDACTED struggle today. I'm not a counselor or a
lawyer, I’m anREDACTED T write as a husband, as a father of REDACTED and as a
REDACTED -~~~ . Istand to gain nothing but the joy in seeing Godly justice
and healing take place in REDACTEDD life and in the life of my church. My prayers are for
every person who had a role in these events and for you, that you may have the same
wisdom God bestowed upon Solomon.

T am certain that'REDACTED) narrative is as powerful and emotion wrenching for you
as it is for me. What are we to make of it? The story of a charismatic young priest, too
free in his thinking in a time when free thinking was the order of the day,
not fully prepared for the challenges of priestly life; and an attractive young woman.
Were that young woman to be 21 we would have the stuff of cheap dime store
pulp romance. Perhaps it was such romantic flights that blinded people around them to
the fact that this was a 14 YEAR OLD GIRL!! As read the statements Fr. Nocita
made to this 14 year old girl the anger of an older man helplessly viewing the folly of
a younger man rises up inside of me. His public teaching to his class about the
unadulterated goodness of physical affection, devoid of any clear discussion of mitigating
issues like age and social roles, accepted (with good reason) standards of propriety,
sensitivity to the unique emotional structure of each person in each stage of their lives;
in joy or in grief, in pain and in innocence, this particularly rankles me because it shows
us the pure foolishness of the man when he is out in the open and not furtively trying to
hide it. Believe me I know what it is to advocate an asinine view, and what it is to live
long enough to cringe with regret. It is his practice of these wrongheaded beliefs that
brings us this bitter fruit that we taste today, that REDACTED {gsted then, and has been
forced to taste ever since. Forced, you say, by what? By the merciless persistence of
memory, by the stabbing pain of being dismissed as a troublemaker by people who can’t
possibly bring themselves to believe that a popular Catholic priest could in reality be
a pathetically weak-minded and weak-willed man, by parents whose laudable devotion to
their church blinded them to this tumor that was planted in the heart of their daughter’s
young life. Is there a father or mother or brother or sister among you that would wish
such “priestly” affection for their daughters or sisters? Was there a time in your life
when you ever thought such behavior would be “cute™ or acceptable? If you’re in such
a position of responsibility as to be reviewing these pages I suspect the answer is no,
not ever, not once. Do you know what it is like to not be able to get a bitter taste out of
your mouth? To have an open wound that refuses to heal? To desire a wholesome and
healthy, free and unfettered joyful relationship with your church and its people, and to
have it always maimed on the field of fear and mistrust. What would it be like for

REDACTED now to hear these words: “My God how we have wronged you and how bitterly

Xl 000076



sorry we are. You were just a unarmed kid with no defense against the force of this man’s
personality. You had no way of knowing, but we should have known. We should have
known better. We treated you as if you were the problem because your truth would

upset all the tiny little lies we were comforting ourselves with, justifying ourselves with.
We beg your forgiveness and we want you to know that what was made wrong will be
made right again. We will move heaven and earth, but it will be made right.”?

As 1 see it there are three major themes of importance in this tragic story. The first
of course is the theme of a wayward young priest. One might reasonably argue that he
was a bad apple and that we can’t be always expected to figure that out before he does
something bad. With some important reservations I could say fair enough. My
understanding is that he is no longer in the priesthood. Fine. I pray that he has found
peace with himself and with God. The second theme is of the adults around this situation
at the time and their failure to recognize this abuse and their lack of moral courage,
perhaps, and it amazes me to even say this of Catholic people, their lack of moral

definition, It seems improbable, but true, that not one person stood up to shout loudly
and say this stops right here and right now. And yet these failures too can be reasonably
seen as isolated; regrettable, but unavoidable. Fine. Fair enough.

The third theme coticerns how no one recognized the damage that was done to this
.young girl’s life. No one picked up on the falling grades, the depression, the distantness.
" It never dawned on anyone that an impressionable girl who had been seduced by such an
impressive man might need some extra attention or-counseling or therapeutic
intervention or something remotely human. Instead her crippled attempts to reach out for
support and understanding were met with derision, suspicion and denial. Her own parents
refused to take her seriously out of deference to the unassailable integrity of a Catholic
priest. There was no one to pick her up and explain what had happened, what it meant
and that she was not to blame. Fine? Fair enough? Never! One fact stands out about
this theme over and above the others. These failures can still be redressed. 1t is not too
late to be for REPACTED the church that personifies Christ’s love and healing.

We read with great dismay the disturbing accounts of abuses of young people by
Catholic priests in the papers every day. Personally I am one who still believesin
Christ’s power to redeem and forgive even the most lost sonls. I am proud that the
bishops of my church followed their Christian call to seek healing for these men through
both spiritual and modem therapeutic approaches. The knee-jerk second-guessing. that
they should have immediately been “cast into outer darkness” is not something I agree
with. Yet I must ask, while these men underwent their time of therapy and soul searching
were they still expected to.work a job 40 hours a week, pay the rent and utility bills, keep
the car gassed up and in good repair, do the cooking and cleaning for themselves, do their
own laundry, file their income taxes, etc.?REPACTED hag been valiantly keeping it together
for a long time, but of late the burden has simply become too much. I will leave it to her
therapist to outline her present state in detail. The bottom line is that this young woman
is in no condition to be carrying this load any longer alone. REDACTED on her own is trying
to do all the right things for herself. She has sought and found a good therapist and is
taking her part in it very seriously. She has found a modest and reasonably priced
bachelor apartment. She drives a small economical older car. As far as I can tell she has
eschewed any luxuries. She wants to get better. She needs help to do it. And really folks
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she doesn’t need just any help, she needs her church’s help. She needs to know that the
church that she loved as a young person is the church she always hoped it would be.
She has been disillusioned and disappointed, but has never deserted her church. She
continues to attend regular mass. Her commitment to. keeping to the teachings of the
church is rare I think. For her to know that the Roman Catholic Church finally sees and
understands and reaches out in compassion with real help and real recognition might
just be the most healing thing of all, How long will this take? How much will this cost?
My question to you is: will you have faith the size of a mustard seed?

Will you believe that God’s will is that this daughter of the church should not be lost to
despair and exhaustion? I have absolute confidence that God’s will is that she should be
returned to all of us as a productive, creative and inspiring witness to His goodness

and mercy and to that of His church. I'm asking you to join me in'this confidence.

Pick up the torch. Lead the way. '

with dasnact ramard and ninnosite:

REDACTED
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Closing Prayer

Father God, we praise You for your goodness and sacrifice for us in your
son, our Lord Jesus Christ. Thank you for saving me this year when [ thought |
was going to die. | ask Your blessing on all who read this, that through my
imperfect words You inspire them to do what You think is best.

Thank you for making me and Michasl. Please take care of him. You
have said you came to “bind up the broken hearted” and say “Behold | make all
things new;" | endured the cross this year, doing what was pleasing in your sight:
I claim these promises. Please give me a resurrection. | “sowed in tears of
mourning,” if it is your will, restore me as you did Job, let me “reap in sheaves of
joy.” :

| am'sorry for all my sin.- | am éorry for notv frusting You back then and
turning to hatred instead. You are good God. Make our schools safe, heal all
hurt in this way and show me your church. :

We praise You and rejoice that you are sovereign. | praise You for the -
way you are going to redeem this situation, bringing something fotally beautiful
out of this, for me, for Michael, for all of us and for our priests. | pray all this in
Jesus name, Amen.

Contact information
REDACTED
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Reference List

- Books (and speakers) I have come across over the years or which friends have

offered in thu tryl time that all substantiate, in speclﬁc ways, my claim. of 7he lendCr( this
5'(» 5‘ ka.u “' SM\M MJ__

Wecsche-der»Cruu, Sharon; Learging to Love Yourself

Cloud, Heary and John Townsend; 12 “Christian Beliefs That Can Drive You Craxy— Relief From
False Assumptions

Cloud, Heary and John Townsend; Boundaries—When to Say Yes, When to Say No, To Take
Control of Your Life ’

Cloud, Henry and John Townsend; Safe People —How To Flnd Relationships That Are Good For
You and Avpid Those That Aren’t

; LCan’t Get Over It —Help for Post Traumatic Stress Syndrome

Miller, Alice;

Townsend, John; Hiding from Love ~How To Change the Withdrawal Patterns That Isolate and
Imprison You

Lewis, Robert and William Hendricks; Rocking the Roles—Building a Win-Win Marriage

Bass, Ellen and Laura Davis; The Courage to Heal—A Guide for Women Survivors of Child Sexual
Abuse

Dobson, James; Love for a Lifetime

Northrup M.D., Dr.Christianne; Women's Bodics, Women's Wisdom

Morter, Ted; Your Health, Your Choice

Walker D.C., Scott; “Mind Memory and Body Memory”—{rom a medical journal
Pert, Candace; Whole Earth Review, Summer 88, page 109

Dr, Devi— pioneering research in removing food allergies in part through addressing repressed
emgctional pain

Miscellaneous research which shows that emotional trauma leaches magnesium from the body which
leads to an inability of the body to metabolize calcium, which leads to health degeneration.

Baroody, Theodore; Ph.D. Nutrition Alka
Acid Balance

Miscellaneaous research which shows that the negative emoﬁons of fear, anger and distrust change
the internal ph of the body, In long penods of such the altered ph allows plaque build-up on teeth, as
the natural plaque repelling feature gives way.
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‘ » » ‘ REDACTED 3424 ' Los Angeles .
Archdiocese of Los Angeles ) . Wilshire Caiifornia
Boulevard 90010-2202
VIA FACSIMILE

December 8, 2003

Detective James Brown

Los Angeles Police Department
- Sexually Exploited Child Unit

150 N. Los Angeles Street

Los Angeles, CA 90012

Re:  Additional Reports of Possible Abuse by Clergv
, Dear Detective BroWn:

As Tindicated in'my telephone call last week, the Archdiocese is reviewing its internal
records to confirm what' reports have been made to law enforcement agencies concerning
possible sexual abuse of minors by clergy. - -

"In reviewing the files, we found four individuals on whom we could not confirm whether
or not a report had been made. You indicated that, until recent years, your reports were
not in an automated format. Accordingly, without reviewing numerous report books, you
could not confirm or deny what had been reported. :

However, you were able to confirm that a report had been received and included in the

automated system for FatherREDACTED ~ This letter is being sent to report
the three other individuals, with the understanding that this report may duplicate earlier
Teports: .

1. REDACTED - R

i Remienss M dadu Afrhe Anaelc San Fernando  San Cabriel  San Pedro  Sanra Barbara
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) Michael S. Nocita - had assignments in various parishes and schools
-in the Archdiocese from his ordination in 1977 until he left the priesthood

in March 1991. There were allegations of inappropriate conduct with
young women, at least one of whom was a minor at the time of the
incident (1980-1982). This matter involved REDACTED (now
REDACTED ) and was reported to law enforcement in
1988. The allegations related to a romantic involvement but no. _
intercourse was asserted. In June 2002, REDACTED _, (current
address - REDACTED. o  reported the inappropriate
conduct. In November 2002, REDACTED reported that she was
emotionally traumatized by Michael Nocita in the mid 1980’s. We do not
have her address at hand. We will provide it supplementally if it is found.

REDACTED o -

If you need furthér information on any of the abové, please feel free to call me.

Yours very truly,

REDACTED

Enclosure

Xlii 000095
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. . R
¥ e ~ 1 =
TO: - File
 FROM: MOnsigrior Craig A. Cox
‘RE: ~ Michael Nocita _

. DATE: -3 June 2002.

I spoke with Michael Nocita on the phone today and summarized for him the essence of the
claims made by REDACTED . Thad indicated to him that I expected no -
response. All Michael said is that he was “very surprised” to hear of this complaint. .

He promised to stay in touch if he hears anything.
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00120 Citta del Vaticaro,

Palazzo del S. U‘Eﬁzip

11 April 2006

Pror. N. 656/2004.-.22738

U vesponsione fiat memtio buius nunert)

CONFIDENTIAL
Your Eminence,

On 27 February 2006 you presented and supported the petition, dated 7
December 2004, of the Rev. Michael S. NOCITA, a priest of the Archdiocese of
Los Angeles who has been accused of multiple acts of sexual abuse against minors
and has requested from the Holy Father the grace of dispensation from all the
obligations of the clerical state, including celibacy.

This Congregation, after having carefully examined the documents of the
present case and in light of the votum expressed by Your Excellency, decided on 6
April 2006 to forward the petition to the Holy Father for his decision.
Subsequently, on 7 April 2006, Pope Benedict XVI granted the Rev. Michael S.
Nocita the grace of dispensation iuxta petita, from all priestly obligations, including
celibacy. 'Enclosed you will find two copies of the relevant Decree. Your
Excellency is kindly requested to ensure that the priest is duly notified thereof. I
would ask you also to return one of the signed copies of the Decree to this Office.

With prayerful support and every best wish, I remain
Yours fraternally in the Lord,

William Card. LEVADA
Prefect

-Enclosures-

His Eminence -

Roger Cardinal MAHONY

Archbishop of Los Angeles

3424 Wilshire Boulevard

Los Angeles, CA 90010-2202 ' 409650
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

CCl1 005150



CONGREGATIO PRO DOCTRINA FIDEI

Prot. N. 656/2004
' Angelorum in California
(Los Angeles, U.S.A.)

D.nus Michael S. NOCITA, presbyter hujus arcidioecesis, humiliter petit
dispensationem ab omnibus oneribus sacrae Ordinationi conexis

Summus Pontifex Benedictus, Papa XVI
Die 7 m. aprilis a. 2006

habita relatione de casu a Congregatione pro Doctrina Fidei,
precibus praedicti sacerdotis annuit juxta sequentes rationes:

1. Dispensationis Rescriptum a competenti Ordinario oratori quamprimum notificandum
est:

a) Fius effectum sortitur a momento notificationis; ,
b) Rescriptum amplectitur inseparabiliter dispensationem a sacro coelibatu et simul
amissionem status clericalis. Nunquam oratori fas est duo illa elementa seiungere,
- seu prius accipere et alterum recusare;
c) Sivero orator est religiosus, Rescriptum concedit etiam dispensationem a votis;
d) Idemque insuper secumfert, quatenus opus sit, absolutionem a censuris.

2. Notificatio dispensationis fieri potest vel personaliter ab ipso Ordinario eiusve
delegato aut per ecclesiasticum actuarium vel per "epistulas praescriptas" (registered).
Ordinarius unum exemplar restituere debet rite ab oratore subsignatum ad fidem receptionis
Rescripti dispensationis ac simul acceptationis eiusdem praeceptorum.

3. Notitia concessae dispensationis adnotetur in Libris baptizatorum paroeciae
oratoris. ' '

4. Quod attinet, si casus ferat, ad celebrationem canonici matrimonii, applicandae

" sunt normae quae in Codice Iuris Canonici statuuntur. Ordinarius vero curet ut res caute
peragantur sine exteriore apparatu.

5. Auctoritas ecclesiastica, cui spectat Rescriptum oratori rite notificare, -hunc enixe
hortetur, ut vitam Populi Dei, ratione congruendi cum nova eius vivendi condicione,
participet, aedificationem praestet et ita probum Ecclesiae filium se exhibeat. Simul autem
eidem notum faciat ea quae sequuntur.

409651

RCALA 007216

CCl 005151



- RCALA 007217

a) Sacerdos dispensatus eo ipso amittit iura statui clericali propria, dignitates et
officia ecclesiastica; ceteris obligationibus cum’ statu clericali conexis non amplius
adstringitur; '
. b) exclusus manet ab exercitio sacri ministerii, iis exceptis de quibus in can. 976 et
986 § 2 CJC ac propterea nequit homiliam habere, nec potest officium gerere
directivum in ambitu pastorali neve munere administratoris paroecialls fungi;
c) item nullum munus absolvere potest in Seminariis et in Institutis aequiparatis. In aliis
Institutis studiorum gradus superioris, quae quocumque modo dependent ab Auctoritate
ecclesiastica, munere directivo fungi nequit;
d) in dliis vero Institutis studiorum gradus superioris ab Auctoritate ecclesiastica non
dependentibus nullam theologicam disciplinam tradere potest;
e) in Imstitutis autem studiorum gradus inferioris dependentibus ab Auctoritate
ecclesiastica, munere directivo vel officio docendi fungi nequit. Eadem lege tenetur
presbyter dimissus ac dispensatus in tradendo Religione in Institutis eiusdem generis
non dependentibus ab Auctoritate ecclesiastica.

6. Ordinarius curet ne presbyter dispensatus, propter defectum debitae prudentiae,
fidelibus scandalum praebeat. Haec pastoralis sollicitudo Ordinarium a fortiori gravissime ..
urget si adest periculum quamvis remotum minoribus abutendi.

7. Tempore autem opportuno, Ordinarius competens breviter ad Congregationem de
peracta notificatione referat, et si qua tandem fidelium admiratio adsit, prudenti explicatione

provideat,

Contrariis quibuscumaque mininie obstantibus.

Ex Aedibus Congregationis, die 7 m. aprilis a. 2006

Gulielmus Card. LEVADA
Praefectus

St

% Angelus AMATO, S.D.B.
Archiep. titularis Silensis
a Secretis

Dies notificationis

Subsignatio Presbyteri in signum ‘Subsignatio Ordinarii
acceptionis

409652

CCl 005152
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333839 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE, N.W.
WASHINGTCON, D.C, 20008-3687

APOSTOLIC NUNCIATURE
- UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

No. .. 117 March 2, 2006

This No. Should Be Prefixed to the Answer

Dear REDACTED

Thank you for your kind letter of February 28, 2006, with enclosure.

Rest assured that the sealed packet containing correspondence
regarding Reverend Michael S. Nocita, Prot. No. 25.830 will be duly
forwarded through the diplomatic pouch to Cardinal-designate William
Joseph Levada, Prefect, Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith.

With cordial 1'egardé and prayerful best wishes, I am

Sincerely yours in Christ,

éﬂ:&w Q@--.»Q»'

Archbishop Pietro Sambi
Apostolic Nuncio

REDACTED

Archdiocese of Los Angeles
3424 Wilshire Boulevard:
Los Angeles,. California 90010-2202

409653
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Gifice of the
‘icar for Canonical Semwices
Prone: {213} 637-7.
Fax: {213y 637-6358

Archdiccese of Los Angele

28 February 2006

The Most Reverend Gabriel Montalvo

Apostolic Nunciature to the United States of Amenca
3339 Massachusetts Avenue, N. W

Washlnoton D.C. 20008

RE:  Prot. No. 25.830
Rev. Michael S. Nocita
Graviora Delicta and Petition for Dispensation
from Clerical Obligations -

Your Excellency,

Enclosed is a letter, with attachments; from Cardinal Rogér Michael Mahony, Archbishop
of Los Angeles, addressed to Cardinal-Designate William Joseph Levada, Prefect of the Congre-
gation for the Doctrine of the Faith, regarding the above-captioned case.

I would respectfully ask you to forward these items to the Congregahon

With grat1’cude for your kind assistance in th1s matter, and assuring you of my prayerful
best wishes, I remain

Sincerely yours in Christ,
-REDACTED

(Enclosure) ~ ‘ | \

409654

Pastoral Regions:  Cur Lady of the Angels  San Femando  SanfGabriel  San Pedo
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. Los Angeles

- Caifornia
90010-2202

Archdiocese of Los Angeles

Boulsvare

(213; ¢37-728E

Re: The Reverend Michael S. Nocita

Graviora Delicta and Petition for
Dispensation from Clerical Obligations

27 February 2006

Cardinal-Designate William Joseph Levada

Prefect of the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith
00120 Vatican City

Your Eminence:

In a previous letter dated 19 November 2004, T had submitted the case of the Reverend Michael S. Nocita
to the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith; Father Nocita is a priest of the Archdiocese who has

been accused of graviora delicta which, in article 4 of Sacramentorum Sanctitatis Tutela, aré reserved to

the Congregation. At the time of that submission, I had not provided the necessary documentation to the
Congregation, as the preliminary investigation had not been concluded, nor was there then any indication
that Father Nocita — who had entered a civil marital union some years earlier — would petition our Holy
Father for a dispensation from the obligations of clerical celibacy. However, the following December,
Father Nocita did indeed address such a petition to the Holy Father, and said petition was duly forwarded
to the Congregation through the Apostolic Nunciature in Washington, D.C. that same month of December
2004 (copy of petition included with accompanying documentation).

As noted in my previous letter, Father Nocita has been accused of multiple episodes of sexual abuse of
minor girls. The initial evaluation of the claims advanced against Father Nocita showed that the accusa-
tions had the semblance of truth, wherefore a preliminary 1nvest1gat10n was begun; I herewith transmit to
the Congregation the results of that investigation. .

Enclosed also is my votum, addressed to His Holiness Pope Benedict X VI, regarding Father Nocita’s peti-
tion for a dispensation from clerical obligations. I respectfully seek the assistance of your good offices in
forwarding this votum, which is definitively in favor of granting the aforesaid petition, to its high destina-
tion, : :

With gratitude for your kind help, and with the agsurance of my prayers, I remain
Sincerely yours in Christ,

/1)
w@é

Cardinal Roger M. Mahony
Archbishop of Los Angeles g}'

v =y

Enclosures

409655
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Los Angeles
California
20010-2202

Archdiocese of Los Angeles

VOTUM OF THE ORDINARY OF INCARDINATION
CARDINAL ROGER MICHAEL MAHONY
ARCHBISHOP OF LOS ANGELES IN CALIFORNIA

Re: The Reverend Michael S. Nocita |

Graviora Delicta and Petition for
Dispensation from Clerical Obligations

27 February 2006

His Holiness Pope Benedict XVI
Apostolic Palace
00120 Vatican City

Your Holiness:

It is with sadness and a sense of urgency that I write with regard to the petition for dispensation
from the obligations of Holy Orders and clerical celibacy made freely by the Reverend Michael S.
Nocita, a priest of the Archdiocese of Los Angeles in California. (The original petition was sent to
Rome in December 2004, via the Apostolic Nunciature in Washington, DC; a copy of that original
document is attached hereto, together with a complete report of Father Nocita’s situation.)

Father Nocita, even before his ordination to the sacred priesthood, was involved in romantic and

- intimate relationships with teenage girls, and after ordination this pattern of behavior continued,
bringing harm to many members of God’s people. An unspecified serious indiscretion committed
by Michael Nocita before ordination to priesthood caused the Seminary faculty to recommend that
his ordination be delayed. Although lingering doubts and reservations about his su1tab1hty for
priesthood persisted, Michael Nocita was eventually ordamed

In 1988, the Archdiocese received the first report of imprudent contacts between Nocita and a teen-
age girl; the Archdiocese later came to learn that the relationship was intimate and continued for 2-

3 years. In 1990, the Archdiocese received a letter from a mother complaining about a relationship
between Nocita and her daughter that had begun when the girl was a 17—year—old student at the .
Catholic high school where F ather Nocita was serving as principal.

The following year, 1991, Father Nocita left the active ministry and accepted a position with a

secular employer. He was placed on inactive leave from the Archdiocese. ‘
i

409656
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, Votum of Cardinal Roger M. Mahony
Regarding the Reverend Michael S. Nocita
Page 2 of 2

" In December 2003, the Archdiocese was notified that two women had filed lawsuits against it,
claiming damages for sexual abuse perpetrated against them by Father Nocita when they were mi-
nors. Some years prior to this, Father Nocita had entered a civil marital urtion; that union perdures
to this day. » ’

Given Father Nocita’s past history of manipulative and abusive relationships with underage girls,
as well as the fact of his current civil marital union and secular employment, his presence in the
community as a Catholic priest runs the risk of causing confusion and scandal not only for our
Catholic people but also for other citizens of good will. Moreover, he has no desire, nor possibil-
ity, of returning to active ministry, and the pending civil litigation in which he is involved may
generate negative publicity. His laicization, therefore, could only redound to the good of the
Church; moreover, Father Nocita is himself convinced that a return to the lay state would also be in
his best interest, with a view to his spiritual Wclfare .

For these reasons, it appears imperative that the Church move promptly to protect the faithful from
further danger of outrage and scandal by decisively terminating Father Nocita’s status as a priest.
Accordingly, I hereby offer my vorum definitively IN FAVOR OF GRANTING THE AFORE-
SATD PETITION. '

With gratitude for your kind attention to this matter, and with the assurance of my prayers,'I remain

Smcerely yours in Christ,

iba"}:s; // vﬁfi

, inal Roger M. Mahony ff’
Archblshop of Los Angeles (/

Enclosures
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DIOCESE Los Angeles in California

NAME OF ORDINARY | Cardinal Roger M. Mahony

CDF PROT. No. 656/2004 — 21484

NAME OF CLERIC Reverend Michael S. Nocita
PERSONAL Date of Birth 4 May 1950 Age ) 55
DETAILS OF THE
CLERIC Ordination 10 June 1977 Years of ministry 14

ORIGINAL DIOCESE OF INCARDINATION

Los Angeles in California

MINISTRY IN/TRANSFER TO OTHER DIOCESE | None
CONTACT ADDRESS OF THE CLERIC REDACTED |
PROCURATOR (include ofiginal signed mandate) None
CONTACT ADDRESS OF THE PROCURATOR None

ASSIGNMENTS

1991

Year | Parish Location Appointment
1977 | Mary Star of the Sea . San Pedro, California Parochial Vicar
1980 | St. Paul High Schiool Santa Fe Springs, California Faculty
1980 | St. Bruno Whittier, California Residence
1982 2;;2%? Montgomery High Tofrance, California Faculty
| 1982 | Maria Regina ' Gardena, California Residence
1983 | American Martyrs Manhattan Beach Residence
1984 | Paraclete High Schooal Palmdale, California | Faculty
1984 | Sacred Heart L_ancastér, California Residence
1987 | Bishop Alemany High School | Mission Hills, California’ Faculty
1987 I(—)I?gthSaggogF gg;gg?; Angels Mission Hills, California Residence
1989 | St. Timothy Los Angeles, California Parochial Vicar
Inactive Leave
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ACCUSATIONS AGAINST THE CLERIC

Year | Victim Age | Imputable Acts Denunciation
Engaging in sexual talk to encourage
the girl to fall in love with him
REDACTED (including speaking of marrying her),
holding in a sexual manner for
1983 14 extended periods, kissing of face and 2002
head and ears, stroking and massaging
the girl’s hair and body, holding hands
and stroking the palm, romantic and
: sexual phone calls.
, x Digital penetration of the girl’s vagina,
! mutual oral copulation, forcing the giri | 2003,
to masturbate him, masturbating the although she
girl, fondling of genitals both over and | claims to
under clothing, fondling breasts and - have
1975 16 buttocks, kissing and sucking of informed
breasts, simulating intercourse and another priest
gjaculating on the girl, kissing of the in 1976, there
body, French kissing, using hymns, is no record
prayers and religious articles while of this.
engaging in the abuse.
. Pushed her head down to his genitals
1981 15 and atternpted to have sex with her, - 1988

CIVIL PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE CLERIC

Year | Type/Case Conviction Sentence (include copies of civil documents)
Civil lawsuit for damages
2003 | (BC308295REDACTED and pending
REDACTED .

MEASURES ADOPTED BY THE DIOCESE

Year

Faculties of Father Nocita formally revoked. He had been out of service for many years, but

2000 | previously there had been no formal revocation,

SUSTENANCE PROVIDED BY THE DIOCESE TO THE CLERIC

Transitional assistance at the time he sought a leave of absence in 1991.

RESPONSE/RECOURSE MADE BY THE CLERIC

Year

2004

Petition addressed to Holy Father seeking voluntary laicization
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BISHOP’S VOTUM

Given Father Nocita's history of manipulative and abusive relationships with underage girls, as well as the
fact of his current civil marital union and secular employment, his presence in the community as a Catholic
priest runs the risk of causing confusion and scandal not only for the Catholic faithful but also for other
citizens of good will. Moreover, he has no desire, nor possibility, of returning to active ministry, and the
pending civil litigation in which he is involved may generate negative publicity. His laicization, therefore,
could only redound to the good of the Church; moreover, Father Nocita is himself convinced that a return
to the lay state would also be in his best interest, with a view to his spiritual welfare. '

For these reasons, it appears imperative that the Chiurch move prormptly to protect the faithful from further
danger of outrage and scandal by dscisively terminating Father Nocita's status as a priest. Accordingly,
and since Father Nocita has voluntarily petitioned the Holy Father for laicization, the votum expressed is
definitively IN FAVOR OF GRANTING THE AFORESAID PETITION.
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REPORT

Results of Preliminary Investigation of Graviora Delicta
Allegedly Committed by the Reverend Michael S. Nocita

SPECIES FACTI

The Reverend Michael S. Nocita was born on 4 May 1950 and was ordained a priest
for service in the Archdiocese of Los Angeles on 10 June 1977; his ordination to priesthood
had been delayed because of serious questions about his maturity and readiness to undextake
the sacred ministry, -

After ordination, Nocita served as Parochlal Vicar in Mary Star of the Sea Parish (San

Pedro, CA, 1977-1980) and in St. Timothy Parish (Los Angeles, CA, 1989-1991). In the in-

tervening years he served as a faculty member of St. Paul High School (Santa Fe Springs, CA,
1980-1982) and of Bishop Montgomery High School (Torrance, CA, 1982-1984), and as prin-
cipal of Paraclete High School (Palmdale, CA, 1984-1987) ahd of Bishop Alemany High
School (Mission Hills, CA, 1987-1989). In 1991, Nocﬁa abandoned the active ministry and
was placed on inactive leave.

In 1988, the Archdiocese received the first report of imprudent contacts between No- -

" ¢ita and a teenage girl; it was reported that in 1980-1982 Nocita was intimate with a young girl
‘named REDACTED Two years later, the Archdiocese r«sceww| o dofter from a mother
complaining about a relationship between Nocita and her daughter that had begun
when the girl was a 17-year-old student at Alemany High School.
In December 2003, the Archdiocese was notified thatREDACTED  and
REDACTEDYad filed lawsuits against it, claiming damages for sexual abuse perpetrated agamst
them by Nocrca when they were minors.

IN FACTO

Everythz'ng. presented here is drawn from documents on file in the archives of the Curia of the

Archdiocese of Los Angeles, copies of which are attached heveto as numbered Exhibits.

Alleged chtlm No. 1; REDACTED b REDACTED 1958, 16-17 years old at time of al-
leged abuse =

. The victim claims that, while-a parishioner at St. Bridget of Sweden Church where
Nocita was assigned as a deacon, she was sexually abused by Nacita from about October 1975
until about September 1976. She met Nocita when she was upset and depressed at having
broken up with her boyfriend; she was in her room crying and her mother, who was preparing
an early dinner for Nocita (who was the new deacon at St. Bridget’s), asked Nocita to go up
and talk to the victim. The abuse started on that occasion.

The abuse allegedly occurred numerous times every weék and included: digital pene-
tration of victim’s vagina by Nocita; oral copulation by Nocita and oral copulation performed
on Nocita; victim being forced to masturbate Nocita; Nocita fondling victim’s genitalia,
breasts and buttocks; Nocita kissing and sucking victim’s breasts; simulation of intercourse;
Nocita hugging and kissing victim in a sexual manner. The abuse is reported to have taken
place in various locations including: the victim’s home, the sacristy at St. Bridget of Sweden
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Michael S. Nocita
Report of graviora delicta.
Page 2 of 4

Church, Nocita’s room at St. John's Seminary, Nocita’s parerits’ house (see Exhibit 1, Media-
tion Document forREDACTED

Alleged Victim No, 2: RE_DACTED _ birthdate unrecorded, 15-18 years old at time of
alleged abuse

In 1988, a report was made to police by a therapist concerning allegations of sexual
abuse by Nocita againstREDACTED then 23 years old, who had told the therapist that
she had fallen in love with Nocita and had been intimate with him in 1980-1982. The L.A.
Sheriff’s Department, to whom the report had been made, would not pursue the matter crimi-
nally because the statue of limitations had expired. An L.A. Sheriff’s Department Detective
spoke to archdiocesan authorities about the report (see Exhibit 2, Memorandum of 19 April
1988).

: In May 2002, the Diocese of Sacramento contacted the Archdioecase of Tos Angeles

regarding communications witREDACTED in which TED;poke of the
sexual abuse she allegedly suffered from Nocita, REDACTED
year-old sophomore at St. Paul High School in Santa Fe Springs, Nocita began a relationship

with her that continued until shortly after she finished high school. The abuse included; No-
cita touching REDACTED breasts; kissing her; pushing her head down to his genitals; lyingon

top of her while ‘both were clad only in their undergarments, the victim without her bra; at-

- tempting to have intercourse with victim; Nocita stating that he loved the victim and that he
wanted them to be together (see Exhibit 3, Letter of 23 May 2002).

' The following month of June, Nocita was informed of the accusations made by the

victim and he indicated that he was very surprised to hear of them (see Exhibit 4, File Memo

of 3 June 2002).

Alleged Victim No. 3: REDACTED  born "**°™ 1969, 14-15 years old at time of al-
leged abuse ' '
REDACTED et Nocita when she entered Bishop Montgomery High School as a fresh-

man at 14 years of age. She reports that he went to great pains to have her fall in love with
him. Abusive actions included: holding her close, in a sexual manner; bumping up against

her buttocks with the front of his pelvis; leaning his body against her body; kissing her face

and head; moving his lips against her ears; stroking her hair, face and arms in a sexual man-
ner; rubbing and massaging her body over her clothes; holding her hand; engaging in sexual
and romantic talk with her,

AfterREDACTED  teshman year, Nocita was transferred from Bishop Montgomery
High School, but he continued to exchange phone callsR\é/E)f/lCEEQCTED, at times making roman-
tic or sexual comments. By the time she was a senior, had grown bitter and ambiva-
lent towards Nocita, resenting him for having stolen her high school years (see Exhibit 5, Me-
diation Document for REDACTED ).

Adminicula

After being ordained to the diaconate and subsequently called for ordination to the
priesthood, Nocita'’s priestly ordination was delayed because of questions about his maturity
and readiness for priesthood (see Exhibit 6, Correspondence regarding Nogita’s Suitability for
Ordination, September-December 1976). An unspecified “serious indiscretion” committed by
Nocita raised grave concerns, and the Seminary faculty was unable to recommend Nocita for
ordination to the priesthood (see Exhibit 7, Letter to Cardinal Mannmg, 16 February 1977).
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Michael S. Nocita
Report of graviora delicta
Page 3 of 4

Cardinal Manning met with Nocita, was favorably impressed by him ‘and recom-
mended that he meet informally with some of the Seminary faculty to discuss their doubts in
his regard (see Exhibit 8, Letter of Cardinal Manning, 2 March 1977). This informal meeting

took place, but did not resolve the doubts that were present: after the meeting, the Rector -

found that “basic questions concerning his maturity, open-mindedness, prudence and self-
perception” still remained; the Academic Dean opined that while Nocita “is far from a perfect
candidate ... [he] probably has sufficient qualities to be ordained. This is my opmlcn that is,
a judgment coupled with fear of error. Iam still convinced, however, that haste in ordaining
him is not desirable. I think that December of this year should be the earliest time for ordina-
tion to the priesthood” (see Exhibit 9, Letters to Cardinal Manning, 19 April 1977). These
doubts and reservatlons notw1thstandmg, Nocita was ordained to the priesthood ]ess than two
months later. -

In October 1990, archdiocesan authorities received a letter from REDACTED who
was outraged and alarmed that Nocita — 40 years old and a pnest ~— had been dating her 20-
year-old daughter ™™ lavishing expensive gifts on her and saying he would marry her. The
relationship between the two evidently began while™™ ™ was a senior at Alemany High School

“and Nocita was the principal, REDACTEDexpressed great worry that Nocita “is emotionally de-
" stroying my daughter”; she judged him to be “very confused about himself, both as a priest
and one who is in a mid-life transition”. She concluded by saying: “this one priest has the
power to destroy my family and my hopes and dreams for my daughter. $he is no match for
his convincing manner, analogies and powers of persuasion” (see Exh1b1t 10, Letter of Mrs,
REDACTED 30 April 1990).

Later that same year, further complaints prompted great concern in archdiocesan au-
thorities, who noted that there were reports of Cardinal Manning having been asked not to or-
dain Nocita because of his involvement with women; these same archdiocesan authorities
voiced fears that Nocita might be obsessed with having relationships with young women (see
Exhibit 11, Memorandum and Correspondence of December 1990). _

The following year, 1991, Nocita left the active ministry and was placed on inactive
leave (see Exhibit 12, Memorandum of 29 March 1991); Nocita had earlier accepted secular
employment, and was quoted in a press report as saying — falsely — that “the Church was
open about this [his secular employment], 1 left in good standing” (see Exhibit 13, Article
from La Caflada Valley Sun, 28 February 1991). Because of the lack of truth in the statement
as reported in the media, and because Nocita’s new position had him workihg with young chil-
dren, the Archdiocese insisted that Nocita inform his employer of the inhcorrectness of the
statements he made and that a letter be sent by his employer to the Archdiocese acknowledg-
ing the.inaccuracy of the statements made by Nocita; in this way the' Archdiocese would be
protected in the event of future allegations concerning Nocita and there would be a letter from
Nocita’s employer correcting the public record (see Exhibit 14, Memoranda of March 1991).
Nocita did as had been requested of him, and his employer sent the Archdiocese a letter ac-
knowledging that Nocita had accepted his new position “without any khowledge by proper
authority within the Archdiocese of Los Angeles” (see Exhibit 15, Letter from La Cafiada
Youth House — Community Center, 25 March 199 D).

In October 2003, a decree was issued revoking the faculties formerly entrusted to No-

cita (see Exhibit 16. Decree of 23. October 2003), and at the end of that same year,REDACTED

RepacTED snd REDACTED  (Alleged Victims Nos, 1 and 3 above) filed a civil lawsuit
" against the Archdiocese claiming damages for the sexual abuse allegedly suffered at the hands
of Nocita (see Exhibit 17, Record of Lawsuit Filed 23 December 2003 before the Superior
Court of the State of California). Some years earlier, Nocita had entered into a civil marital

union.
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Michael 8. Nocita
Report of graviora delicta
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In December 2004, Nocita addressed a petition to His Holiness Pope John Paul I
seeking a dispensation from the obligations of the sacred order of priesthood and the related
obligations of the clerical state. Said petition was transmitted to the Apostolic Nunciature in
Washington, DC, which then forwarded it to the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith in
Rome (see Exhibit 18, Petition for Laicization and Related Correspondence, December 2004),

CONCLUSION

From the evidence brought forth in the preliminary investigation it appears likely that
delicts, as described in canon 2359 §2 and §3 of the 1917 Codes, have been committed. How-
ever, since the 1983 Code has'suppressed reference to the deli¢ts mentioned in canon 2359 §3
of the 1917 Code, and as per the prescriptions of canon 6 §1, 4° and canon 1313 of the 1983
Code, these delicts are no longer to be imputed, but only the delicts mentioned in canon 2359
§2 of the previous Code, since these are maintained in canon 1395 §2 of the present Code.
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CONGREGATIO 00120 Citta del Vaticano,
PRO DOCTRINA FIDEI Palazzo del §. Uffizio

- 25 July 2005

Prot. N. 656/2004_2 1 484

(Inn responsione fiat mentio husus numeri)

CONFIDENTIAL

Reverend and Dear Father Cox,

The Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith has received your inquiry
regarding the case of the Rev. Michael S. NOCITA, a priest of the Archdiocese of
Los Angeles, who has been accused of the sexual abuse of minors. You have asked
if this Dicastery has received the cleric’s request for a dispensation from the
obligations of priesthood, including celibacy.

I would call your attention to the letter sent to His Eminence, Roger Cardinal
Mahony on 10 June 2005. The aforementioned request for dispensation was
received by this Office. In ordei, however, to prepaie 7 petition for presentation to
the Holy Father the complete Acta of a case are necessary so that His Holiness is
fully apprised of the particulars of the situation as he exercises his grave
responsibility in making a decision in this most serious matter.

With prayerful support and best wishes, I remain,

Sincerely yours in Christ,

Father Joseph Augustine DINOIA, O.P.
Under-Secretary

Rev. Mons. Craig A. COX
Archdiocese of Los Angeles

3424 Wilshire Blvd.

Los Angeles, CA 90010-2241
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
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CONGREGATIO 00120 Cirta del Vutz'mll.o, 13 June 2005
PRO DOCTRINA FIDEI Palazzo del S. Uffizio

656/2004 — 21300

PROT. N\ cesmmcsremsssressssine

(In responsione fiat mentio hutus numets)

CONFIDENTIAL

Your Eminence,

The Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith received on 27 November 2004 the case
regarding the alleged sexual abuse of a minor by Reverend Michael NOCITA, a priest of the
Archdiocese of Los Angeles. Your Eminence submitted a summary of the case and indicated that
you would forward the evidence under separate cover.

On 18 December 2004, the Apostolic Nuntiature in the United States of America forwarded
to this Dicastery the signed petition of Rev. Nocita requesting a dispensation from the obligations of
the clerical state.

In order for the Congregation to examine this case and submit to the Holy Father this request
for dispensation, we request the complete 4cfa of the case. Though written summaries are helpful,
actual documents are necessary and each element of the summary that you have already submitted
should be supported by the relevant documentation either in the original form or in an authentic

copy.

, In addition to the requested information, it would also be important to the Congregation to
have your Votum in the matter as this is essential in our study of the case.

With prayerful support and best wishes, I remain

Yours sincerely in Christ,

; -
Sme———
HAngelo AMATO, SDB

Titular Archbishop of Sila
Secretary

His Eminence

Roger Cardinal MAHONY
Archbishop of Los Angeles

3424 Wilshire Boulevard

Los Angeles, California 90010-2202
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
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33392 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE, N.W.
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20008-3687

APOSTOLIC NUNCIATURE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

25.830 December 13, 2004

This No. Should Be Prefized to the Answer

Dear Monsignor Cox:

I acknowledge your kind letter of December 10, 2004,
with enclosure.

Rest assured that the petition of Reverend Michael
S. Nocita for a dispensation from clerical obligations will be
duly forwarded through the diplomatic pouch to His Eminence,
Joseph Cardinal Ratzinger, Prefect, Congregation for the
Doctrine of the Faith.

With cordial regards and best wishes, I remain
Sincerely yours in Christ,

Lol s

Archbishop Gabriel Montalvo
Apostolic Nuncio

Monsignor Craig A. Cox, J.C.D.
Vicar for Clergy

Archdiocese of Los Angeles
3424 Wilshire Boulevard

Los Angeles, CA 90010-2241

409667

RF{‘\TJ\TX T"—“T‘}
DEC 2 0 2004

'F}Y e

CCI1 005167



"RCALA 007233

N \

Office of 3424 Los Angeles
Archdiocese of Los Angeles Mear for Clergy Wilshire California

{213) 637-7284 Boulevard 90010-2202

December 10, 2004

REDACTED

Apostolic Nunciature
3339 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20008

RE: Reverend Michael S. Nocita (Nunciature Prot. No. 25.830)

Your Excellency:
On November 21, 2004, you assisted us by forwarding to the Congregation of the Doctrine of the
Faith a packet of materials related to Reverend Michael S. Nocita. T am most grateful for the

assistance you provided.

Enclosed, please find the petition of Father Nocita seeking a dispensation from clerical
obligations. - Would you please be so kind as to forward this to the Congregation on our behalf?

Thank you very much for your kind attention to this matter. May God continue to bless you!

Yours in Christ,
1 - .
“ a7 o

‘L.m__,,k_,ﬁ_..,. P {"""K//T’ (\N_)’r L
Mo;syi;ff/f&?érﬂig A. Cox, J.C.

5/1//0 or Clergy

enclosure
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Michael S Nocita
REDACTED

His Holiness
Pope John Paul II
Vatican City State

Your Holiness:

I, Reverend Michael S. Nocita, hereby petition for a dispensation from the obligations of
the Sacred Order of Presbyter and the related obligations of the clerical state.

I have now been away from priestly service for more than ten years. I have a wife and
family and career. Given these realities and the discipline of the Church, it is evident that
I cannot return to priestly ministry. Therefore, by means of this petition, I wish to
regularize my official standing in the Church.

Thus, I present this petition for a dispensation from clerical obligaﬁons for my own
spiritual welfare and to facilitate the full practice of my Catholic faith. I hope and pray
that you will respond favorably to this request.

Sincerﬂely, yours in Christ, .

Reverend Michael S. Nocita

Date: Ouvméf/ 7, 2004
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Office of 3424 Los Angeles
Archdlocese of Los Angeles . Vicar for Clergy Wiishire California

(213) 637-7284 Boulevard 90010-2202

December 10, 2004

Michael S. Nocita
" REDACTED

Dear Mike:

Just wanted to let you know that I received your letter of December 7, 2004, and will be
forwarding your petition to Rome. I will keep you posted of developments.

I very much appreciate your assurance of prayers and your words of support and blessing.

May God bless you and your family in these days of Advent, in the coming Christmas season,
and throughout the New Year!

Yours in Christ,

Y
(/V‘"W e

onmg“ﬁofr/ Craig A. Cox, J.C.D.
icarfor Clergy
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Michael S. Nocita
REDACTED

December 7, 2004

Reverend Monsignor Craig A, Cox, J.C.D.
Vicar for Clergy

Archdiocese of Los Angeles

3424 Wilshire Boulevard

Los Angeles, Ca. 90010-2202

Dear Craig,

Enclosed is my petition for dispensation from the obligations of the clerical state.
Thank you for all your help in preparing it and for taking it to the Holy See.

You may be sure of my prayers for you as you exercise your ministry in this time,
You are a decent and good man. Stay positive. Be strong. God bless.

Yours in Christ,

Michael S, Nocita

RECEW=
DEC. Y - 004

D
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3339 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE, N.W.
WASHINGTON, D.C., 20008-3687

APr0oSTOLIC NUNCIATURE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

25.830 November 21, 2004

This No. Should Be Prefixed to the Answer

Dear Monsignor Cox:

I acknowledge your kind letter of November 19, 2004,
with enclosures. *

Rest assured that the correspondence concerning
Reverend Michael S. Nocita will be duly forwarded through the
diplomatic pouch to His Eminence, Joseph Cardinal Ratzinger,
Prefect, Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith.

With cordial regards and best wishes, I remain

Sincerely yours in Christ,

+ 9£w£ﬁw ﬁf@

Archbishop Gabriel Montalvo
Apostolic Nuncio

Monsignor Craig A. Cox, J.C.D.
Vicar for Clergy

Archdiocese of Los Angeles
3424 Wilshire Boulevard

Los Angeles, CA 90010-2241

NGV 2 8 Zu0d
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Office of 3424 Los Angeles
Archdlocese of Los Angeles Vicar for Clergy Wiishire California
(213) 637-7284 Boulevard S0010-2202

December 6, 2004

Archbishop Gabriel Montalvo, J.C.D.
Apostolic Nunciature

3339 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W.
Washington, DC 20008

RE: Reverend Michael S. Nocita (Nunciature No. 25.830)
Taxa for the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith

Your Excellency:

I am most grateful for the assistance you provided last month in forwarding a number of cases
involving clerics accused of misconduct to the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith.

 With regard to several of those cases, we were not able to enclose checks for the taxa at the time
we transmitted the materials. :

-Please find enclosed a check in the amount of $500.00 made our to the Congregaﬁon for the
Doctrine of the Faith as the taxa for the case of Father Nocita.

‘Would you please be so kind as to forward this to the Congregation on our behalf?
Thank you very much for your kind attention to this matter. May God continue to bless you!

Yours in Christ,
//!) - /"\ - {//Q -

(«./ t
C ~ ﬁ,-df ,-". \'--a/r/» \74—/"'

}6’ Craig A. Cox, T. C D.
'Viedt for Clergy

enclosure
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— 176521
Check Date: 23.Nov.2004 ACCLA Check No.
| Inveice Number Invoice Date Youcher ID Gross Amount Discount Available Paid Amount _ﬂ
522 VC 18.Nov.2004 00119057 500.00 0.00 500.00

/JC‘C

Vendor Number Name Total Discounts
0000002838 Congregation For The Doctring $0.00
Check Number Date Total Amount Discounts Taken Total Paid Amount
23 Nov.2008% 3500700 000 $500°00

R P WachowaBank NA: -
atl olchrchl_nshop of Los Angeles T Greomile Sotih Caroira’
eratlon 8016) o Lo Tl in Cooperatlonwml&Payable If Deslred at

'24 Wﬂshlre Blvd

3 - . +Wells Fargo Bank, N
A . 4759613201 er-1/538
o ‘-Lo Angeles, Cahforma 90010- 2241 ' '
: k “ (213) 637 7691 7 . Date _ "Pay Amount
‘ R November 23, 2004 ‘$ ~ 500.00%%=
Pay | ****FIVE HUNDRED AND XX /100 US DOLLAR**#*
To The
Order Of REDACTED
CONGREGATION FOR THE DOCTRINE
of the Faith
Piazza Del S Offizio TI
00120 Vatican City _
: A4UY0 /4
REDACTED

CCl 005174
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) Office of 3424 Los Angeles
Archdlocese of Los Angeles : the Archbishop Wilshire California
(213) 637-7283 - Boulevard 90010-2202
November 19, 2004

Archbishop Gabriel Montalvo, J.C.D.
* Apostolic Nunciature

3339 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W.
' Washington, DC 20008

RE: Reverend Michael S. Nocité

Your Excellency:

Enclosed, please find a letter from Cardinal Roger M. Mahony to Cardinal Joseph Ratzinger at
the Congregation of the Doctrine of the Faith, regarding Reverend Michael S. Nocita. With his
letter are copies of the completed summary pages requested by the Congregation. All materials |
are submitted in triplicate.

Cardinal Mahony is seeking the assistance of the Cohgregation for the Doctrine of the Faith in
this matter,

Would you please be so kind as to forward this to the Congregation on our behalf?

I regret that I am unable to enclose a check to cover the usual faxa with this letter. Iwill forward
a check in the near future.

Thank you very much for your kind attention to this matter. May God continue to bless you!

Yours in Christ,
/! fi/?j; AN/ "*;/

\,_/_/xs‘L *—“‘"'{n "}f. . ,
Mgnsigré’r Craig A. Cox, J.C.D.
@f igar’for Clergy » :

enclosures
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Office of 3424 Los Angeles
Archdliocese of Los Angeles the Archbishop Wilshire California
(213) 637-7288 Boulevare| 90010-2202
November 19, 2004

His Eminence,

Cardinal Joseph Ratzinger,

Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith,
~ Piazza del S. Ufficio 11

00120 VATICAN CITY

Re: Reverend Michael S. Nocita.,
Your Eminence:

I write with regard to the matter of Father Michael Nocita, a priest incardinated in the
Archdiocese of Los Angeles, California. He is presently domiciled within our Archdlocese
Father Nocita has been accused of graviora delicta.

Michael Nocita was born on May 4, 1950, in San Jose, California, U.S.A. He attended Our Lady
Queen of Angels Junior Seminary, San Fernando, California, during the years 1964 to 1968.
Then he entered St. John’s College Seminary, Camarillo, California, and graduated from there in
1972. In that same year he began his theological studies at St. John’s Seminary Theologate. In
1976 he was ordained to the Diaconate. Serious questions about Deacon Nocita’s readiness for
orders on the part of the faculty and rector of the seminary led to a delay of his ordination to the -
Priesthood. Eventually, on June 10, 1977, he was ordained to the Priesthood for service in the
Archdiocese of Los Angeles.

Father Nocita served in a number of assignments. In October 2000, it came to the attention of
the Archdiocese that Father Nocita had, on his own initiative, sought civil employment. The
faculties of the Archdiocese formerly entrusted to him were revoked on October 23, 2000.

In December 2003, the Archdiocese was notified thatREDACTED andREDACTED had

~ initiated legal action against the Archdiocese of Los Angeles, claiming damages because of
actions perpetrated against them by Father Nocita. Both, now adults, claim that when they were
minors they were sexually abused by Father Nocita, REDACTED  claims that in 1975 to 1976
Father Nocita performed acts of sexual abuse and molestation on her that included kissing,
fondling of genitals over clothes, forced masturbation, forced oral copulation, and digital
penetration of the vagina.
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RCALA 007242

Letter to Cardinal Joseph Ratzinger
Regarding Reverend Michael S. Nocita
Page 2 of 3 '

REDACTED claims that Father Nocita sexually groomed, abused and molested her. This
included kissing, rubbing or messaging of the body over the clothes, sexual talk, harassment, pre-
sexual grooming, In addition to the allegations made in the suit, REDACTED wrote a
forty-two page statement to the Archdiocese in which describes in great detail Father Nocita’s
inappropriate verbal and physical behavior toward her and his sexual abuse of her, That
statement reads in part:

I was romantically led on by a catholic priest when I was between the ages of 14
and 17. His romantic advances began when I was a 14 years old freshman at
Bishop Montgomery Catholic High School. Father Nocita involved me in
substantial physical and romantic affection that incited my feelings.

In July, 2002, Dr. REDACTED  gtaff Psvchiatrist at San Pedro Mental Health Clinic, San
Pedro, California, wrote thaREDACTED came to his Clinic for treatment for Post
Traumatic Stress Disorder purported to have been the result of Father Nocita’s behavior with her.
He wrote that REDACTED related symptoms back to age 14 at which time she was
sexually violated by Father Nocita. :

Allegations of abusive activity on the part of Father Nocita do not emerge in a vacuum. Other
credible reports have reached the Archdiocese of imprudent contacts between Father Nocita and
‘members of the opposite sex. In April 1988, a report was received that sometime between the
years 1980 to 1982, while Father Nocita was assigned to St. Paul’s High School, Santa Fe
Springs, California. Father Nocita was intimate with a young girl named REDACTED On
April 26, 2002REDACTED spoke with a representative of the Archdiocese about that
relationship. She said that from 1981 to 1983 she had a relationship with Father Nocita and that
this relationship continued for a little while after she finished high school. The relationship
began with kisses on the cheek and hugs. Soon it developed into fondling and touching her
breasts. Once he pushed her head down to his genitals so as to have her touch them. Sometimes
they were dressed; sometimes they were undressed. He liked for her to take her clothes off and
lay with him. He would lay on top of her. On one occasion he tried to have sex with her.

In 1990, Mrs REPACTED wrote a letter to the Archdiocese in which she claimed that while Father
Nocita was principal of Alamany High School, he began a relationship with her daughter who
was 17 years old at the beginning of the relationship. This relationship included promises of
marriage. Mrs. was terribly concerned for the well being of her daughter and indeed for the
wellbeing of Father Nocita. Mrs.  ippears to be a very credible person.

" Thus far it has not been possible to conduct a preliminary investigétion into the allegations that
have been made against Father Nocita, and he has not been heard by a canonical auditor to learn
of his response to these allegations. For that reason the precise nature of these allegations cannot
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Letter to Cardinal Joseph Ratginger
Regarding Reverend Michael S. Nocita
Page 3 of 3

be determined. However, from the evidence available at this time, the allegations do seem to
bear a semblance of truth and qualify as graviora delicta. Therefore, as mandated by the norm
of Sacramentorum sanctitatis tutela, 1 am referring this matter to the Congregation for the
Doctrine of the Faith.

Father Nocita has, sometime within the past couple of years attempted marriage. He has given
no indication that he intends to petition Our Holy Father for a dispensation from the obligation of
Sacred Orders. His attempt at marriage suggests that he has no intention of returning to active

* ministry even if he could be rehabilitated. Given what is known about his behavior, his presence
in our community as a Catholic priest runs the risk of confusing our Catholic people.

Furthermore, the pending civil litigation involving Father Nocita is bound to generate unwanted
publicity. It will be imperative that, at an opportune time, the church move to determine what
should be Father Nocita’s status. In order to be found in compliance with your directive that
cases of this nature be referred to your Dicastery prior to the Solemnity of Christ the King of this
year, I respectfully request a dlspensatmn from prescription so that appropriate action can be
taken in this case. My intention is that when time and circumstances permit, I will commission
the appropriate investigation, and then seek guidance from your Dicastery on how to proceed in
this matter.

Thaﬁk vou for your kind attention to this matter. Please be assured of my prayers.

Sincerely yours in Christ,

al Roger M Mabhony,
Archb1shop of Los Angeles

attachments
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DIOCESE Los Angeles in California
NAME OF ORDINARY Cardinal Roger M. Mahony
CDF PROT. N. (if available)
NAME OF CLERIC Reverend Michael S. Nocita
PERSONAL Date of Birth- 4 May 1950 Age 54
DETAILS OF THE :
CLERIC Ordination 10 June 1977 Years of ministry 14
ORIGINAL DIOCESE OF INCARDINATION Los Angeles in California
MINISTRY IN/TRANSFER TO OTHER DIOCESE _
CONTACT ADDRESS OF THE CLERIC REDACTED
PROCURATOR (include original signed mandate)
CONTACT ADDRESS OF THE PROCURATOR
ASSIGNMENTS
Year | Parish Location Appointment
1977 | Mary Star of the Sea San Pedro, California Parochial Vicar
1980 | St. Paul High School Santa Fe Springs, California Faculty
1980 | St. Bruno ‘Whittier, California Residence
1982 183(1;1(1)(;1; Montgomery High _ Torrance, California Faculty
1982 | Maria Regina Gardena, California Residence
1983 | American Martyrs Manhattan Beach Residence
1984 | Paraclete High School . Palmdale, California Faculty
1984 | Sacred Heart Lancaster, California Residence
1987 | Bishop Alemany High School | Mission Hills, California Faculty
1987 ggthggogf g:llln?j:?; Angels Mission Hills, California Residence _
1989 | St. Timothy Los Angeles, California Parochial Vicar
11991 Inactive Leave
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AC‘CUSAT IONS AGAINST THE CLERIC

T

Year | Vietim Age | Imputable Acts Denunciation
Engaging in sexual talk to encourage
the gir to fall in love with him

REDACTED (including speaking of marrying her),

holding in a sexual manner for

1983 14 extended periods, kissing of face and 2002
head and ears, stroking and massaging
the girl’s hair and body, holding hands
and stroking the palm, romantic and
sexual phone calls,
Digital penetration of the gitl’s vagina,
mmtual oral copulation, forcing the girl | 2003,
to masturbate him, masturbating of the | although she
girl, fondling of genitals both over and | claims to
under clothing, fondling breasts and have

1975 16 buttocks, kissing and sucking of informed

' breasts, simulating intercourse and another priest

gjaculating on the girl, kissing of the in 1976, there
body,, French kissing, using hymns, is no record
prayers and religious articles while of this.
engaging in the abuse.

1981 15 Pushed her head down to his genitals 1988

_and attempted to have sex with her,

CIVIL PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE CLERIC

Year | Type/Case Conviction Sentence (include copies of civil documents)
Civil lawsuit for damages '
2003 | (BC308295)REPACTED ang pending
REDACTED

L i T

MEASURES ADOPTED BY THE DIOCESE

Year

2000

Faculties of Father Nocita formally removed. He had been out of service for many years, but
previously there had been no formal revocation. :

SUSTENANCE PROVIDED BY THE DIOCESE TO THE CLERIC

Transitional assistance at the time he sought a lave of absence in 1991,

RESPONSE/RECOURSE MADE BY THE CLERIC

Year
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BISHOP'’S VOTUM

Since Father Nocita has been out of active priestly service for some time, and due to the need to investigate
other cases of priests currently serving, it has not yet been possible to conduct a canon 1717 investigation
into the allegations against Father Nocita. Since one of the alleged delicts was denounced in 1988, L hereby
request a dispensation from prescription in order to be able to employ the appropriate canonical process
should the preliminary investigation provide sufficient evidence.
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Coffice of the 3424
Archdiocese of Los Angeles Vicar for Canonicai Services Wiisnire
Phione: 1213)637-7388 Boufavarn
Fax:  {213)637-6888
28 February 2006

The Most Reverend Gabriel Montalvo

Apostolic Nunciature to the United States of America
© 3339 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W.

Washington, D.C. 20008 ‘

RE: Prot. No. 25.830
Rev. Michael S. Nocita
Graviora Delicta and Petition for Dispensation

from Clerical Obligations

Your Excellency,

Enclosed is a letter, with attachments, from Cardinal Roger Michael Mahony, Archbishop
of Los,Angcles addressed to Cardinal-Designate William Joseph Levada, Prefect of the Congre-
gation for the Doctrine of the Faith, regarding the above-captioned case.

I would respectfully ask you to forward these items to the Congregation.

With gratitude for your kind assistance in this matter, and assurmg you of my prayerful
‘best wishes, I remain

Sincerely yours in Christ,

Lo C Coralonin.

Rev. Thomas C. Anslow, C.M.
Vicar for Canionical Services

(Enclosure)

409682

Pastoral Regions:  Our Lady of the Angels  SanFemando  San Gabriel  San Pedto Santa Barbars

CCl 005182



- 'RCALA 007248

Office of 34is , Los Angeles
Archdlocese of Los Angeles the Archbishop Wilshice California
{213 637-7288 Boulevard 90010-2202

Re:  The Reverend Michael S. Nocita

Graviora Delicta and Petition for
Dispensation from Clerical Obligations

27 February 2006

Cardinal-Designate William J oséph Levada
Prefect of the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith
00120 Vatican City

Your Eminence:

In a previous letter dated 19 November 2004, I had submitted the case of the Reverend Michael S. Nocita
to the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith; Father Nocita is a priest of the Archdiocese who has
been accused of graviora delicta which, in article 4 of Sacramentorum Sanctitatis Tutela, are reserved to
the Congregation. At the time of that submission, I had not provided the necessary documentation to the
Congregation, as the preliminary investigation had not been concluded, nor was there then any indication
that Father Nocita — who had entered a civil marital union some years earlier — would petition our Holy
Father for a dispensation from the obligations of clerical celibacy. However, the following December,
Father Nocita did indeed address such a petition to the Holy Father, and said petition was duly forwarded
to the Congregation through the Apostolic Nunciature in Washington, D.C. that same month of December
2004 (copy of petition included with accompanying documentation).

As noted in my previous letter, Father Nocita has been accused of multiple episodes of sexual abuse of
minor girls. The initial evaluation of the claims advanced against Father Nocita showed that the accusa-
tions had the semblance of truth, wherefore a preliminary investigation was begun; T herewith transmit to
the Congregation the results of that investigation,

Enclosed also is my votum, addressed to His Holiness Pope Benedict X VI, regarding Father Nocita’s peti-
tion for a dispensation from clerical obligations. I respectfully seek the assistance of your good offices in

forwarding this votum, which is definitively in favor of granting the aforesaid petition, to its high destina-
tion.

With gratitude for your kind help, and with the assurance of my prayers, I remain

Siﬁcerely yours in Christ,

Archbishop of Los Angeles

Enclosures
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. Office of 3424 Los Angeles.
Archdiccese of Los Angeles the Arcnbishop Wilshire California
(2131 637—7288 Boulevarc 90010-2202

VOTUM OF THE ORDINARY OF INCARDINATION
CARDINAL ROGER MICHAEL MAHONY
ARCHBISHOP OF LOS ANGELES IN CALIFORNIA

Re: The Reverend Michael S. Nocita '

Graviora Delicta and Petition for
Dispensation from Clerical Obligations

27 February 2006

~His Holiness Pope Benedict XVI
Apostolic Palace
00120 Vatican City

Your Holiness:

It is with sadness and a sense of urgency that I write with regard to the petition for dispensation
from the obligations of Holy Orders and clerical celibacy made freely by the Reverend Michael S.
Nocita, a priest of the Archdiocese of Los Angeles in California. (The original petition was sent to
Rome in December 2004, via the Apostolic Nunciature in Washington, DC; a copy of that original
document is attached hereto, together with a complete report of Father Nocita’s situation.)

Father Nocita, even before his ordination to the sacred priesthood, was involved in romantic and
intimate relationships with teenage girls, and after ordination this pattern of behavior continued,
bringing harm to many members of God’s people. An unspecified serious indiscretion committed
by Michael Nocita before ordination to priesthood caused the Seminary faculty to recommend that
his ordination be delayed. Although lingering doubts and reservations about his suitability for
priesthood persisted, Michael Nocita was eventually ordained. '

In 1988, the Archdiocese received the first report of imprudent contacts between Nocita and a teen-
age girl; the Archdiocese later came to learn that the relationship was intimate and continued for 2-
3 years. In 1990, the Archdiocese received a letter from a mother complaining about a relationship
between Nocita and her daughter that had begun when the gitl was a 17-year-old student at the
Catholic high school where Father Nocita was serving as principal.

The following year, 1991, Father Nocita left the active ministry and accepted a position with a
secular employer. He was placed on inactive leave from the Archdiocese.
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. Yotum of Cardinal Roger M. Mahony
Regarding the Reverend Michael S. Nocita
Page 2 of 2

In December 2003, the Archdiocese was notified that two women had filed lawsuits against it,
claiming damages for sexual abuse perpetrated against them by Father Nocita when they were mi-
nors. Some years prior to this, Father Nocita had entered a civil marital union; that union perdures
to this day.

Given Father Nocita’s past history of manipulative and abusive relationships with underage girls,
as well as the fact of his current civil marital union and secular employment, his presence in the
community as a Catholic priest runs the risk of causing confusion and scandal not only for our
Catholic people bt also for other citizens of good will. Moreover, he has no desire, nor possibil-
ity, of returning to active ministry, and the pending civil litigation in which he is involved may
generate negative publicity. His laicization, therefore, could only redound to the good of the
Church; moreover, Father Nocita is himself convinced that a return to the lay state would also be in
his best interest, with a view to his spiritual welfare.

For these reasons, it appears imperative that the Church move promptly to protect the faithful from
further danger of outrage and scandal by decisively terminating Father Nocita’s status as a priest,
Accordingly, I hereby offer my votum definitively IN FAVOR OF GRANTING THE AFORE-

SAID PETITION.

With gratitude for your kind attention to this matter, and with the assurance of my prayers, I remain

Smcerely yours in Christ,
/ 4' / /
«?r
: inal Roger M. Mahony
Archbishop of Los Angeles (/

Enclosures
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DIOCESE

Los Angeles in California

NAME OF ORDINARY

Cardinal Roger M. Mahony

CDF PROT. No.

656/2004 21484

NAME OF CLERIC Reverend Michael S. Nocita
PERSONAL Date of Birth 4 May 1950 Age 55
DETAILS OF THE :
CLERIC Ordination 10 June 1977 Years of ministry 14
ORIGINAL DIOCESE OF INCARDINATION Los Angeles in California
MINISTRY IN/TRANSFER TO OTHER DIOCESE | None
CONTACT ADDRESS OF THE CLERIC 'RE DACTED
PROCURATOR (include original signed mandate) None
CONTACT ADDRESS OF THE PROCURATOR None

ASSIGNMENTS -

Year | Parish Location | Appointment |

1977 | Mary Star of the Sea San Pedro, California Parochial Vicar

1980 | St. Paul High School Santa Fe Springs, California Faculty

1980 | St. Bruno Whittier, California Residence

1982 gé;};c:)}; Montgomery High Tofrance, California Faculty

1982 | Maria Regina - Gardena, California Residence

1983 | American Martyrs Manhattan Beach Residence

1984 | Paraclete High School Palmdale, California Faculty

1984 | Sacred Heart Lancaster, California Residence

1987 | Bishop Alemany High School | Mission Hills, California Faculty

1987 g;‘gthggg e o e ATECIS | Mission Hills, California Residence

1989 | St. Timothy Los Angeles,‘ California Parochial Vicar
Inactive Leave

1991
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ACCUSATIONS AGAINST THE CLERIC

Year | Victim Age | Imputable Acts Denunciation
Engaging in sexual talk to encourage
the girl to fall in love with him
REDACTED (including speaking of marrying her),
holding in a sexual manner for
1983 14 extended periods, kissing of face and 2002
head and ears, stroking and massaging
the girl’s hair and body, holding hands
and stroking the palm, romantic and
sexual phone calls.
Digital penetration of the girl’s vagina,
mutual oral copulation, forcing the girl | 2003,
to masturbate him, masturbating the although she
girl, fondling of genitals both over and | claims to
» under clothing, fondling breasts and have
1975 16 buttocks, kissing and sucking of informed
: breasts, simulating intercourse and another priest
ejaculating on the girl, kissing of the in 1976, there
body, French kissing, using hymns, is no record
prayers and religious articles while of this.
engaging in the abuse.
1981 15 Pushed her head down to his genitals

and attempted to have sex with her. ‘

1988

CIVIL PROCEEDINGS AGAINST THE CLERIC

Year | Type/Case Conviction Sentence (include copies of civil documents)
Civil lawsuit for damages ’

2003 | (BC308295REDACTED a4 pending

: REDACTED

MEASURES ADOPTED BY THE DIOCESE

Year

2000

Faculties of Father Nocita formally revoked. He had been out of service for many years, but
previously there had been no formal revocation.

SUSTENANCE PROVIDED BY THE DIOCESE TO THE CLERIC

Transitional assistance at the time he sought a leave of absence in 1991.

LEL L A

RESPONSE/RECOURSE MADE BY THE CLERIC

Year

2004

Petition addressed to Holy Father seeking voluntary laicization
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BISHOP’S VOTUM

Given Father Nocita’s history of manipulative and abusive relationships with underage girls, as well as the
fact of his current civil marital union and secular employment, his presence in the community as a Catholic
priest runs the risk of causing confusion and scandal not only for the Catholic faithful but also for other
citizens of good will. Moreover, he has no desire, nor possibility, of returning to active ministry, and the
pending civil litigation in which he is involved may generate negative publicity. His laicization, therefore,
could only redound to the good of the Church; moreover, Father Nocita is himself convinced that a return
to the lay state would also be in his best interest, with a view to his spiritual welfare,

For these reasons, it appears imperative that the Church move promptly to protect the faithful from further
danger of outrage and scandal by decisively terminating Father Nocita’s status as a priest. Accordingly,
and since Father Nocita has voluntarily petitioned the Holy Father for laicization, the voium expressed is
definitively IN FAVOR OF GRANTING THE AFORESAID PETITION.
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REPORT

Results of Preliminary Investigation of Graviora Delicta
Allegedly Committed by the Reverend Michael S. Nocita

SPECIES FACTI

. The Reverend Michael S, Nocita was born on 4 May 1950 and was ordained a priest
for service in the Archdiocese of Los Angeles on 10 June 1977; his ordination to priesthood
had been delayed because of serious questions about his maturity and readiness to undertake
the sacred ministry.

After ordination, Nocita served as Parochial Vicar in Mary Star of the Sea Parish (San
Pedro, CA, 1977-1980) and in St. Timothy Parish (Los Angeles, CA, 1989-1991). In the in-
tervening years he served as a faculty member of St. Paul High School (Santa Fe Springs, CA,
1980-1982) and of Bishop Montgomery High School (Torrance, CA, 1982-1984), and as prin-
cipal of Paraclete High School (Palmdale, CA, 1984-1987) and of Bishop Alemany High
School (Mission Hills, CA, 1987-1989). In 1991, Nocita abandoned the active ministry and
was placed on inactive leave.

In 1988, the Archdiocese received the first report of imprudent contacts between No-
cita and a teenage girl: it was reported that in 1980-1982 Nocita was intimate with a young girl
named REDACTED Two years later, the Archdiocese received a letter from a mother
complaining about a relationship between Nocita and her daughter, REDACTEDhat had begun
when the girl was a 17-year-old student at Alemany High School.

In December 2003, the Archdiocese was notified thatREDACTED and
had filed lawsuits against it, claiming damages for sexual abuse perpetrated against
them by Nocita when they were minors. '

REDACTED

IN FACTO

Everythz‘ng' presented here is drawn from documents on file in the archives of the Curia of the
Archdiocese of Los Angeles, copies of which are attached hereto as numbered Exhibits.

Alleged Victim No. 1: REDACTED  pornREDACTED 1958, 16-17 years old at time of al-
leged abuse :

The victim claims that, while-a parishioner at St. Bridget of Sweden Church where
Nocita was assigned as a deacon, she was sexually abused by Neccita from about October 1975
until about September 1976. She met Nocita when she was upset and depressed. at having
broken up with her boyfriend; she was in her room crying and her mother, who was preparing
an early dinner for Nocita (who was the new deacon at St. Bridget’s), asked Nocita to go up
and talk to the victim. The abuse started on that occasion.
 The abuse allegedly ocourred numerous times every week and included: digital pene-
tration of victim’s vagina by Nocita; oral copulation by Nocita and oral copulation performed

on Nocita; victim being forced to masturbate Nocita; Nocitd fondling victim’s genitalia,

breasts and buttocks; Nocita kissing and: sucking victim’s breaits; simulation of intercourse;
Nocita hugging and kissing victim in a sexual manner. The abuse is reported to have taken
place in various locations including: the victim’s home, the sacristy at St. Bridget of Sweden

409690

REDACTED

RCALA 007255

4

CCl 005190



Michael S. Nacita
Report of graviora delicta
Page 2 of 4

Church, Nocita’s room at St. John’s Semmary, Nocita’s parents’ house (see Exhibit 1, Media-
tion Document forREDACTED

Alleged Victim No. 2: REDACTED birthdate unrecorded, 15-18 years old at time of
“alleged abuse

In 1988, a report was made to nolice by a therapist concerning allegations of sexual
abuse by Nocita againsREDACTED then 23 years old, who had told the therapist that
she had fallen in love with Nocita and had been intimate with him in 1980-1982. The L.A.
Sheriff’s Department, to whom the report had been made, would not pursue the matter crimi-
nally because the statue of limitations had expired. An L.A. Sheriff’s Department Detective:
spoke to archdiocesan authorities about the report (see Exhibit 2, Memorandum of 19 April
1988).

: In May 2002, the Diocese of Sacramento contacted the Archdiocese of Los Angeles

regarding communications wittREDACTED in which REDACTED;poke of the
sexual abuse she allegedly suffered from Nocita, REPACTED giated that when she was a 15-
year-old sophomore at St. Paul High School in Santa Fe Springs, Nocita began a relationship
with her that continued until shortly after she finished high school. The abuse included: No-
cita touchingREDACTED  breasts; kissing her; pushing her head down to his genitals; lying on
top of her while both were clad only in their undergarments, the victim without her bra; at-
tempting to have intercourse with victim; Nocita stating that he loved the victim and that he
wanted them to be together (see Exhibit 3, Letter of 23 May 2002).

The following month of June, Nocita was informed of the accusations made by the
victim and he indicated that he was very surprised to hear of them (see Exhibit 4, File Memo
of 3 June 2002).

Alleged Victim No. 3; REDACTED  born™ " 1969, 14-15 years old at time of al-

leged abuse

REDACTED 116t Nocita when she entered Bishop Montgomery High School as a fresh-
man at 14 years of age. She reports that he went to great pains to have her fall in love with
him. Abusive actions included: holding her close, in a sexual manner; bumping up against
her buttocks with the front of his pelvis; leaning his body against her body; kissing her face
and head; moving his hps against her ears; stroking her hair, face and arms in a sexual man-
ner; rubbing and massaging her body over her clothes; holding her hand; engaging in sexual

and romantic talk with her.
AfterREDACTED  freshman year, Nocita was transferred from Bishop Montgomery

High School, but he continued to exchange phone calls withREPACTED at times making roman-
tic or sexual comments. By the time she was a senior,REDACTED had orown bitter and ambiva-
lent towards Nocita, resenting him for having stolen her hxgh school years (see Exhibit 5, Me-
diation Document forREDACTED

Adminicula

After being ordained to the diaconate and subsequently called for ordination to the

priesthood, Nocita’s priestly ordination was delayed because of questions about his maturity
and readiness for priesthood (see Exhibit 6, Correspondence regarding Nocita’s Suitability for
Ordination, September-December 1976). An unspecified “serious indiscretion” committed by
Nocita raised grave concerns, and the Seminary faculty was unable to recommend Nocita for
ordination to the priesthood (see Exhibit 7, Letter to Cardinal Manning, 16 February 1977),
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Cardinal Manning met with Nocita, was favorably impressed by him and recom-
mended that he meet informally with some of the Seminary faculty to discuss their doubts in
his regard (see Exhibit 8, Letter of Cardinal Manning, 2 March 1977). This informal meeting
took place, but did not resolve the doubts that were present: after the meeting, the Rector
found that “basic questions concerning his maturity, open-mindedness, prudence and self-
perception” still remained; the Academic Dean opined that while Nocita “is far from a petfect
candidate ... [he] probably has sufficient qualities to be ordained. This is my opinion, that is,
a judgment coupled with fear of error. I am still convinced, however, that haste in ordaining
him is not desirable. T think that December of this year should be the earliest time for ordina-
tion to the priesthood” (see Exhibit 9, Letters to Cardinal Manning, 19 April 1977), These
doubts and reservations notwithstanding, Nocita was ordained to the priesthood less than two
months later. S

In October 1990, archdiocesan authorities received a letter from Mrs.REPACTED ypq
was outraged and alarmed that Nocita — 40 years old and a priest — had been dating her 20-
year-old danghter ="
relationship between the two ev1dent1y began while was a senior at Alemany High School
and Nocita was the principal. Mrs.” expressed great worry that Nocita “is emotionally de-
stroying my daughter”; she judged him to be “very confused about himself, both as a priest
and one who is in a mid-life transition”. She concluded by saying: “this one priest has the
power to destroy my family and my hopes and dreams for my daughter. She is no match for
his convincing manner, analogies and powers of persuasion” (see Exhibit 10, Letter of Mrs,
REDACTED 30 April 1990).

Later that same year, further complaints prompted great concern in archdiocesan au-
thorities, who noted that there were reports of Cardinal Manning having been asked not to or-
dain Nocita because of his involvement with women; these same archdiocesan authorities
voiced fears that Nocita might be obsessed with having relationships with young women (see
Exhibit 11, Memorandum and Correspondernce of December 1990).

The following year, 1991, Nocita left the active ministry and was placed on inactive
Jeave (see Exhibit 12, Memorandum of 29 March 1991); Nocita had earlier accepted secular
employment, and was quoted in a press report as saying — falsely — that “the Church was
open about this [his secular employment], I left in good standing” (see Exhibit 13, Article
from La Cafiada Valley Sun, 28 February 1991). Because of the lack of truth in the statement
as reported in the media, and because Nocita’s new position had him working with young chil-

REOACTET

dren, the Archdiocese insisted that Nocita inform his employer of the incorrectness of the

statements he made and that a letter be sent by his employer to the Archdiocese acknowledg-
ing the.inaccuracy of the statements made by Nocita; in this way the Archdiocese would be
protected in the event of future allegations concerning Nocita and there would be a letter from

Nocita’s employer correcting the public record (see Exhibit 14, Memoranda of March 1991).-

Nocita did as had been requested of him, and his employer sent the Archdiocese a letter ac-
knowledging that Nocita had accepted his new position “without any knowledge by proper
authority within the Archdiocese of Los Angeles” (see Exhibit 15, Letter from La Cafiada
Youth House — Community Center, 25 March 1991),

In October 2003, a decree was issued revoking the faculties formerly entrusted to No-
cita (see Exhibit 16, Decree of 23 October 2003), and at the end of that same year, "=

REDACTED gnd REDACTED  (Alleged Victims Nos. 1 and 3 above) filed a civil lawsuit .

against the Archdiocese claiming damages for the sexual abuse allegedly suffered at the hands
of Nocita (see Exhibit 17, Record of Lawsuit Filed 23 December 2003 before the Superior
Court of the State of California). Some years earlier, Nocita had entered into a civil marital
~ union. :
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In December 2004, Nocita addressed a petition to His Holiness Pope John Paul II
seeking a dispensation from the obligations of the sacred order of priesthood and the related
obligations of the clerical state. Said petition was transmitted to the Apostolic Nunciature in
Washington, DC, which then forwarded it to the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith in
Rome (see Exhibit 18, Petition for Laicization and Related Correspondence, December 2004).

CONCLUSION

From the evidence brought forth in the preliminary investigation it appears likely that
delicts, as described in canon 2359 §2 and §3 of the 1917 Code, have been committed. How-
- ever, since the 1983 Code has suppressed reference to the deli¢ts mentioned in canon 2359 §3
of the 1917 Code, and as per the prescriptions of canon 6 §1, 4° and canon 1313 of the 1983
Code, these delicts are no longer to be imputed, but only the delicts mentioned in canon 2359
§2 of the previous Code, since these are maintained in canon 1395 §2 of the present Code.
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TONTEENTIAL
MEMORANDUM '

UATE: __Dpril 19, 1988
FROM: Monsignor Curry

TO: Archbishop Mahony

RE: Father Michael Nocita
REDACTED spoke to a Detective,REDACTED , of

the Sheriff's Department\about a report that had been made to
the police by a therapist concerning Mike Nocita.

A 23-year old woman named‘aEDA&yﬂED told her therapist
she had fallen in-love with Mike while he was assigned to

St. Paul's, Santa Fe Springs, in 1980-1982, and that he had
been intimate with her, mostly in his car. She does not claim
there was intercourse involved.

The Detective mentioned that the statute of limitations had

run out, and that the police would not pursue the matter. The
young woman does not wish to cooperate in any way with the
police and is very upset that the therapist reported the matter.
However, it appears that she may still be very much in contact
with Mike, and she claims to be very confused by his periodic
bromises to leave and marry her. She has told Mike about the
matter bheinhg reported. He met REDACTED 54 4 meeting this morning
and told him the police would be making a report. He claims to
have hugged the girl, but says he did nothing else. :

REDACTED 2 s principal during the period in question and knows
Mike was very friendly with this girl. The Detective is going
for oral surgery and will come to seeREDACTED gndg give him a
report, probably early next week.

REDACTED and I met this afternoon and

decided we should probably wait for a written report before
taking any action. ———
} A oneder
-7 A

. .ﬁ?ﬁL/ﬁ/ |
y- 1947
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DICCESE OF SACRAMENTO

2110 Broadway * Sacramento, California 95818-2541 ¢ 916/733-0225 ° Fax 916/733-0224

OFFICE OF
CANONICAL AFFAIRS

May 23, 2002

Rev. Msgr. Craig A. Cox, J.C.D.
Vicar for Clergy

Archdiocese of Los Angeles
3424 Wilshire Blvd.

Los Angeles, CA 90010-2241

Dear Msgr. Cox:

This letter confirms our telephone conversation of yesterday regarding Father Michael Nocita.
Enclosed is a summary of my telephone conversations with MsR REDACTED .
) who lives in the Diocese of Sacramento. As we discussed, I told her that I had spoken with you
/' yesterday and that she should expect to hear fromREDACTED egarding pastoral
counseling and eventually she would hear from you directly.

If you should have any questions regarding this matter, please contact me. I appreciate your
assistance in this matter. You and your staff are in my prayers as we face this crisis together,
May God bless you in your work. Thank you.. ‘

Sincerely,
REDACTED

Diocese of Sacramento
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CONFIDENTIAL
TELEPHONE CONYERSATION ‘”ITHREDACTED on April 26,
2002 at 9:35 a.m. hv - Pastoral Response Team, Diocese of Sacramentar M

REDACTED ber address :sREDACTED
REDACIED - ) ’ - ) :

REDACTED

called our hotline on April 25,2002 at 2:31 p.m. I returned her call on
April 26", The followmo are the important points made during that telephone conversation.

o REDACTED is 37 years old; when she was fifteen years old, she atténded St.
Paul High School in Santa Fe Springs, CA

. During her sophomore year, a new priest came to the school - Fr. Michael Nocita who
"was approximately 30 years old at the time

. From 1981-1983, she had a relationship with Father Nocita; this relationship continued
: for a little while after she finished high school

o Father Nocita used to kiss the girls on the cheek and hug them; he told her he did this so
that no one would find out about their relationship ,

. She was a shy person and Father Nocita came up to after Mass at the school (she went to
 Mass at lunch time with her brother James) and asked her, “Did you pray for me?”’; he
" called her"FPA°TEPand she told that was not her name; he then asked, “Oh, what’s your
name?” and she told him; he asked her if she would light the candles for him before Mass
everyday; he also gave her a huge hug everyday; at the time, she did not have a good
farmly life

° Father Nocita was young, handsome and popular; after two months of hugs, he kissed her
on the lips; she stood there frozen and he asked her, “Well, aren’t you going to kiss me
-back?”; she kissed him on the cheek and ran away; she told her brother and her friend and
they den t believe her - she then started doubting herself

. Father Nocita wrote poetry to her and walked her to classes; he got her out of Spanish and
* Music classes so they could be together; they had a relationship; he said they were going
to get married; she told him that she didn’t feel good about it and it was making her sick;
he said, “How dare you? Jesus gave us the love - you’re spitting in His face.”

° There was a lot of fondling; he took her to the rectory; he touched her breasts; they never
had sexual intercourse; they kissed and “made out”; once he pushed her head down to his
genitals, she kissed him there and stopped; he wanted her to touch his genitals ‘
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There was a lot of kissing, groping, fondling; sometimes they were dressed, sorietimes
undressed; he liked her to take her clothes off and lay with him; they both had their
underwear on except she took off her bra; he would lay on top of her; on one octasion,
Father Nocita tried to have sex with her - maybe he could show her

The relationship ended when she went away to college in Irvine, CA; she wrots him a
letter and told him that she wanted to move on and wished him well; he then called her
(by then he was at Lancaster High School) crying and said, ‘“No, you can’t do this. Please
let me see you.”; she saw him - they hugged and talked he was probably seeing other
girls at the same time

REDACTED started feeling suicidal when she 20, 21, 22 years old; she told
- Father Nocita that she wanted to see a counselor; he said she should talk to his good
friend REDACTED who was the Communications Director for the Diocese at

that time; Father Nocita told her that REDACTED  counseled people

She sawREDACTED  and told him everything and said that she was worried that it
was molestatioREDACTED  said, “Oh now, this is a once in a lifetime thing. He
(Father Nocita) loves you.”; he assured her that there were no other girls

Father Nocita came to see her after this counseling session and asked her what she
thought; he reassured her that he loved her and that they would be together

She had a good friend from high school who had become a counselor; her friend referred
her to another counselor in the same building by the name of "EPACTED who wag a molest
victim herself, REDACTED _ _ was initially protective of Father Nocita, but the
counselor was pushing her for the priest’s name because it needed to be reported to the
police; told her she needed to report it; she said no; REPACTEPfiled a police report; M.

REDACTED called Father Nocita to warn him; he said she didn’t have to talk to the
police and to say that the counselor misunderstood and that she was in love with him (i.e.
don’t bring his feelings into it)

Later, Father Nocita and REDACTED . St. Paul High School, were at
a function together; REDACTED approached Father Nocita and asked him abaut the
police report involvingREDACTED Father Nocita said it was just a
misunderstanding;REDACTED (who knew REPACTED yery well) said “You mean to tell
me you think she’s lying.” and walked away from Father Nocita; Father Nocita told her
thatREDACTED was rude to him .

Some of her friends told her that Father Nocita had kissed them whilé they were at the .
school; Father Nocita named other priest who had girlfriends, REDACTED (she

knows this priest knows about their relationship),REDACTED _ and others;
there may be other girls who were involved with these priests; she has since had some
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counseling (saw . REDACTED from May 1996 to 2000, in Sacramento), but would
like to start again if assistance can be provided.

. T again to spoke to REDACTED on May 21, 2002. She toid me that she was mostly
interested in programs - assistance with counseling. Itold her that T had called Msgr. Cox of the
Archdiocese of Los Angeles and left a message. She said these priests believed in having
girlfriends. She recently heard a rumor from a friend from high school that Father Nocita had
married a student from another school who was five years younger than REDACTED

I spoke to her again on May 23, 2002 and told her about my telephone conversation with Msgr.
Cox. Isaid that both priests are out of ministry and that in fact, Father Nocita had left the
priesthood and got marxied. Iexplained to her that I would be sending information about our
initial phone conversation to Msgr. Cox. She would be hearing from REDACTED

regarding pastoral counseling and eventually from Msgr. Cox. She said she didn’t want to be
counseled by another REDACTED -type. 1 told her that she probably could have a Catholic or
non-Catholic lay counselor. Finally, I said I would be sending her a confirming letter about the
referral to the Archdiocese of Los Angeles very soon. She thanked me for our assistance.
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TO: File

FROM: Monsignor Craig A. Cox
RE: Michael Nocita

DATE: 3 June 2002

I spoke with Michael Nocita on the phone today and summarized for him the essence of the
claims made byREPACTED A _ Ihad indicated to him that I expected no
response. All Michael said is that he was “very surprised” to hear of this complaint.

He promised to stay in touch if he hears anything.
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! v

—21 September 29, 1976

His Eminence

Cardinal Timothy Manning

Archbishop of Los Angeles oy
1531 West Ninth Street

Los Angeles, California 90015

Your Eminence:

Thank you for your letter of September 20 concerning the possible time for
the ordination of the Reverend Mr. Michael Nocita to the priesthood. My
understanding from our telephone conversation in May was that Mr. Nocita

was to serve as a deacon for six months after completing his studies at the
Seminary. As I reflect back upon our conversation I realize that it was not
clear, at least in my own mind, whether Mr. Nocita was to be ordained at the
end of six months or that at the end of six months his case was to be
/ge-evaluated and if all appeared positive a date for ordination would then

A\ Pe. set. o ‘

e

My own recommendation would be the latter, namely, that at the end of

! November Mr. Nocita's pastor be requested to send an evaluation of Mr. Nocita
;-ﬁo you in view of his readiness for ordination to the priesthood and that

“} you speak with him concerning possible ordination. If all appears positive

| then a date for ordination could be set in January. : u/}

The other approach would be to ask Mr. Nocita's pastor for an evaluation now
and if all appears positive then a date could be set for the end of November.

I recommend waiting until the end of November before seeking an evaluation
or setting a date because I believe that a better judgment on Mr. Nocita's
suitability can be made at the end of six months rather than after.only four
months.

I hope that above has been helpful.

Sincerely yours iA Christ,
REDACTED

REDACTED
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MEMORANDUM

Michae! Necita called me some three weeks ago 1o ask if the Cardinal was now
ready to give him o date for his ordination fo the priesthood. The Cardinal
consultedREDACTED  and his reply is included in this file, His Eminence
asked me to communicate his decision to Mr, Nocita since he himself does not
have an opportunity in the immediate future to meet with him., Today | talked
with Michael Nocita on the phone and explained te him that it was the
Cardinal's decision affer some consuliation to suskain his previous decision and
have an evaluation after six months from the original time of deferment., The six
months will be up af the end of November, At that time the Cardinal will make

a decision which will be duly communicated to Mr. Nocita.

He appeared to be confused by this decision since it was his understanding that

the evaluation would be ongoing and he thought a decision would be made within
the six month pericd. He was, however, very receptive and open fo the Cardinal's
decision. He asked me to assure the Cardinal of his deep personai thanks for the
excepiional understanding and care which was accorded him by His Eminenge, |
get the impression that Mr. Nocita is very negative and suspicious toward |
REDACTED and s apprehensive about his being consulted.

Mt Nocita will expect some communication after November 30,

REDACTED

October 13, 1975
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December 21, 1976

Hls Eminence

Cardinal Timothy Manning
Archbishop of Los Angeles
1531 West Ninth Street

Los Angeles, California 90015

Your Eminence:

I was very happy to receive the positive report on the Reverend Mr, Michael

Nocita by REDACTED and his positive votum. I brought this matter
to the faculty at our meetlng on December 17. In the diseuseinn that followed
it was pointed out by the Academic Dean, REDACTED that Mr. Nocita

has not yet made up a failing grade that he received in the second semester of
his fourth year in the course on the priesthood. He received this failing grade
because he had not done any of the written work for the course throughout the
semester. I know that he was reminded of his responsibility to make up this
grade more than once by REDACTED who taught the course. However, Mr. Nocita

“has done nothing about removing thls failing grade. We believe that he should

RE

before he 1s ordalned

In view of this fact and the fact that we at the Seminary have had practically
no contact with Mr. Nocita since last May, the faculty does not wish to express
a judgment about whether Mr. Nocita should now be ordained to the priesthood.

My own recommendation, with some hesitation, is positive. My basis for this posi-
tive recommendation is REDACTED s report and his recommendation that

Mr. Nocita be advanced to the priesthood. My hesitation flows from the four
years that I have known Mr. Nocita and the behavior patterns which I have seen in
him over this period of time. My prayer is that he has learned the need to be
totally open with others about what he is thinking and to be open to ideas other
than his own and to take counsel in difficult situations,

Sineerely yours in Christ.

REDACTED

DACTED
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MEMORANDUM:

Re.: MICHAEL NOCITA

- On December 22nd, on the occasion of a visit to the
Seminary, I spoke to REDACTED about this letter,

T refused to accept the reply which they have given.
T feel it is the duty of the faculty to give me a
positive recommendation one way or the other. This
he has subsequently done, as per the attached letter,

REDASTED

CARDINAL MANNING

December 28, 1976
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ST. JOHN'S SEMINARY

5012 EAST SEMINARY ROAD
: CAMARILLO, CALIFORNIA 93010
ICE OF THE RECTOR . . TELEPHONE
AREA CODE 803
A82.-275%5

i

1?3? December 23, 1976 : o

Cardinal Timothy Manning
Archbishop of Los Angeles 14
1531 West Ninth Street g}
Los Angeles, California 90015 ,

His Fminence : » Tiy

Your Eminence:

Thank you for coming up last evening and sharing our Christmas dinner with us
here at the Seminary. As always, we greatly enjoyed your visgit,

Regarding the case of the Reverend Mr. Michael Nocita, I have consulted
informally with the faculty and we have decided upon the following course of
action. According to our policy we will not consider a petition for Orders. .
if a student has an incomplete course on his record or has failed a course

and not made it up., In accord with this policy we do not feel that we can
make a recommendation to you on Mr. Nocita's case until he has made up the
course on the priesthood which he flunked last year and never made up. Hence,
"I am going to write to Mr. Nocita and inform him of this fact and tell him that
once the course has been satisfactorily completed we will take up his case and
make our recommendation to you. While we are awaiting his.completion of the
course I am. going to get together withREDACTED in order to discuss

Mr. Nocita. I have some questions that I would like to ask REDACTED

I will also try to see the associates at the parish, Hopefully, through such
interviews I will be able to get a better grasp of the situation and be able
to clarify some of my own questions and those of the faculty about Mr. Nocita.
I am doing this not because I do not acceptREDACTED evaluation but
because I believe it will help us to make an intelligent recommendation to you.
Once all of the above has been accomplished I will present everything to the
faculty in a formal meeting and we will make our recommendation to you.

e

I hope this course of action meets with your approval. We will follow through
on it as quickly as we can. :

" gipferely yours in Christ;

REDACTED

REDACTED
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5012 EAsT SEMINARY Roan .
CAMARILLO, CALIFGRNIA 83010 .. o

TICE OF THE RECTOR FEo 7 TELEPHONEZ
) g AREA CODE 803
. 482.2755

February 16,

His Eminence

Cardinal Timothy Manning
Archbishop of Los Angeles O A T N o
1531 West Ninth Street ST ) . é,
Los Angeles, California 90015 : '

Your Eminence:

At the faculty meeting on Thursday, February 10, the case of the Reverend Mr.
Michael Nocita was considered once again by the faculty and a formal vote was
taken on his advancement to the priesthood. Since my last letter to you on
this case, Mr. Nocita has completed the work necessary for the course on the
Priesthood which he had left incomplete when he departed from the Seminary
‘last May. The paper he wrote to meet the requirements of the course is accept-
able., Moreover, in January I had a good discussion with REDACTED

concerning the Reverend Mr. Nocita. After a lengthy discussion the vote of

the faculty regarding Mr. Nocita's advancement was: one positive, one negative,
five doubtful, and two abstentions. In the light of this vote I am unable to
recommend Mr. Nocita for ordination to the priesthood at this time.

The basic reasons for this vote were two: we have no substantial evidence that
the immaturity reflected in the original problem las year has been grown out of;
we are bothered by the fact that Mr. Nocita does not seem able to admit that he
did commit a serious indiscretion a year ago and manifested a real immaturity in
the way he handled the whole situation., The evidence for these two reasons is
the following: his very immature response of January 3 to me (of which you have
a copy); the fact that we are still picking up remarks of a disquieting nature
about Mr. Nocita from various sources (remarks about the Seminary, the faculty,
his training here, the wrongness of our decisiom last year, as well as remarks
about his lack of maturity); that he does not seem to be open to the fact that
there could be a doubt about his readiness for ordination; his real bitterness
and anger towards the Seminary with no attempt to heal the wound, though we have
attempted, in faltering ways perhaps, to reach out to him in order to heal the
wound. From what I have just said it could sound like we are being vindictive
because of injuries done to ourselves. After some soul searching, we do not bel-
ieve that we are being vindictive. Rather, we are concerned about the closed~
mindedness, the obduracy, the pride, the imprudence and seeming inability of

Mr. Nocita to hold his tongue as reflected in these actions of his. None of
these characteristics are new to us with respect to Mr. Nocita. I should point
out that we are unable to substantiate fully the "remarks of a disquieting
nature'" that we have picked up. Being aware that remarks can be exaggerated as
they are handed on in oral tradition, one must be careful about how much weight
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His Eminence, Cardinal Tlmozhy Manning
February 16, 1977
Page 2

is given to what one hears. However, enough has been heard to lead us to beliave
that there is something to them and that is bothersome,

Tt seems from REDACTED s written evaluation and my conversation with
REDACTED that Mr. Nocita has done a good job at Mary Star of the Sea.
We are very happy about this fact and we accept the positive points made by
REDACTED _ _____ . in his evaluation. However, IREDACTED did point out
to me in my conversation with him on January 27 that he saw Mr. Nocita as a com-
plex person and one who still needs to grow in prudence, In view of these remarks
we are wondering what the impressions of Mr. Nocita will be at the parish in a
few more months., With all due respect for REDACTED “evaluation, it has
been our experience with Mr. Nocita that he impresses people favorably during an
initial period of acquaintance with him but that doubt and queétions come after
one gets to know him better specifically because of his complexity. He can be '
a skillful manipulator.

T wish, Your Eminence, that we had more substantial evidence to present to you as
a basis for our decision but we do not. In a sense we have a gut feeling that

Mr. Nocita is not yet ready for ordination and may mever be. What we have tried
to do is to diagnose why we feel that way. As the result of such an analysis we
believe that we have sufficient evidence for the judgment we have made, namely,

a judgment that we are doubtful. We do not have the positive evidence of growth
that could lead us to a positive judgment nor do we have the type of evidence that
could lead us to a clear cut negative judgment. Hence, we can only say to you
that we are in a state of doubt about whether Mr. Nocita should be advanced to the
priesthood at this time.

However, we would also like to point out to you that perhaps we are not the best
judges in this case at this time. We have had virtually no contact with Mr. Nocita
since May, 1976. However, REDACTED » and his associates have had close
contact with him for eight months now and they do recommend him for ordinaticn to
the priesthood at this time. This is a very important point and we believe that
their judgment needs to be seriously considered by yourself. The faculty amd I
would in no way feel slighted if you made a decision to ordain Mr. Nocita based
upon their recommendation. They have lived with him on a more intimate level than
any of the faculty here ever has and so their recommendation must be highly
respected, Their judgment and recommendation becomes even more.important in view
of the fact that we do not see how we will be able o come to a positive judgment
concerning Mr. Nocita unless we are able to re-establish a relationship with him.
Such a relationship could be established by having him come to the Seminary once
or twice a month in order to take parxt in theological reflection sessions and to
have regular interviews with a couple of the faculty members. 'As I understand his
present frame of mind, this may not be possible for him to do with any equanimity
and openness. - Hence, the judgment and recommendation of those with whom he lives
and works must be taken very seriously. -

I apologlze, Your Emlnence, for this quite lergthly letter but 1 believed it
necessary. I wish that we could give you a more decisive respomse but we cannot

409740
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His Eminence, Cardinal Timothy Manning
February 16, 1977 '
Page 3

at this time. May the Lord be with you as you make your decision in this case,
We are willing to accept and cooperate in whatever decision you do make. The
faculty has seen this letter and they concur with its contents.

Sincerely yours in Christ,

REDACTED

REDACTED

409741
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Mareh 2nd, 1977

REDACTED

Kector, Wi, JUHN'C SEMINARY
5012 East Seminary Zoad

a

Camarilic, California 93010

. REDACTED

Today Monsignor Rawden and I had & lengiby angd
lsisurely session wighREDACTED . I explained to him the
consecisnticus nvalaatioﬁ made by the Seminmary faculty and the
persistence of the doubt raparding his maturiiy and readiness
for ordination to the 3acrad Priesthood,

I am impressed with hils reaction which waz opehn ang
docile. He realizss that the validity of als desiza for Priest-
hood must be
impressed w

stantiated by an officlal eall, I am, likewise,
L is
and the gues

sub
th b reflgctians on the doubts about his maturity
tion of hiz complexity of charscter,

. 1 azsgured him that we hed not arrived at a decision
not to ordain him. He was advised of the wizsh of the fzeulty that
they could have more contact with him o he1p thewm in thelr evalu-
ation of him, For this zeason, it has cccurrsed o Monsignor Rawden
and to me thai 1t might be a good and pzafitable thing if Michasl
yare given the opporbunity to have an Informal visit with some
mesbers of the faculty so that he might give his reacPians to the
axisting doubts,

ye felt that REDACTED might be an zuditor st
his mesting., Consequently, I am asking if you would Bﬂ dispoeed
geignate fhree members of the faculty who might git down with
Michael and REDACTED . and dialogue about the diz icuities
that are at issue., I asked Michael if t%eva was any partieular
mepbey of the faculty that he would like present, and he mentioned

REDACTED

A gl 4
O
r:h

I have prayad much over this m2tter, and I would be
g?atazu* £for your response to the suggestion,

May I thank you and the members of your faculty fex
the diseriminating respomse and anzlysis of the meeting helid on
Thursday, February '}0th, at which his case was considered,

cc Msgr. Rawden : Very sincerely yours, 409743
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ST, JOHN'S SEMINARY
S0tz EssT SEMINARY ROAD
CaAMARILLE, CALIFOENIA 93010
F THE RECTOR . TELEPHONE
AREA CODE 305
482-27B3

His Eminence

Cardinal Timothy Manning o . -
Archbishop of Los Angeles o & xéfd
1531 West Ninth Street Sy
Los Angeles, California 90015 %; [ d &?éi"!,
e

Your Eminence:

This is to inform you thatREDACTED ., REDACTED and I met with
the Reverend Mr. Michael Nocita and REDACTED yestaerday afternoon as
you requested. Though we had an amicable meeting and discussed the faculty's
doubts about Mr. Nocita's veadiness for ordination to the priesthood, the

" meeting did not resolve these doubts, at least for me. .The basic questions
concerning his maturity, open-mindedness, prudence, and self-perception still
remain. From my viewpoint it would take lengthy contact with the Reverend
Mr. Nocita to solve these questions.

I have invited REDACTED andREDACTED to write to you and give
you their own impressions of the meeting. I hope this information will be
helpful to you.

Sincerely vours in Christ,

REDACTED

he.,

REDACTED

409745
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ST. JOHN'S SEMINARY ¢
GRADUATE DIVISION OF ST. JOHN'S COLLEGE- :

C i California 9301
| East Seminary Road amarillo, California 0 Area Code 805

482-2755

April 19, 1977

Cardinal Timothy Manning
1531 West Ninth Street
Los Angeles, Ca. 90015

Your Eminence:’

_ TED
At the request OfREDAC . I am writine a resnonse to our meeting
yesterday with Deacon Michael Nocita and REDACTED . I belive in
communication and I think that the meeting was a good idea. Following
the meeting Michael did say that he felt better about the whole matter,

I am convinced that the delay in ordination, while painful, was needed

and has helped him. The delay was, in my judgment, absolutely the correct
decision: And I appreciate his anxiety in MOt knowing when or whether
he would be ordained, but I think that the pain has been a necessary
element in his maturing.

While understanding his hurt feelings, 7I told him that he was wrong
in his vilification of the seminary, and that reparation was due. I
A said this in nice way, stressing that we were bound to silence while
he felt free to say whatever he wanted. Very painful reports came back
to me about what he was saying, I also emphasized my firm comviection that
" he must be a man of deep prayer especially because of his pride (to which
he readily admits) and that he must always have a competent spiritual
director to whom he reveal$ everything and whose advice he is willing to
follow. Finally I made as strong as possible the lesson I have learned
over the years that one component of a true vocation is not over-eagerness
but rather reluctance to be ordained a priest.

'What has swayed me in his favor is a remark made by REDACTED in

a faculty meeting while we were aganizing over another candidate, He

said that perhaps we are really ldoking for perfection in a candidate,

and that such is not humanly possible to find., Michael is. far from

a perfect candidate but probably has sufficient qualities to be ordained.
This is my opinion, that is, a judgment coupled with fear of error.

I am still comvinced, however, that haste in ordaining him is not desirable.
1 think that December of this year should be the earliest time for ordination
to the priesthood. ) ~

Please be assured, Your Eminence, that I fully support your final decision
in this very difficult matter,

Devotedly in Christ;
REDACTED

i

409746
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MEMORANDUM

- December 11, 1990

Archbishop Mahony
Monsignor Thomas Curry
Michael Nocita

YestefdayREDACTED spoke to me at the Priests' Council about a man
who had complained to him about Mike's behavior and particularly his
intimacy with women. I asked to have the man call me, and he did
so last night. He did not give me his name and said he was somewhat
constrained in that he was protecting people who did not. want to be .

known. He is a high school counselor.

His main concern is that he asserts Mike has been involved with women
since before his ordination and that this involvement has continued.

He went on about Mike's extravagant life style, Mike's belief that he is
a ladies' man and that women find him irresistible. I found the man a
bit obsessed about Mike, but could not say that he was unreasonable in
any way or that he had any obwous problem that would cause him to -
make these allegations. ‘

I checked back withREDACTED and he vouches for the honesty of
this man XF*°TEP himself says he knows a family, in Manhattan Beach, I .
think, Whose daughter refused to have Mike perform her wedding
‘because he had made advances to her and her sister. Apparently, her
father, who is an influential man and a friend of Mike's, wanted him to
perform the wedding. "¥°™ claims there are rumors of drimmkenness
and sex on the beach surrounding Mike and thatREPACTED  want to
Cardinal Manning to ask him not to ordain Mike because of his
involvement with women. Certainly his ordination was delayed.

I am concerned about and uncomfortable with all of this and explained
to both the man who called and toREDACTED how limited my action
could be on this basis. Were it not for a larger context, I would not
act on this at all. However, there is Mike's admitted very recent
involvement with a young girl and, as the attached memo states, he was .
reported for as being involved with a minor girl, so there is cause for
some alarm at this point. Given the possibility of three separate B
incidents, there is a good possibility that mike may be obsessed w1th

having relatlonshlps with young women about eighteen.

- My recommendation is that the matter be pursued further before a

decison is made about Mike's going to work in Vocatlons, and I would c
like to discuss the mater with you. v—————-* :

- | Ja-/7-F0
W/ N pﬂi/‘& 409751
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December 21, 1990

Rev. Michael Nocita
St. Timothy Church
10425 West Pico Blvd.
Los Angeles, CA 90064

Dear Father Nocita:

Thank you for coming to see me today and for your gracious
and open response to my comments and concerns.

As I explained- to you, before Archbishop Mahony could appoint

you to the Vocations Department he would need definite

assurances that some of the problems in your life are being

taken care of. These problems have specifically to deo with

your relationship with young women, and I mentioned to you the
Archdiocese's knowledge of a police report and the correspondence.
from REDACTED which both of us have. -

I also mentioned to you a persistent rumor and concern about
your continued involvement with young women, and told you
that I was unable to give you any specifics on that matter.

The Archdiocese asks that you see Dr. REDACTED

for an examination and continuing therapy it that 1is
recomnended. As I explained, we do expect thatREDACTED . 311
send the Archbishop a report, but that you will be aware of
the contents of the report and consent to it, and we certainly

do not expect any violation of the doctor-patient privilege.

I thank you again for your cooperation in this matter, and you
have my very best wishes for your future.

Sincerely yours in Christ,

(Rev. Msgr.) Thomas J. Curry
Vicar for Clergy .

_ REDACTED

Rev. Timothy Dyer
Archbishop Mahony

C

409752

A T B A R LTV NS ST R EYRI R IVAT A [ Ty Froanganbe A REE A | e feabin oo Dot ara

CCl 005252



RCALA 007293

s.\ | o 7

NSRS N
Offica of 1531 Los Angeles
Archdiocese of Los Angeles Vicar for Clergy West Ninth California
: (213)251-3284"  Street 90015-1194

S

December 21, 1990

REDACTED

9735 Wilshire Blvd., Suite 444
Beverly Hills, CA 90212

pear REDACTED

I spoke to Father Michael Nocita today and asked him to see you,
and he will do so soon. Father Nocita is forty years old and
was ordained in 1977. Archbishop Mahony is planning to appoint
him to a position in the Vocations Department, and since this

is a very sensitive app01ntment he wishes to have assurances
regarding some incidents in Father Nocita's life,

The first incident involves a police report regarding Father
Nocita's involvement with a young girl while he was teaching
high school. The second is a more recent involvement this
past year, and I also enclose a copy of a letter from the
girl's mother. I understand this situation has been resolved,
but it did cause a lot of pain to the family.

In addltlon, there have been persistent rumors and concerns
about Father Nocita's behavior, his involvement with young
women, an extravagant lifestyle, and the belief that some clergy
asked that he not be ordained because of this problem. I do not
have facts on these matters, but Father's ordination was delayed.

The Archdiocese would like to have an evaluation of Father
Nocita. He has mentioned to me that he also was evalnhated by
the Hacker Clinic while he was in the Seminary, and while I
do not have that report, I can request it from the Seminary
if that would be useful.

If I can be of further assistance, please do not hesitate to
call. My number at home is REDACTED

With thanks for your help, I remain.

Sincerely yours in Christ,

(Rev. Msgr ) Thomas J. Curty
Vicar for Clergy

409753

#
Pastoral Regions:  OQurlLady of the Angels  San Fernanﬂo San Gabrlel  SanTedro  Santa Barbara
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DATE: March 29, 1991 rof . .
prom:  REDACTED
| T0s

RE: "Rev. Michael Nocita

Effective March 25, 1991:

Father Michael Nocita went on Inactive Leave status effective
March 25, 1991.

Accordingly, cancel health insurance coverage. Issue COBRA,
. Send me the necessary papers and I will mail them out.

Many thanks.

. S 409755

CCI 005255
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Head, Ex-Prisst Takes

by Der l‘r}aszex,

Major news in La Cufiada
Flintridge's youth-commu-
nity center scope broke last
wock with the surprise an-
Touncement that Tharde Va-
leate hed resignad ss exedu-
tive direcror of thé La Cafia-
da Youll after neartdly 20
years. His place was taken
by Miks Noeita, 49, a for-

- mer zetive Catholic priest,
who has served i a number
of capacities in the 1L.AL
Archdiosese, both in per-
ishes and 4t high schools.

VYalente, who is moyor pro
tem of the LCF City Coun-
cil, suid he decided to leuve
the Youth House so he can
spend mor me with his
family. He cited too much of
a schedule load with his
many aetivities and respon-
sivilitizs and hinted that he
may make another change or
two w accommodnte his
Tamils,

But he swated that he will
continue as & oty council
member (he's in the middle
of his fisst four.year term)
and as & piri-time govem-
ment teacher at local St
Francis High where he has
instructed for ihe past 25
years.

® Valemia becemsz Youlh
Hovse head In 1971 after
sarving as operations dirse-
tor under the late Gilbhert
“Smiity” Smith for six
years.

Valenles fast day on the
Job was last Wednesday, No-
vita started his new job the
lollowing day.

According to Valen-
te, his vresignaticn

plans  were  in the
works for & montlh,

He wus responsible {or in-
troducing & number of youth
programs et the Youth
House during his. temurs,
They included girls' soft-
ball, girks' T-ball, girls’ soe~
cer, kickball, ‘arts and activ-
[ty classes, day care at the
local elementary schools,
the pre-school program and
the after-school -recreation
program &t tha clementary
schoals, It was also Chris’
idea to put on & Summer Sci-
ence Workshop which has
drawn over 1000 young-
stors.,

Meet Mike Noeita,

Valente's Successor

After 13 yoars in the pub-
- lic ministry as an ovdsined
Catholie priest, Nocita said
fie made the change becauss
He wanied "more of a say in
the direction of his life." He
added: “T think I'!l be mere
effective this way."

The new local youth jead-
er, who has been 2 high
schoal principsl, wacher,
counselor and codch, said hre
holds "the greatest raspect
for the church® but added
that in his new carcer, he
- will still serve people while
leading a life of a mtore per-

Mﬂ\» Noclta

sonal choice, R

With his decision, Novita
has been placed on the
churel’s inactive list but ean

. come back ar any tme and
“¥be reinstated. "The church
. was open, about this, I lelt in

good standing,” he com-

Y.H. DIRECTOR
LIST GINCE 50
With  hkls  appoint-
ment, Mike Nocitz be.
comes the ninth <j.
rector of the La Cafa-
da ‘Youth House which
was  Initinlly  opened
in 1850,

Those who have
served, in order:
Charles  Pritchord In.
1950, Mark Doyle In
early 1954, Gaeamne
Landy later that same
year, Edwin Bozonler
i 1955, R. Allen,
Spahr In 1957, Gilbart
"Smitty”  Smith in
1559, Joe Nola in
1970, Chris Valente
in 1971 and now MiXke
Nocita,

Along the Boulevard 28

Calendar 10
Church Nows 28
Classified 29, 30, 31
Cultural Pursuits 25
Lookout 27
News of Nsighbors 14
Public Molices - gi

Restaurant/Food 18,19
Senvica Directory 20, 21

Saciety 15, 16,17
Sports . 21-24
Thingsio Do 25

manted,

= Before coming 1o the

Youth House, hé wes surv-
ing as an associnte pusior at
the St Timothy parish in
West L&, Mike was nodfied
of heing seiected on Fzb. 19
by & member of the Youth
House executive beard, He
had gone t9 ai execulive
senveh firm in Pasadena to

start him on his way to a

new gorzer,
He will move 10 Gicndale
in just s {ow days.

® Hpom in San Jose,
Calil, Nociiz stated he en-

* tered ~the Catholic minisky

beoause of “a Jove of the
sacraments and a love of the
church, [ wentad W help
people.”

After graduating
from Our Lady Gueen of An-
gels Seminery High Schooi
in San Fernondd and {rom
8t Iohn's Se mma.ry College
in Camarillo (with his BA
degree in philosophy 2nd
Master of Divinlty totaling
eight years); Nocita joined
the parish staff ot Mary Star
of the Sea in Sun Fedro,

He was there for thice
yeurs followed by his {zcul-
ly ussignment di St Paul
High Schodl in Santz Fe
Springs where he also
coached cross-couniry,

In 1982, be joined Bishop
Monigomery High in Tor-
rance as vice principal,
serving also as & coenselog”
and harrier cosclt.

Two vyears later, Nocita
became principal of Para-
clete High in Lancasier for
three ycars befare icking a
similar post at Alemany
High for an additional two
yoars. Then, he was as-,
signed to St Timothy's.

° His atchdiocese regord -

inclndes seven years in ad-
ministrativé’ work and five
yeurs as a crixss-country

+ mentor.

Nocita has also been
prominesitly involved with
the nows media as a church
representative, Raving been
g spokesmzm for- the archdi-
ocese in TV end radio ap-
pearances, In 1987 when
Pope: John Poul visited the
11.5. and Southérn Califor-
nia, Nocita hindled the
"color” duties fpr NBC.TV
as the pontfff tourcd the
Southland,

Media Spokesman

Nocita has also been a |

regular on KABC Radio's
"Religion en thé Line® and
CBS-TV's “Todzy's Reli-
gion,"”"

He says he is confident
that he has the skills from
his public ministry to enrry
out an effective community -

. program at the Youth House,

including both pre-school
and senjor citizen-ags.

409757

CC1005257



RCALA 007298

TAB 14

409758

CCI 005258



DATE: March 18,

1991

MEMORANDUM

- REDACTED
FROM: __

TO:

RE: Father Michael Nocita

REDACTED

RKEDAUL I ED

3187

409759
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“TO:
FROM:

RE:

. MEMORANDUM

March 23, 1991

Archbishop Mahony
Father Timothy Dyer

Michael Nocita

I met with Mike today and spoke to him first of our concern for him
personally and our desire to support him. I stressed that it was a
significant loss to the Archdiocese and that we had every hope that he
might return to active ministry. He referred to his situation a couple of
times as a "leave of absence," but the entire conversation made clear
that there is very little likelihood of a return and that he would like to
seek laicization so that he would be free to marry.

-1 then showed him the attached memo and gave him a copy ~-- asking

" that his employer send us a letter to that effect. He promised that

would be done. I told him of our concern -~ given his file -- over his
taking a job with youth He clarified that "youth" meant children under
the age of eight, i.e. that the Center was for primary and preschool-
age children. At any rate I asked that his employer send us a letter to
correct the public record.

I assured him of your personal concern in his regnrd and, in that
context, renewed the offer to go to DrREDACTED | He declined,
saying he was already seeing someone of his own choosmg He said that
he felt no anger toward the Church and that he would greatly miss
presiding at the Eucharist. Says he has reached a point where he
cannot see 11v1ng in a rectory situation and feel fulfilled. He has an
apartment and is living alone and says that he asks nothmg of the
Archdiocese at this tlme

I urged that he stay in touch. with us.

famm
‘3"3“7/
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‘March 25,1991

Reverend Timothy Dyer
Vicar for Clerxgy

1531 West Ninth Street
Los Angeles, Ca. 90015

Dear Father Dyer,

This is to inform you that Mike Nocita
: has notified me that the article in

REDACTED the La Canada Valley Sun dated February
28, 1991, which article stated that,
“"The Church was open abcut this
(meaning Mike's present position),
I left in good standing,” is incorrect.
It 1is my nunderstanding that Mike's
application for this position and
his acceptance of this position was
done without any knowledge by proper
authority within the Archdiocese of
Los Angeles.

Sincerelv,

REDACTED

409762
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DECREE

As Episcopal Vicar for the Clergy duly appointed by the Archbishop of Los Angeles in
California, acting in the name and at the direction of His Eminence Cardinal Roger Mahony,
Ihereby decree the revocation of all Archdiocesan faculties formerly entrusted to

REVEREND MICHAEL 8. NOCITA

This revocation is made in recognition of the fact that Reverend Michael S. Nocita has left the

active priestly ministry and no longer holds an ecclesiastical office or other Archdiocesan
assignment. Therefore, the purpose for which the faculties were originally entrusted has
ceased (canon 142).

In accord with the canon 50, in a letter dated March 26, 1996, Father Michael 8. Nocita was
informed of the Cardinal's intention to revoke the priestly faculties previously entrusted to
him. Inasmuch as there has been no objection raised to this action, I formally issue this decree
and direct that it be communicated to Reverend Michael S. Nocita.

Given this 23th day of October in the Year of Our Lord 2000 at the Curia of the Archdiocese
of Los Angeles in California,

ARCHDI\)CESAN SEAL

o~ REDACTED
/! rd d ‘(‘v / 3 r':/'f
Vi r/ 4)’/;/ o I;’ K ): 7
Ry /o F N

}%"{ A A "ﬂ;’;’{ (A AdFnset
Reverend Monsignor Richard Loomis
Episcopal Vicar for the Clergy

409764
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SUPERIOR COURT OF THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA
COUNTY OF LOS-ANGELES, CENTRAL COURT

10 \REDACTED

Plaintiffs, '
v. - '

DEFENDANT DOE 1 ;DEFENDANT DOE 2
DEFENDANT DOE 3; DEFENDANT DOE 4,
DEFENDANT DOE 5; DEFENDANT DOE 6;
DEFENDANT DOE 7; DEFENDANT DOE §; |

and DOES 9 through 100, inclasive,

- Defendants.

o e N N e St e ot gl Sl N Semt® it ™ g

1

== 0 N

CASENO.  n(20087295

COMPLAINT FOR:

CHILDHOOD SEXUAL ABUSE:
NEGLIGENCE; .
NEGLIGENT SUPERVESIONq
NEGLIGENT HIRING/RETENTION;
FRAUD;
FIDUCIARY/CONFIDENTIAL
RELATIONSHIP FRAUD AND
CONSPIRACY;
BREACH OF FIDUCIARY DUTY:
NEGLIGENT FAILURE TQ WARN,
TRAIN, OR EDUCATE PLAINTIFF;
INTENTIONAL INFLICTION OF
EMOTIONAL DISTRESS;
. VIOLATION OF PENAL CODE §32;
. VIOLATTON OF PENAL CODE
§ 11166;
12 VIOLAT’ION OF PENAL CODI
§§ 273a(a), (b);
13. RESERVED;
14. NEGLIGENCE PER C
STATUTORY VEOLATION
15. RESERVED; B & {q
16. FRAUD AND DECEIT;=
17. PREMISES LIABILITY;
18. RESERVED, %

AN S e

2]

Avd
12
33

?’i
S
-

ﬁ!]ﬂBH

SUIY
81

vhBy: 5(!
27

8/
2133884420

AND

{
77

2473
331 G4TRIZM 13
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3

[Filed Concurrently With Ccré*—f catesiifavtsnt}

[Demand for Jury Trial] i
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e
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| .
1 . Based upon information and belief availsble to Plaintiffs REDACTED and
» REDACTED al the time of the filing of this'Complat;n‘L Plaintiffs make the
3 1 following allegalions: ‘
4 | PARTIES
59 1.1 Plaintiff REDACTED ‘{s an adu 1’c' feméle. Plaintiff was a minor ai the time of the
6 || sexual abuse alleged herein. | _
74 1.2 Plaintiff REDACTED is an adult female. Plaintiffwas aminor atthe -
: 8 )l time of the sexuval abuse alleged herein. |
léEDACTED 9 i 1.3 PlaintifisREDACTED are some times
10 || heveinafier referred to as the “Plaintiffs.”
11§ 2. . Defendant Doe | {*Defendant Archdiocese™) is @ corporation sole, authorized to conduct

12 | businessand coﬁclucﬁngbtlsincss in the State of California, with jts principal place of businessin Los
13 || Angeles, Califernia. Defendant Arch diocese has responsibility for Roman Cathotic Church operations
14 ! inLos Angcies, Ventura, and Sania Barbara Counties, California, Defendant Archdiocess is the
15 || Archdiocese in which the sexual abuse occurred., | ‘

16021 Defendant Doe 2 (“Delendant School/Parish 17) is 2 Roman Catholic school and/or parish
17 || located in Van Nuys, California. Defendant School/Parish 1 is the schoo! nﬁd/or parish or ofher
18 || organization where PlaintiffREPACTED  wag a student or member during the period of her sexual
19 | abuse. ' ) |

20 2.1, Dei‘en&ant Dee 3 ("Defendant School/Parish 2™) is a Roman Catholic school and/or parish

21 | locsted in San Pedro, Califomnia. - Defendant School/Parish 2 (5 a school and/or parish where the
REDACTED

322 || Perpetrator was assigned when he abused Plaintiff

23 | 2.1b,  Defendant Dos 4 (*Defendant Sehool/Parish 3 is a Roman Catholic school and/or parish
24 || located in Torrance, California. Defendant School/Parish 3 is the school and/or parish or otber
25 || organization where Plaintiff REDACTED  was a student or member during the period of her

26 §i sexual abuse.

271 2.1 Defendant Dde 5 (“Defendant Archdiocese Education Corporaﬁbn”) is a pon-profil

28 || corporation anthorized to conduct business and conducting business in the State of California, with

2
COMPLATHT
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Michael S. Nocita
REDACTED

His Holiness
Pope John Paul I
Vatican City State

Your Holiness:

I, Reverend Michael S. Nocita, hereby petition for a dispensation from the obligations of
the Sacred Order of Presbyter and the related obligations of the clerical state.

I have now been away from priestly service for more than ten years. I have a wife and
family and career. Given these realities and the discipline of the Church, it is evident that
1 cannot return to priestly ministry, Therefore, by means of this petition, IW1sh to
regulanze my official standing in the Church.

Thus, I present this peﬁtion fora dispensation from clerical obﬁgaﬁoﬁs for my own
spiritual welfare and to facilitate the full practice of my Catholic faith. I hope and pray
that you will respond favorably to this request.

" Sincerely yours in Christ,

,MW,ZM

Reverend Michael S. Nocita

Date: Oe.avmégw 7, 200

409769
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Office of 3424 Los Angeles

Archdlocese of Los Angeles Vicar for Clergy - Wilshire Californfa
» {213) 637-7284 " Boulevard - 90010-2202
December 10, 2004

Axchbishop Gabriel Montalvo, J.C.D.
Apostolic Nunciature

33390 Massachusetts Avenue, N.W.

. Washington, DC 20008

RE: Reverend Michael S. Nocita (Nunciature Prot. No. 25.830)

Your Excellency:

On November 21, 2004, you assisted us by forwarding to the Congregation of the Doctrine of the.
Faith a packet of materials related to Reverend Michael S. Nocita. I am most grateful for the
assxstance you prowded :

Enclosed, please find the petmon of Father Nocita seekmg a dispensation from clencal
obligations. Would you please be so kind as to forward this to the Congregation on our behalf?

Thank you very much for your kind attention to this matter. May God continue to bless you!

Yours in Christ

AT

. : L‘AW P / . U7/
Mgmgn CrmgA Cox, I.CD

Vic or Clergy

enclosure

409770
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3339 MASSACHUSETTS AVENUE, N.W,
WASHINGTON, D.C. 20008-3687

APOSTOLIC NUNCIATURE
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

25..830 . December 13, 2004

This No. Should Be Prefized to the Answer

Dear Monsignor Cox:

. I acknowledge your kind letter of December 10, 2004,
with enclosure.

Rest assured that the petition of Reverend Michael
S. Nocita for a dispensation from clerical obligations will be
duly forwarded through the diplomatic pouch to His Eminence,
Joseph Cardinal Ratzinger, Prefect, Congregation for the
Doctrine of the Faith.

With cordial regards and best wishes, I remain

Sincerely yours in Christ,

Lolid ot

Archbishop Gabriel Montalvo
Apostolic Nuncio

Monsignor Craig A. Cox, J.C.D.
Vicar for Clergy

Archdiocese of Los Angeles
3424 Wilshire Boulevard

"Los Angeles, CA 90010-2241

469771
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REDACTED 342‘} Los Angeles
Archdiocese of Los Angeles Wiishire California

Boulevard 90010-2202

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

CASE: Michael S. Nocita
Report of Alleged Graviora Delicta

CERTIFICATE

By this instrument, I certify that the documentation herewith transmitted
to the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith regarding the above-
mentioned case, beginning with the Table of Contents and ending with
this Certificate, are either original writings or exact duplicates of
documents on file in the archives of the Curia of the Archdiocese of Los |

Angeles.
Given at Los Angeles, California, this 24th day of February in the year
of our Lord 2006. _
REDACTED
409772
Pastoral Regions:  Our lady of the Angels  San Femando éem Gabrie! an Pedro Santa Barbara
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His Eminence,

Cardinal Joseph Ratzinger,

Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith,
Piazza del S. Ufficio 11, 00193,

Rome, Italy.

Re: Michael S. Nocita.
Your Eminence:

I write with regard to the matter of Father Michael Nocita, a priest incardinated in the
Archdiocese of Los Angeles, California, U.S.A. He is presently domiciled within our
Archdiocese. Father Nocita has been accused of graviora delicta.

Michael Nocita was born on May 4, 1950, in San Jose, California, U.S.A. He attended
Our Lady Queen of Angels Junior Seminary, San Fernando, California, during the years
1964 to 1968. Then he entered St. John’s College Seminary, Camarillo, California, and
graduated from there in 1972. In that same year he began his theological studies at St.
John’s Seminary Theologate. In 1976 he was ordained to the Diaconate, Indications of
serious dissatisfaction on the part of the faculty and rector of the seminary led to a delay
of his ordination to the Priesthood. Eventually, on June 10, 1977, he was ordained to the
Priesthood for service in the Archdiocese of Los Angeles. He served in a number of
assignments. In October 2000, it came to the attention of the Archdiocese that Father
Nocita had, on his own initiative, sought civil employment. The faculties of the
Archdiocese formerly entrusted to him were revoked on October 23, 2000.
In December 2003, the Archdiocese was notified thatREDACTED andREDACTED
REDACTED had initiated legal action against the Archdiocese of Los Angeles claiming
damages because of actions perpetrated against them by Father Nocita. Both, now adults,
" claim that when they were minors they were sexually abused by Father Nocita, ©= """
claims that in 1975 to 1976 Father Nocita performed acts of sexual abuse and
molestation on her that included kissing, fondling of genitals over clothes, forced
masturbation, forced oral copulation, and digital penetration of the vagina.

REDACTED claims that Father Nocita sexually groomed, abused and molested her.
This included kissing, rubbmg or messaging of the body over the clothes, sexual talk.
harassment, pre-sexual grooming. In addition to the allegations made in the suit ACTED
REDACTED wrote a forty-two page statement to the Archdiocese in which describes in great
detail Father Nocita’s inappropriate verbal and physical behavior toward her and his _
sexual abuse of her. That statement reads in part: “I was romantically led on by a catholic
priest when I was between the ages of 14 and 17. His romantic advances began when I
was a 14 years old freshman at Bishop Montgomery Catholic High School. Father Nocita
involved me in substantial physical and romantic affection that incited my feelings”.

409773
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In July, 2002, DrREDACTED . \:D AFC“TEI‘D. ** ' at San Pedro Mental Health Clinic,

San Pedro, California, wrote that -ame to his Clinic for treatment for
Post Traumatic Stress Disorder purnorted to have been the result of Father Nocita’s
behavior with her. He wrote that REDACTED ‘elated symptoms back to age 14 at
which time she was sexually violated by Father Nocita.

Allegations of abusive activity on the part of Father Nocita do not emerge in a vacuum.
Other credible reports have reached the Archdiocese of imprudent contacts between
Father Nocita and members of the opposite sex. In April 1988, a report was received that
sometime between the years 1980 to 1982, while Father Nocita was assigned to St. Paul’s
High School, Santa Fe Springs, California, Father Nocita was intimate with a young girl
namedREDACTED On April 26, 2002 REDACTED  : spoke with a
representative of the Archdiocese about that relationship. She said that from 1981 to 1983
she had a relationship with Father Nocita and that this relationship continued for a little
while after she finished high school. The relationship began with kisses on the cheek and
hugs. Soon it developed into fondling and touching her breasts. Once he pushed her head
down to his genitals so as to have her touch them. Sometimes they were dressed;
sometimes they were undressed. He liked for her to take her clothes off and lay with him.
He would lay on top of her. On one occasion he tried to have sex with her.

In 1990,REDA9TED wrote a letter to the Archdiocese in which she claimed that while
Father Nocita was principal of Alamany High School, he began a relationship with her
daughter who was 17 years old at the beginning of the relationship. This relationship
included promises of marriageRE ACTED yas terribly cggnrzrgeﬂ for the wellbeing of her
daughter and indeed for the wellbeing of Father Nocita appears to be a very
credible person.

Thus far it has not been possible to conduct a preliminary investigation into the
allegations that have been made against Father Nocita, and he has not been heard by a
canonical auditor to learn of his response to these allegations. For that reason the precise
nature of these allegations cannot be determined. However, from the evidence available
at this time, the allegations do seem to bear a semblance of truth and qualify as graviora
delicta, Therefore, as mandated by the norm of Sacramentorum sanctitatis tutela (no.13),
I am referring this matter to the Congregation for the Doctrine of the Faith.

Father Nocita has, sometime within the past couple of years attempted marriage. He has
given no indication that he intends to petition Our Holy Father for a dispensation from
the obligation of Sacred Orders. His attempt at marriage suggests that he has no intention
of returning to active ministry even if he could be rehabilitated. Given what is known
about his behavior, his presence in our community as a Catholic priest runs the risk of
confusing our Catholic people. Furthermore, the pending civil litigation involving Father
Nocita is bound to generate unwanted publicity. It will be imperative that, at an
opportune time, the church move to determine what should be Father Nocita’s status. In
order to be found in compliance with your directive that cases of this nature be referred to
your Dicastery prior to the Solemnity of Christ the King of this year, I respectfully

409774
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request a dispensation from prescription so that appropriate action can be taken in this
case. My intention is that when time and circumstances permit, I will commission the
appropriate investigation, and then seek guidance from your Dicastery on how to proceed
in this matter. '

Thank you for your kind attention to this matter. Please be assure of my prayers.

Sincerely yours in Christ.

Cardinal Roger Mahony,
Archbishop of Los Angeles.

409775
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DIOCESE Los Angeles in California

NAME OF ORDINARY Cardinal Roger M. Mahony

CDF PROT. N. (if available)

NAME OF CLERIC Reverend Michael S. Nocita
PERSONAL Date of Birth 4 May 1950 Age 54
DETAILS OF THE
CLERIC Ordination 10 June 1977 Years of ministry 14
ORIGINAL DIOCESE OF INCARDINATION Los Angeles in California

MINISTRY IN/TRANSFER TO OTHER DIOCESE

CONTACT ADDRESS OF THE CLERIC

PROCURATOR (include original signed mandate)

REDACTED

CONTACT ADDRESS OF THE PROCURATOR

I

ASSIGNMENTS
Year | Parish Locatien Appointhlent
1977 | Mary Star of the Sea San Pedro, California Parochial Vicar
1980 | St. Paul High School Santa Fe Springs, California Faculty
1980 | St, Bruno Whittier, California Residence
1982 Bishop Moritgomery High Torrance, California Faculty
School
1982 | Maria Regina Gardena, California Residence
1983 | American Martyrs Manhattan Beach Residence
| 1984 | Paraclete High School Palmdale, California Faculty
1984 | Sacred Heart Lancaster, California ) Residence
1987 Bishop Alemany High School | Mission Hills, California Faculty
1987 O‘.lr Lady Queen (.)f the Angels Mission Hills, California Residence
High School Seminary
1989 | St. Timothy Los Angeles, California Parochial Vicar
1991 Inactive Leave

409776

RCALA 007316

CCl 005276



DIOCESE

Los Angeles in California

NAME OF ORDINARY Cardinal Roger M. Mahony

CDF PROT. N. (if available)

NAME OF CLERIC Reverend Michael S. Nocita
PERSONAL Date of Birth 4 May 1950 Age 54
DETAILS OF THE
CLERIC Ordination 10 June 1977 Years of ministry 14
ORIGINAL DIOCESE OF INCARDINATION Los Angeles in California

MINISTRY IN/TRANSFER TO OTHER DIOCESE

CONTACT ADDRESS OF THE CLERIC

REDACTED

PROCURATOR (include original signed mandate)

CONTACT ADDRESS OF THE PROCURATOR

]

ASSIGNMENTS

Year | Parish Location Appointment
1977 | Mary Star of the Sea San Pedro, California Parochial Vicar
1980 | St. Paul High School Santa Fe Springs, California Faculty
1980 | St. Bruno ‘Whittier, California Residence
1982 Bishop Montgomery High Torrance, California Faculty
School
1982 | Maria Regina ‘Gardena, California V Residence
.| 1983 | American Martyrs Manhéttan Beach Residence
11984 | Paraclete High School Palmdale, California Faculty
1984 | Sacred Heart Lancaster, California Residence
1987 | Bishop Alemany High School | Mission Hills, California Faculty -
1987 OI.II Lady Queen (.’f the Angels Mission Hills, California 1 Residence
High School Seminary ‘
1989 | St. Timothy Los Angeles, California Parochial Vicar
1961 Inactive Leave
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by Dan Mazen
- "WHAT TO DO about crime in our community? Live
with it as the lawbreakers have no intention of stopping
despite the concerted éfforts of thé Sheriff's Departmient.
We do gettited writing abbut all that bad news every week
B }Jums panof our beat and the news has to be reported —
- ‘it's our business, Some, we know, disagree with Lhe atten-
. lion given 1o such news, The best the commumty can ex—
" ‘pect about the crime problem is 1o control it a little bstt
. -each year — and Capt. Mike Quinn and his gendarines a&
“the Tocal sheriff's facility are earnestly working at it
Hou.se burglaries here wero down a litdle this pas; year.

ok %

!B Tn specific terms on Jocal criminal activity, when is
the schoot district going to take some better steps to halt

schoot? There have been major occurrences there in the
. last three wecks,
B Also, much (o averyone's regret, a personal Amencan

. one.night last week while being displayed. If anything is
* sacred, it's the Stars and Stripes — and at this particular
_timic of war., For what reason’ was it siolen?
A And then there was the cruel hoax perpetrated on the
. "Ted Banz family about their daughier Deiny killed in a car
* aclident.
The flag stunt and the Banz hoax were something I had
ngver encountered before as a three-decade newsperwn in
La Caﬁada Flintridge.

* X k

«&t's go positive, Local Charlie Plowman, for-
‘Caflada High cage star and recént USC graduale,
sed out'his mest successful junior bagketbalt pro~
am:here, The young director cxpanded the league 1o
fourthand fifth graders this season, who were in demand,
wmch broughl. the participating player numbsr 1o nearly

200. His ‘concluding banguet on Feb, 10 dréw 400 per-
‘also-aney record, This is the kind of story thai nul-
iffes the youﬂr negau\ns we have to report;:

‘k‘k*

otivé in: ihe Kiwams Club and Chamber of
OMmmerce: Community Assn., is doing fine, thank you,
-affer having:a“full hip replacemem on Feb, 13. He came
: Friday fiom Glendale- Memorial Hospital and is
- gelting-use fo & walker, Local Dr, Michael Pume did the
"‘hour and threc-quaru:; surgery. According to Robbie, he'll
be utilizing a cne by. the end of March and he has prom-

“end of-April. With the initials of “T. J. B.," Robbie is a
R fonner23—year ber of the Canadian Consulate in Los
Angeles (working-out of Pasadena) and was with the Ca-
. nadian’ Depm‘tment of Defense Production bafore that.
- Afterhe retired in'1977, he became a manufacturer's Tep-
réseniative for Northrop Aifcrnft and made the company s
first sale:-to-a foreign country of its then ncw F-18 jet
ﬁghter— 10.Canada.

_ pid ‘ya\. Kiidw thece s a street in North Glendale called
Bagdud Place? It's off Verdugo Road as you approach
Mcnu-ose on the way up to La Cafiada,

" Don Carpenter at the old I.adger newspaper here as a re-
“poiter and political editor; is now employed in an editor's
. role at the Sacramento Union, He had been an aide to local
State Assemblyman Pat Nolan in the state capital.

" La Cafiadan Alma Paige, who has made rurmm{; an im-
ponam part of her life for several years, is ready to go

(Continued on page 6)

Thursdsy, Fab,21.,....
Friday, Feb.22.000000n0in

SHRBLRENBESEBEETMG

the gll-tgo-frequent burglarles and vandatism at the high .

" -flag of Mayor Jack Hastings and wife Mary was swiped '

ised his doclor that he won't be playing any golf until the-

© Journalist Mike Pottage who used to work for the lats-

i Yalente Quits as Youth House

Hea& Ew?rsesr Talkes Post

by Don Mazen

Major news in La Cafleda
Flintridge’s youth-commu-
nity center scope broke last
week with the surprise en-
nouncement thet Chris Va-
lente had resigned as execu-
tive director of 1hé Lu Cafia-
da Youth after nearly 20
years. His placs was laken
by Mike Nocita, 40, 2 for-
mer active Catholic priest,
who hos served irl 2 number
of capacities in ths L.AT
-Archdiocese, bota in par-
ishes.and as high scheols.

Yelente, who is mayor pra
tem of the LCF City Coun-~
eil, said he decided to leave
the Youth House so he can
spend mers lime with his
family. He cited too much of
a schedule load with his
many activiies and respon-
sibilities and hinted that He
mey mske another changs or
wo 1o accommodate his
{amily,

But he stated that he will
continue 2y 2 city council

-member (he's in the middle

of his, first four-year term)
and. as a part-time govern-
ment tencher at local St.
Francis High where he has
instructed for the past 25
years.

* Valente became Youth
House head in 1971 after
serving as operations diree-
wr under the late Gilbert
"Sminy” Smith for six
years.

Valente’s last day on the
job was last Wednesday, Nao-
city started his new job the
Aoliowing day,

According
te, his
plans were in
works- for & month.

e was responsible for in-
troducing a number of youth
progeams at the Youth
House during .his temure.
They included. girls' soft:
ball, girls” T-ball, girls' soe-
cer, kickball, arts and .sotiv-
ity classes, day care at the
local slementary. schools,
the pre-school program and
the afier-svhool ‘recreation
program at the elementary

to  Valen-
resignation
the

" schools. It was also Chris'

idea to put on & Summer Sci~
ence Workshop which has
dravwn, aver 1000 young-
sters,

Meet Mlke Noclta,

Valente's Successor .

After 13 yesrs in the pub-
lic ministry s an ordained
Catholic priest, Nociis said
he mede the change because
he wanted "more of a say in
the direcion of his life,” He
added: “I think I'll be more
effective this way."

The new local youth lead-
er, who has been & high
schoel principal, teacher,
counselor and coach, said he
holds "the greatest respect
for the church" but added
that in his naw career, he
-will still serve people while
Ieldlng 8 m‘e of a more par-

five La Canada

— at

- Flintridge locations and one

spot in La C during

T 2
Mike Neoclta

sonal choice.

With his decision, Nocita
has been placed on the
church's inactive list but pan

cbme back at any time and .

“¥be reinstated, "The church
. was open sbeut this, T felt in
pood standing,” he com-

Y.H. DIRECTOR

LiET SINCE '50
With his
ment, Mike Nocita be-
comes the ninth di.
rector of the La Cniin.
da Youth House which

wos Inltially  opened
In 1950,
Those: whe thave

* served, in order:
Charles Pritchard In
1950, Mark Doyle In
early . 1954, Gene
Landy later that same
year, Edwin Bozonler

S in 1955, R. Allen.
Spabr In 1957, Gilbert
"Smitty” Smith in
1959, Joe Noia in
1970, Chris Valente
in 1971 and now Mike
Noclta. -~
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Calendar 10
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Sarvice Diractory .20, 21
Soclsty - 15, 16,17
Sports 2124
Things to Do . 25

We'ndove.r.R:i. in the upper
Flmtridge hills mear the

e

a thyee-hour period.

None of the outbresks,
coming in as brush calls,
was large and the damage
they caused was minimsl
($500 and less), according
to the CGounty Fire De-
pariment. In two cases, a
small shingle roof sectinn
was burned, In all six fires,

wuoden retaining wall and
shrabbery ‘ being bumed.
Estimated damage was $500,
The victim was Vartkes
Najarian.

— A neighbor on ncarbyA

Stardust Lane saw smoke at
12:40 p.m. and heard z
"puff" sound followed by
flames as ivy and joniper in

appoint- )

- clote High in Lancaster for

y with a

mentad.

© Before coming to the,

Youth House, he was sery-
ing as an assacinte pastor at
the St. Timothy parish in
Waest LA, Mike was notified
of being sclected on Feb. 19
by & member of the Youth
House executive board. He
had gone to an execulive
search firm in Pasadena to

. stact him on his way to a

new creer. )
He will move 1o Glendale
in just a few days.

* Born in Sen Jose,
Calif,, Nocite stated he en-

* tered <he Catholic mrinisry

because of "a love of the
secraments and a love of the
church, I 'wanted to help
people.”

After gmduatlng

“from Our Lady Queen of An-

gels Seminary High School
in San Femendo and from
5t John's Seminary College
in Camarille (with his BA
degrec in philosophy and
Measter of Divinity totaling
,eighr. years); Nocita joined
the parish staff at Mary Star
ol the Sea in San Pedro.

He was there for throe
years followed by his facul-

ty assignment-at St, Paul’
High Schodl in Santa Fe

Springs where - he slo

coached cross-couniry,

" In 1982, he joined Bishop
Montgomery High in Tor-
rance as vice principal,
serving also as a counselor
and harricr coach,

Two years later, Nocita’

became principal of Pars-

three years before laking &
similar post at Alemany

High for an additionsl two " ']

years, Then, he was as-
signed (o St Timor.hys

*:Hig archdiocese rccord‘

- includes. seven yéars'in ad-

ministrative- work and five
years as a ctoss coumr_y
mentoy:

Nocita, has also been
prUmfncxitly involved with

. the news media as a church

tepresentative, having been
& spokesman for the archdi-
oresa in TV end radio ep-
pearances. In 1987. when
Pope- John Paul visited the
U.8. and Southern Califor-
nig, Nocita handled the
"color" duties for NBC-TV
as the pontiff touted. the
Southland.

Medias Spokesman

Nocita has also been 1
rogular on KABC Radie’s
"Religion on the Line” and

RCALA QU/7310

Burg!uryu Ralph Wi
VACANT SITE

YIELDS 52800
COPPER TUBIN

“In & mystery’ of

West building; now:
temodeiing for a new mujof
business, rccently was ear
goted by burglars wli
wmoved 20 sections
stalled copper. mbmg v
32800.

* The 31.00Q-squnr
building at 2111 Fo
Blvd, has been leas
Ross Dress for Lass w
plunning to make:
tions, including & ne!
front, starting int April,
project. is expecte:
about four months.,
. ® Investigatin
copper iubing
sheriff’s department |
able to say how the
store was entered as
were no evidencs of'a.
in. The Jocation was
locked aftert th
which, &ccording 107
Crescenta Valley:

CBS-TVY's "Today's Reli-. ',

gion."

He says he is confident -,

that he has the skills from
his public ministry 1o carry
out an effeetive community

program at the Youth House,* -

mcludmg both pre-school
and senior cxuzcn-aga .

o an apanmcm— toof here at |

4470 Rockland Place, Tree

serviceman Randy Smith -

was driving by and saw the
firc and held off flames with -
a garden hose until Engine
Co. 19 arrived; Two sheriff's

_deputies alerted apartment

occupants and then had to
withdraw, becavse of the
flames.

— At 2:18 pm., 5. smail
hillside near Briggs Avenue

e

CCl 005278
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PROFFER RE FATHER MICHAEL STEPHEN NOCITA

.*. " Description’
5/4/50 Bom
6/16/75- Deacon, St. Bridget of Sweden, Van Nuys
8/17/15 .
6/76 Deacon, Mary Star of the Sea Parish, San Pedro
2/16/77 Letter from Rector of St. John’s Seminary to Cardinal Manning

4

regarding Nocita’s “immaturity” as evidenced by an unspecified
“problem” that occurred in the prior year.

6/10/77 Ordained. _

6/17/77 Associate, Mary Star of the Sea Parish, San Pedro.

7/9/80 Teacher, St. Paul High School, Santa Fe Springs. In 1351dcnce
St. Bruno Church, Whittier.

7/1/82 Teacher, Bishop Montgomery High School, Torrance. In

, residence, Maria Regina Church, Gardena.

5/23/83 Tn residence, American Martrys Church, Manhattan Beach.

7/1/84 Principal, Paraclete High School, Lancaster. In residence, Sacred
Heart Church, Lancaster.

7/1/87 Principal, Alemany High School, Mission Hills. In residence,
Our Lady Queen of Angels Seminary, San Fernando.

4/19/88 Memo regarding police investigation. A 23 (S.S.) year old

woman (S.S.) reported to her therapist that she was “intimate”
with Fr. Nocita from 1980-82. Therapist reported it to the police
against her wishes. No allegation of sexual intercourse. The
Archdiocese will not contend that it lacked notice of Nocita’s

: sexual interest toward minors following this report.
7/1/89 Associate, St. Timothy Church Los Angeles.

3/25/91 Inactive leave.

10/23/00 | Faculties Revoked.

4/26/02 Victim (S. S.) reports inappropriate conduct by Father Nocita in
1981-1983 to Pastoral Response Team at the Diocese of
Sacramento. REDAGTED

11/25/02 Priest counselor to Plaintiff orwards a long journal and -

related material to Vicar for Ciergy on behalf of Plaintiffin ~
which she alleges that she was abused while a student at Bishop
Montgomery High School.

- 104 - 409779
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P g P Rt et et s A it iR

T adorea

gL e T
o -

- 3/25/97]

R S G R P AL R AN s e e e
Mary Star of Sea, San Pedro - Associate 06/17/77
st. Paul High School, Santa Fe Springs - Faculty 07/09/80

Maria Regina, Gardena - Residence 07/01/82
erican Martyvrs Manhattan Beach - Residence 05/23/83

409780
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BASIC INFORMATION FOR PAX CASES

Case Number: . TA 0006/98

Name of Petitioner: Michael S. Nocita
Residence Address: REDACTED
City:
Mailing Address:
(if different)
City:
REUAU 1 ED
Home Phone: ____Work Phone: ( )
FPager: (G E-mail:

Date of Initial Contact:

Present status: [ No Prospect 1 Fiancée 0 Married 1 Divorced

NOTES
1975 Jan, Disp 987,1 & 984,1 for Ordination to Deaconate

1976

1977
1978
1980
1982
1983
1984
1987
1988

1989
1990

1991

Apr, called for Ordination to priesthood. bnt it is deferred. Indications of serious
dissatisfaction on part of faculty and JREDACTED at Mary Star until
Ordination '

June 11, °77 Ordained to priesthood

Apr, father dies

To St. Paul Hi as teacheer

To Bp Montgomery Hi

Assoc to American Martyrs

Principal at Paraclete Hi, also police chaplain, inquires about military chaplaincy
Principal at Alemany Hi

request return to parish life, Assoc at St. Tim’s, police report of intimacy with young
woman at St. Paul in (80-82)

Step father dies, o ‘

Unhappy at St. Tim’s, seeks military again (dating 20 yr old at St. Tim’s is reported) In
Dec rumors surface about his relationships with young women. He is asked to geta
psychological evaluation, refuses.

March, goes In Active. Seeks civil job with supposed suppoit of Archdiocese. Made to
recant that. .

No decree found removing faculties

409781
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